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PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

Chief Executive and Chair’s Introduction to the Annual Report 
 
It has been a challenging and uncertain year as the Covid-19 pandemic has continued, but we 
are beyond proud and thankful to our staff who have worked so hard, whilst going above and 
beyond what is expected to keep our patients safe and to support one another. 
 
The pressure of the year has inevitably taken its toll on our people, so we have focused our efforts 
on doing everything possible to keep our staff safe, well and supported so that they can deliver 
the best care possible to the communities we serve. 
 
Despite the challenges we have faced, we have also achieved a lot and have so much to be 
proud of. In our cancer services, we have continued to provide timely care to patients through the 
pandemic, ensuring that excellent care has been delivered. 
 
Recovering the elective backlog, which resulted from the pandemic, has been a challenge, but 
thanks to the flexibility of our staff to work in new ways, we have made excellent progress and 
supported other Trusts to also recover their elective performance. 
 
We have recently celebrated the news that our maternity services have been described as 
‘outstanding’ by the CQC, and this is based on feedback they received from women on their 
experiences with us during 2021-22. 
 
We are grateful to all our teams for the way they have continued to rise to the challenges they 
have been faced with, working with our community, primary care, local authority and voluntary 
sector partners to always put our patients first. 
 
The roll-out of the Covid-19 vaccination has been key to helping us to move forward and we are 
really proud of the part the team at Kingston Hospital has played in this. Colleagues have adapted 
to challenges and our exceptional team of volunteers, as well as our governors, have given so 
much support to us throughout the pandemic, for which we are thankful. 
 
Over the year we have been working more closely with all of our health and care partners across 
all South West London boroughs, particularly in Kingston, Richmond and East Elmbridge, as well 
as other local boroughs. 
 
These working relationships have been essential during the pandemic, and by enhancing them 
further we will sustainably improve care and the overall patient experience. 
 
During the year we entered into a new partnership agreement with Hounslow and Richmond 
Community Healthcare NHS Trust (HRCH) which will help to facilitate this closer working, 
resulting in a broader range of career opportunities for our staff, giving them the ability to move 
between NHS organisations and helping us to retain NHS staff in our local services. 
 
We look forward to continuing to work in partnership with HRCH and Your Healthcare, the 
provider of community services in Kingston, and to playing our part in the development of the 
Integrated Care Systems to help improve care and to tackle health inequalities in the communities 
that we serve. 
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It has been another extraordinary year for us, and we have an exciting journey ahead. Thank you 
to our exceptional staff, our Trust Board, governors, members, volunteers, health and care 
partners and local communities for your continued support. 
  
Our thanks also to Sian Bates, who retired from her role as Chair in Common of Kingston Hospital 
and HRCH at the end of March 2022. Sian’s leadership resulted in lasting cultural improvement 
and significant transformational change, and we thank her for her passion and commitment over 
the years. We look forward now to moving beyond the Covid-19 pandemic. 
  

 
Jo Farrar      Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs  
Chief Executive Officer    Chair 
21 June 2022      21 June 2022    
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Statement of Purpose and Activities of the Foundation Trust 
 
The purpose of this overview is to provide sufficient information for the reader to understand the 
organisation, its purpose, the key risks to the achievement of its objectives and how it has 
performed during the year. 
 
History and Statutory Background 
 
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a well-regarded, single-site hospital, located within 
Kingston upon Thames, and provides services to approximately 300,000 people locally. Within 
the South West London Integrated Care System (ICS), we define ‘Place’ as Kingston, Richmond 
and East Elmbridge; however, we also serve patients from Merton, Wandsworth and Sutton. 
 
The hospital site in Galsworthy Road is that of the former Kingston Union Workhouse, built in 
1839. In 1948, when the NHS was launched, the entire former workhouse site was given over to 
the hospital. The Trust was licensed as a NHS Foundation Trust with effect from 1st May 2013, a 
not-for-profit, public benefit corporation authorised under the National Health Service Act 2006 to 
provide goods and services for the purposes of the health service in England. 
 
Business Model and Environment 
 
The Trust is recognised as providing excellent care, has a strong community identity, strong 
leadership (both clinical and managerial), good governance and delivery capabilities. The Trust 
achieved a Care Quality Commission (CQC) rating of ‘Outstanding’ in 2018. 
 
As well as working together with partners in the local Place-based system centred on Kingston, 
Richmond and East Elmbridge, the Trust is also a partner in the South West London Acute 
Provider Collaborative (APC) and has progressed collaborative corporate service delivery hubs 
for procurement and staff recruitment during 2021-22.The relationships and collaborative 
arrangements in both the ICS and the APC proved invaluable in responding to pressures placed 
on the NHS during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Ordinarily, the Trust has some 425 acute beds and directly employs around 3,000 whole-time 
equivalent staff, with another 300 staff employed by contractors working on behalf of the Trust. 
During 2021-22, the number of critical care beds was flexed according to demands in the hospital 
and across South West London, ranging between 12 and 33 in number. Where possible, 
outpatient appointments were switched to video or telephone calls. The Trust was successful in 
maintaining urgent cancer services throughout the pandemic. 
 
The Trust has strong links with tertiary and specialist hospitals, particularly St George’s University 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and The Royal Marsden Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, who 
jointly provide cancer services on the Kingston Hospital site in the Sir William Rous Unit. The 
Trust has close links with Kingston University and St George's Medical School, and jointly runs 
the Elective Orthopaedic Centre at Epsom Hospital in partnership with St George’s University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Croydon Health Services NHS Trust and Epsom and St Helier 
University Hospitals NHS Trust.  
 
Over the year, the Trust developed a collaborative model with Hounslow and Richmond 
Community Healthcare NHS Trust (HRCH). This included developing a single executive to work 
across both Trusts, some shared board positions and the development of a Committee in 
Common (CiC) between the two Trust Boards. The new arrangements came into effect in April 
2022, and over the course of the 2022/23 year, further subcommittees and corporate teams will 
converge into collaborate teams. The Trusts are also developing shared strategic objectives 
which the CiC will oversee during the upcoming year.    
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Organisational Structure 
 
The Trust operates on two clinical divisions and various corporate departments. Each clinical 
division is subdivided into ‘clusters’ of services.  
 
The purpose of moving to this structure from service line management was to retain the benefits 
gained from a service line approach, adapted to support the transition to integrated care system 
working. The clinical divisions and clusters are headed by trios of medical, nursing and 
managerial leads to ensure that the organisation is clinically led, managerially enabled and 
representative of all clinical professionals.  
 
With effect from 1st April 2019 the Trust brought its private health operation in-house under the 
name Kingston Private Health (KPH). KPH operates as a service line within one of the clusters 
in the Planned Care Division, supported by external advisors, TPW Consulting and Training 
Limited (TPW). Private healthcare ceased during 2020-21 to assist in a focused response by the 
Trust during the Covid-19 surges and continued in 2021-22.   
 
During winter pressures and the Covid-19 pandemic, the Trust continued to operate under a 
‘command and control’ structure defined under Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and 
Response (EPRR) framework guidelines, as it had done in the previous year. The Trust Board 
and its committees, the Council of Governors and the Executive Management Committee 
continued to meet to timetable as far as possible, albeit that meetings were virtual, and agendas 
were, at times, streamlined. 
 
Objectives and Strategies 
 
The Trust’s strategic framework is based on a lean improvement approach with the aim of aligning 
objectives across the organisation. The Trust’s ‘True North’ acts as a guiding compass for staff 
to demonstrate that everything we do, no matter how large or small, should always contribute to 
improving outcomes and experiences for the people we care for in our hospital. 

  
 

The Trust has a quality strategy and 
structures in place to support patient 
safety and quality governance. All staff 
adopt the strategic theme ‘Quality’ as a 
key personal objective so that patients 
receive safe and high quality care. The 
Quality Account defines quality goals 
within the three domains of quality: 
safety; experience; and effectiveness 
which reflect national and local 
priorities. The Trust works to a set of 
core values developed by staff and 
patients to enable the organisation to 
deliver the shared vision of ‘working 
together to deliver exceptional, 
compassionate care – each and every 
time’.  
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Key Issues and Risks to the Delivery of Objectives  
 
The Trust has mechanisms in place to manage risk, details of which can be found in the Annual 
Governance Statement, which also describes how specific risks are identified, assessed and 
mitigated. The Board and Audit Committee maintained oversight of the key issues and risks to 
the delivery of objectives through the Board Assurance Framework report. 
 
The principal risks throughout 2021-22 continued from the previous year to be dominated and 
effected by the Covid-19 pandemic. The NHS was in a Level 4 Incident with command and control 
mode in place. NHS organisations were directed to, wherever possible, manage and mitigate a 
number of key risks. Those risks, and our local response, are summarised below, along with other 
strategic risks the Trust faced. Some of these risks are expected to remain throughout 2022-23, 
and others will be developed from the new strategic objectives between the Trust and HRCH, 
and the Trust will continue to work at further mitigating them as the year unfolds.  
 
Principal Risks 2021-22 Mitigating Actions (illustrative, non-exhaustive)  

Hospitals are overwhelmed by the 
level of Covid-19 admissions, 
particularly in relation to critical 
care and general and acute beds in 
secondary care.  

Coordinated response at London Regional and Acute 
Provider Collaborative level to effectively match the surge in 
Covid-19 activity with the critical care and general and acute 
bed capacity available and, where appropriate, balancing via 
mutual aid. 
The stepping down of the elective programme at appropriate 
times to ensure that adequate resource was focused on 
Covid-19 related emergency care. 
Rapid decant of clinically fit patients from the hospital where 
possible. 

Staff safety is compromised due to 
inadequate Infection Prevention 
and Control measures, resulting in 
high levels of staff sickness 
absence, further reducing the 
capacity and capability of the 
hospital to cope with a surge in 
patients. 
 

Clear IPC guidance and relevant training at the Trust. 
Availability of the appropriate PPE throughout the pandemic. 
Participation in the lateral flow testing programme to ensure 
that any staff testing positive could self-isolate in a timely and 
safe manner. 
High risk staff encouraged to shield and work remotely, as 
appropriate. 
Protocols and welfare support in place for staff testing 
positive. 

Patients suffer harm as their 
treatment is delayed due to a lack 
of hospital capacity and/or clinical 
risks of proceeding due to Covid-19 
being too high.  

All patients on waiting lists prioritised based on clinical risk. 
Patients in highest clinical risk categories, including cancer 
patients, continued to receive treatment. 
Elective services recovered as quickly as possible and 
patients across SW London were treated in appropriate 
priority order. 

Staff fatigue and burnout may result 
from sustained and excessive 
workload, combined with the stress 
of being exposed to extremely 
challenging situations. 

Enhanced staff health and wellbeing offers for both physical 
and mental health support.  
Pastoral support provided to individuals and teams suffering 
from trauma. 
Regular communications, listening events, away days and 
Schwartz rounds conducted to ensure staff felt listened to 
and supported. 
Staff recovery prioritised post Covid-19 surges.  

Interruption to medical gas services 
due to lack of accurate information 
to plan future work or resolve 
unplanned faults/issues. 

Directly overseen by the Estates team, and an engineer and 
maintenance contractor has been appointed to assist.  

Risk of premature spread of fire 
due to breaches in fire 
compartmentation.  

Staff awareness ensured.  
Monitored through Estates and governance structure with 
review of fire prevention capability. Oversight by the Audit 
Committee.  
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Performance Analysis  

Performance and Measures   

The Board receives performance reports at each formal Board meeting. Each Executive Director 
presents reports on achievement of targets in relation to their own portfolios in reports on Clinical 
Quality, Operational Performance, Finance and Workforce. Performance reports are also 
discussed at Board committee meetings where a ‘deep dive’ approach is taken to gaining 
additional assurance on a range of significant areas of interest. 
 
Performance measures are reported against the CQC domains: Safe, Effective, Caring, 
Responsible and Well-Led. A scorecard summarises performance against target (where 
applicable) for each metric and a commentary under each domain gives further detail on 
exceptions. The scorecard also picks up the annual trend and compares data with the same 
month last year. Perfromances against key metrics for 2021-22 compared to previous years are 
presented in the table below.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Type Service 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Daycase 22,298 22,204 23,521 24,756 24,592 26,036 26,432 29,686 30,905 13,881 23,401

Inpatients 4,546 4,300 4,328 4,027 3,866 4,406 4,212 4,124 3,684 2,224 2,193

Births 5,914 5,985 5,863 5,866 5,800 5,636 5,330 4,976 4,929 4,825 4,905

ED Attendances 113,021 113,360 110,384 110,473 113,437 116,557 118,397 127,482 135,150 90,453 121,703

Emergency Admissions 21,572 21,076 21,488 21,054 26,602 26,560 30,510 33,513 37,210 31,025 38,027

A&E 4 hour target 97.10% 96.40% 95.70% 94.40% 92.10% 89.98% 89.16% 89.24% 86.42% 88.68% 79.02%

Outpatient Attendances 342,360 332,932 343,488 369,859 388,747 418,094 424,580 444,498 444,167 358,007 478,470

Type Service Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-22

18 week Pathways 11,474 12,575 14,173 15,093 15,351 15,666 16,379 19,654 21,126 21,968 27,061

Outpatient 8,889 10,442 11,816 12,674 13,079 12,827 13,192 16,587 17,618 19,112 22,913

Inpatient 2,602 2,769 2,810 2,419 2,272 2,839 3,187 3,067 3,508 2,856 4,148
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Progress Against the Quality Priorities  

Quality improvement was one of many areas where the Trust has seen a significant impact as a 
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. Planned programmes have been revised, paused or 
even abandoned in response to the constantly changing circumstances that the Trust and society 
as a whole has been confronted with throughout this period. In its place, we have seen rapid 
adaptation and innovation across many services; redesigning processes and care delivery so that 
we can continue to deliver outstanding care for our patients despite the constraints, risks and 
challenges.  
 
The impact of Covid-19 and the consequent response of the health and social care system have 

made assessing progress against the strategic priorities challenging and resulted in many of the 

measures of performance being effectively incomparable with historic performances. Targets for 

each priority were originally set based on assumptions about the system that are no longer 

necessarily valid. Nonetheless, work has continued over the last two years, with separate 

workstreams established to provide focus on these issues as the Trust and its partners have 

adapted to the rapidly changing context. 

 
The Trust’s quality priorities align with the three CQC domains: Patient Safety; Clinical 
Effectiveness; and Patient Experience. Two quality priorities were designated to each of these 
areas, with each priority having a designated lead(s) responsible for its progress. In light of the 
disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, a decision was taken to carry the 2020-21 priorities 
over into the following year, 2021-22.  
 

Domain Priority Update 

Patient 
Experience 

Ensure patients get the 
right appointment, first 
time, without delays 

Continued recovery of elective service. 
Identified objectives for the Administration Change 
Management Board (ACMB). 
Patient-Initiated Follow-up (PIFU) introduced. 
Advice and guidance programme summary moved 
online. 
Commencement of effective virtual consultations 
programme. 

Patient 
Experience 

Improve how we work 
with patients and 
families to recognise, 
acknowledge and plan 
for the possibility of 
death 

Focus on understanding the reasons behind delay 
in recognition of dying with root cause analysis 
workshops undertaken. 
Improvements in Advance Care Planning (ACP). 
Volunteers recruited to undertake ACP 
conversation. 
Recruitment of a palliative care clinical educator. 

Safety Increase the proportion 
of patients who are 
safely discharged 
without delay when they 
no longer require an 
acute hospital bed for 
their care 

Rapid changes to capacity throughout the 
pandemic. 
Progress with an integrated approach with 
community partners. 
Continued work on the Inpatient Flow Programme. 
Multi-Agency Discharge Events completed. 
KPIs identified, data collected, and thematic 
analysis undertaken. 

Safety Reduce the proportion of 
women who experience 
postpartum 
haemorrhage (PPH) 

Further training and education on PPH. 
A new PPH risk assessment tool has been 
introduced. 
Involvement in the Carboprost or Oxytocin PPH 
Effectiveness (COPE) study. 
Publication and display of the MOH Rates. 
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Domain Priority Update 

Clinical 
Effectiveness 

Reduce avoidable 
admissions and increase 
the proportion of 
emergency patients who 
go home the same day 
their care is provided 

Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) has been 
relocated to maximise benefits. 
Additional services to facilitate SDEC have been 
deployed. 
Visits to other Trust’s SDECs countrywide have 
taken place. 
Launch of a steering group. 
Commencement of a system-wide frailty pathway. 

Clinical 
Effectiveness 

Improve the proportion 
of patients who are 
assessed for their risk of 
developing delirium 

Increase in the profile and capacity of the 
Dementia and Delirium (D&D) team. 
Changes to the Trust’s electronic patient record 
system to support referral to the D&D team. 
Commencement of an audit of delirium screening. 
Undertaking of further education for clinical staff. 
Increase of delirium screening and training. 
Improved access to the D&D team. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

14 
 

Financial Review of 2021-22  
 
In 2020-21, in response to the pandemic, the financial framework governing NHS organisations 
changed significantly to ensure the financial framework supported the rapidly changing 
environment. These arrangements continued into 2021-22 when the Trust worked with ‘block 
contracts’ which continued with a pre-agreed top-up for Covid-19-related costs.  A block contract 
is one where the Trust receives a fixed amount of income instead of variable income depending 
upon hospital activity.   
 
In the year to 31st March 2022, the Trust delivered a deficit of £2.273m. Excluding the adjustments 
for donated assets and an impairment of £3.919m, the deficit decreased to £6.192m.  
 
The Trust delivered a capital programme of £37.2m. Investments included health and safety, 
critical infrastructure, medical equipment, IT hardware and software and IT infrastructure. 
 
Income 
 
In 2021-22, the Trust received income of £390.0m, excluding Donated Asset Income from 
Kingston Hospital Charity. This is 8.3% higher than the income received for the year to 31st March 
2021, largely due to central funding for additional costs related to the pandemic, and is detailed 
below: 
 

  Year to  
31st March 2022 

£m 

Year to  
31st March 2021 

£m 

Patient care income 356.2 299.7 
Education, training and research 11.8 11.4 
Covid-19 provider top-up 0 27.0 
Other  21.9 22.5 

Total Income 390.0 360.6  
 

 
 
Following the change in funding arrangements during 2020-21, made in response to the Covid-
19 pandemic, new funding in the form of reimbursement and top-up funding was received 
(£27.0m). In 2021-22, the equivalent funding was channelled via CCGs and is included within 
Income from Patient Care Activities. 
 

Total Income

SWL CCG - 63%

Surrey Heartlands CCG - 9%

Other CCGs - 1%

NHSE - 7%

LA - 1%

Other Patient Care - 1%

Covid Funding - 5%

Elective Recovery Fund - 4%

Other Operating income - 9%
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The patient care income received in 2021-22 increased by 18.9% to £356.2m from 2020-21. The 
vast majority of this income was received as part of the temporary block funding arrangements 
that remained in place for the whole of 2021-22, with the increase mainly due to the change in 
the treatment of reimbursement and top-up funding noted above. 
 
Expenditure 
 

 
Year to 

31st March 2022 
£m 

Year to 
31st March 2021 

£m 

Staff Costs 228.2 220.0 

Running Costs (excluding Staff) 161.5 140.5 

Finance Costs (including PFI) 3.7 3.7 

Public Dividend Capital dividend payable to HM 
Treasury 

3.3 2.9 

Total Expenditure 396.7 367.1 

 
Total costs for the year ended 31st March 2022 were £396.7m, compared to £367.1m for the 12 
months to 31st March 2021. 
 
The chart below shows our expenditure excluding staff costs: 
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The chart below shows the total pay spend across all staff groups: 
 

 
 
Total costs increased by £29.6m of which £8.2m related to staff costs, inclusive of £4.8m of 
inflationary pay awards. Costs of £7.9m relating to notional employer pension contributions were 
also incurred in year, an increase of £0.4m compared to the £7.5m in the previous year.  
 
Temporary staffing costs of bank and agency staff increased by £8.1m in comparison to the 
previous year from £27.1m to £35.2m. This is due to enhanced pay arrangements being put in 
place for all bank staff to encourage additional capacity to deliver the elective recovery 
programme as well the areas under the Capacity Building Bid (incl. inpatient wards and ITU).  
 
Running costs (or non-pay costs) increased by £21.0m. A large increase in clinical supplies and 
services was driven by the elective recovery programme, including independent sector costs 
which increased by £7.5m. Premises costs (which include IT and estates costs) increased by 
£4.0m and establishment costs (which includes consultancy) increased by £3.0m, both of which 
were partly driven by costs related to projects funded through NHS income streams particularly 
in the latter half of the year. The cost of drugs increased by £3.0m and depreciation costs 
increased by £2.0m.  
 
Covid-19 related costs have reduced by £7.4m from £14.2m in 2020-21 to £6.8m in 2021-22. 
Income received for Covid-19 related costs exceeded these costs in year but is to be reduced 
significantly in the next financial year. 
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Capital 
 
The Trust delivered a capital expenditure against a Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit 
(CDEL) of £37.2m, against planned CDEL of £37.2m. The final spend was broken down as 
follows: 
 

 
 
The above figures do not include £0.5m of Charity-funded capital.   
 
Revaluation and Impairment 
 
The Trust’s land, buildings and equipment were revalued as at 31st March 2022. This resulted in 
a total impairment of £5.6m. £4.3m of this was charged to operating expenses and £1.3m to the 
Revaluation Reserve. There were decreases in land and building values of £0.5m. The total net 
increase in tangible and intangible asset values over the 12 months to 31st March 2022 was 
£25.1m.   
 
Cash 
 
The Trust’s cash holding increased from £47.0m at 31st March 2021 to £71.2m at 31st March 
2022. The Estates Strategy Loan (which commenced during 2015 and runs to 2034) remains.   
 
2022-23 Future Plans 
 
The plan for 2022-23 is a deficit of £18.0m. Delivery of this position is based upon a number of 
assumptions which have been clearly stated in the SW London sector plan submission to NHS 
England and Improvement which the Trust has been involved in completing. 
 
 
 
 
 

Equipment, 5.0

Managed MRI, MES 
and PFI, 1.8

Estates Critical 
Infrastructure, 10.2

Estates Fire Safety, 
1.4

Estates Patient Flow, 
2.5
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Builds, 10.4
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IT Programme, 5.4

Capital Expenditure £37.2m
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Going Concern 
 
The Trust is operating under a revised financial framework in response to the global pandemic.  
 
The Directors have reviewed the Trust’s position in relation to Going Concern. The Trust has 
submitted a plan showing a deficit of £7.3m for the 2022-23 financial year.  
 
After making enquiries on budgeting, capital and cash requirements, and the funding being made 
available to respond to the pandemic, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that Kingston 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Trust continues to adopt the Going Concern basis in 
preparing its Annual Accounts. 
 
Environment Matter 
 
The Trust has continued to take reasonable steps to minimise its adverse impact on the 
environment. The Sustainable Development Management Plan was retired and replaced by the 
Green Plan. This plan contains a five-year vision and specific actions to be taken within the next 
12 months, guided by the service conditions of the NHS (SC18 Green NHS and Sustainability). 
The plan includes contributions from all areas of hospital operation and management and was 
approved by the Board in March 2022. This document is the cornerstone of the Trust’s alignment 
with NHS England’s net zero carbon agenda including the targets published in ‘Delivering a Net 
Zero National Health Service’.  
 
Specific actions taken during this period to manage and mitigate climate change include: 
  

• The nomination of a board level Net Zero Lead (Chief Finance Officer).  

• The introduction of electric vehicle charging points and trials of electric vans to replace the 
existing pool fleet. 

• Exploration of tools and alternative practice to reduce nitrous oxide release to the 
atmosphere. 

• Procuring all imported electricity from sources backed by Renewable Energy Guarantee of 
Origin certificates.  

 
The Green Plan will be reviewed by the Board in March 2023. This will include progress against 
the plan for 2022-23 and updates to the vision. 
 
Social, Community and Human Rights Issues  
 
The Trust recognises the need to forge strong links with the communities it serves in order to fulfil 
its responsibilities for healthcare provision. Through its Council of Governors and through its 
Membership Strategy, the Trust endeavours to engage members of the local community in the 
affairs of the Trust by developing initiatives in which members are able to get involved (if they 
wish), dependent on their particular interests and skills. This has been significantly challenged by 
the Covid-19 pandemic. However, plans are now in place to engage with the local community 
through the Council of Governors.  
 
Human Rights legislation sets out universal minimum standards about treating everyone equally 
with fairness, dignity and respect. The Trust is committed to meeting its obligations in respect of 
the human rights of our staff and patients; this is closely aligned both to the NHS Constitution and 
to the Trust’s values. The Trust has an Equality & Diversity Strategy overseen by an Equality, 
Diversity & Inclusion Committee that reports directly to the Trust Board. 
 
The Trust approved its Modern Slavery Statement at its May 2022 Board meeting.  
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Equality of Service Delivery 
 
The Trust works to achieve equality of access to current services and ensures services are 
developed in ways that do not create barriers to accessing them. Equality Impact Assessments 
are conducted in relation to service development and all policy developments. The Trust has 
accessible information and signage. The Trust makes reasonable adjustments for people with 
learning disabilities and now has a Learning Disability Liaison Practitioner in post.  
 
The Trust was also involved in a pilot for the Reasonable Adjustments Flag, which is a national 
record which indicates that reasonable adjustments are required for an individual. There has been 
increasing public and patient involvement in co-designing services, which is now more embedded 
in the Trust culture.  
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 

 
Directors’ Report 
 
The Directors present their Annual Report together with the audited Financial Statements for 
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) for the period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 
2022. The Directors’ Report incorporates the Chair’s and Chief Executive’s statements and, 
together with the management commentary and business review, gives an analysis of the 
development and performance of the Trust over the year and the vision for the future. 
 

Board of Directors 
 
As can be seen from the Directors’ biographies below, and from our compliance with the 
requirements of the Code of Governance applicable to NHS Foundation Trusts, the Board of 
Directors (the Board) has an appropriate composition of skills and depth of experience to lead 
the Trust. The Board has not agreed to any full-time Executive Director taking on more than one 
Non-Executive directorship of an NHS foundation trust or another organisation of comparable 
size and complexity during the year.  
 
The Directors who held office during the year were: 
 

Non-Executive Directors  
 
Sian Bates 
Chair 
Appointed September 2013, reappointed September 2016 and September 2019,  
end of last term 31st March 2022 
Sian was first appointed as Chair on 1st September 2013. Sian was Chair of NHS South West 
London between 2011 and March 2013 and was Chair of Richmond and Twickenham Primary 
Care Trust from 2001. Sian started her career in the Civil Service and established and held 
Executive roles with AZTEC, the Training and Enterprise Council for South West London, for 10 
years. She was a consultant specialising in organisational development and human resources 
and worked with many companies and organisations across London.  
 
Sian is passionate about outstanding patient care and dedicated to supporting the health and 
wellbeing of NHS staff. Sian provides mentoring support for aspirant NHS Foundation Trust 
Chairs through NHS Improvement’s leadership training programme. With effect from 1st February 
2020 Sian Bates has served as Chair in Common with Hounslow & Richmond Community Health 
Trust.   
 
Dr Nav Chana MBE 
Non-Executive Director 
Appointed December 2016, reappointed December 2019, end of current term September 2022 
Nav is a GP at the Cricket Green Medical Practice where he has been a GP for 28 years. He is 
the National Clinical Director for the National Association of Primary Care (NAPC) and has 
contributed to the development of primary care networks as described in NHS England's Long 
Term Plan. Previously, as Chair of NAPC, he co-led the development of the 'primary care home' 
model which informed the national policy on primary care network. He sits on a number of 
Advisory Boards for NHS England and other organisations.   
 
Nav has had a varied career in healthcare education. He was the Director of Education Quality 
(DEQ) for Health Education South London, and prior to that the London Postgraduate Dean for 
General Practice and Community Based Education. 
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Jonathan Guppy  
Non-Executive Director  
Appointed April 2017, reappointed April 2020, end of current term March 2023 
Jonathan joined the Trust Board in April 2017 as a Non-Executive Director. He is a management 
consultant with many years’  experience in helping public and private sector companies to 
improve their performance. Previously, Jonathan was a partner at KPMG where his main 
business focus was supporting clients in the health sector, and later he was a senior director at 
Monitor, the Health Regulator. Outside of his role at Kingston Hospital, Jonathan provides 
coaching and mentoring support to senior leaders of both established and entrepreneurial 
companies. 
 
Sylvia Hamilton  
Non-Executive Director  
Appointed January 2016, reappointed January 2019 and January 2021, end of current term 
September 2022 
Sylvia joined the Trust Board in January 2016 as a Non-Executive Director. She is an experienced 
senior Human Resources (HR) professional and most recently served for four years as Group 
HR Director at Bridgepoint, the European mid-market Private Equity Firm. Prior to that she was 
Group HR Director at Grosvenor, the international property and fund management business.  
 
Previously she was a HR Director at EY, an accountancy firm, where she also held responsibility 
for graduate recruitment.  Sylvia worked at BT from graduate entry to senior HR positions and 
she also held operational roles in customer service and managing large groups of people. She 
read modern history at Durham and is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and 
Development and holds a post graduate diploma in marketing. Sylvia has lived with her family in 
Teddington for many years.    
 
Dr Rita Harris  
Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director (SID) 
Appointed August 2016,reappointed August 2019, end of current term September 2022 
Rita joined the Trust in August 2016 having been Executive Director for Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services, Consultant Clinical Psychologist and trainer at the Tavistock and 
Portman NHS Foundation Trust. With over 40 years’ experience in the NHS she has led and 
managed a variety of services in health and social care at local and national levels.  
 
Rita was one of the key figures in developing the integrated multi-agency services that are the 
basis of “Thrive” - a model of Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services now recognised 
nationally as a model of good practice.  Rita has held a number of academic positions and is an 
experienced trainer in service leadership and transformation. 
 
Damien Régent  
Non-Executive Director 
Appointed October 2019, end of current term September 2022 
Damien joined the Trust in October 2019 and chairs the Audit Committee. He works at board 
level with multiple organisations across sectors. His specific expertise is in finance and risk 
oversight. He is a financial analyst by background and spent a number of years as a credit and 
risk analyst in the financial services industry. 
 
Damien has Audit Committee responsibilities on the board of several organisations. In particular, 
he chairs the audit committee at two housing associations, Longhurst and Optivo, and chairs a 
similar committee on the board of Crisis (homelessness charity). Previously, he had board 
responsibilities at MSF, the humanitarian medical aid organisation. He also sat on the board of 
high-growth internet businesses. 
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Dame Cathy Warwick  
Non-Executive Director 
Appointed October 2017, reappointed in September 2020, end of current term September 2023.  
In her most recent role as CEO of the Royal College of Midwives Cathy has been closely involved 
in the development of maternity policy, and been part of a major review of maternity services in 
England, chaired by Baroness Cumberlege.  
 
Cathy is very interested in research and teaching and holds visiting professorships at King’s 
College London and Hong Kong University. She received honorary doctorates from the University 
of Dundee in 2015  and Kingston and St George’s University London in 2007.  
 
Cathy was Director of Midwifery and General Manager for Women and Children’s Services at 
King’s College Hospital. Whilst at King’s College, she received a CBE for services to healthcare 
in 2006. 
 
She has also written and published widely on midwifery issues and lectures and speaks nationally 
and internationally. 
 
Cathy is currently Chair of the British Pregnancy Advisory Service, a charity dedicated to 
advocating for women’s right to make their own reproductive choices. 
 

Executive Directors 
 
Jo Farrar  
Chief Executive, Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust,  
and Hounslow & Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust 
Appointed to the Trust as Director of Finance in April 2015.  
Appointed Chief Executive in September 2019 after a period as acting Chief Executive from  
1st April 2019.  
 
Jo joined the Kingston Hospital as Director of Finance on 1st April 2015 from Homerton University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, where he had been the Director of Finance since March 2010. 
Previously he was the Interim Director of Finance at the Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals NHS Trust, 
acting Chief Executive of NHS London’s Provider Agency, and Head of Compliance at Monitor. 
Jo trained as a chartered accountant at KPMG where he worked for 12 years and gained 
experience of a number of mergers and acquisitions and as a senior member of the Transaction 
Services Team. 
 
Jo was appointed Chief Executive of the hospital in September 2019 after a period as Acting 
Chief Executive from 1st April 2019. Jo was also appointed as Interim Chief Executive of Hounslow 
& Richmond Community Health Trust from 1st April 2021 and appointed substantively in 
December 2021.  
 
He undertakes both these CEO roles in conjunction with being the NHS Executive Lead Director 
in each of the London Boroughs of Kingston and Richmond. 
 
Mairead McCormick  
Chief Operating Officer and Deputy Chief Executive 
Appointed December 2017 
Mairead has been in the NHS for 33 years and spent the earlier part of her career as an 
emergency nurse. She has led in emergency care across large footprints, having undertaken a 
national role with the Emergency Care Improvement team. This involved undertaking whole 
system reviews across primary, community and secondary care incorporating local authority 
aimed at improving UEC across systems. She has undertaken a variety of leadership roles within 
the NHS with various providers with a breadth of managerial experience. She returned to 
Kingston hospital as Chief Operating Officer in 2017.  
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Mairead has recently taken on the role of Deputy Chief Executive officer to support the CEO’s 
extended role as Interim CEO for HRCH. This has enabled her to lead on wider system roles 
impacting on the population of South West London.  
 
Sally Brittain 
Director of Nursing and Quality  
Appointed October 2017 until 30 September 2021 
Sally is a registered nurse and midwife who has undertaken various professional leadership roles 
within nursing and midwifery, most recently as Deputy Director of Nursing at Frimley Health NHS 
Foundation Trust, and previously as Deputy Chief Nurse at Surrey & Sussex Healthcare NHS 
Trust. She is also a previous Head of Midwifery and Supervisor of Midwives. Sally has experience 
of leading large-scale change and service transformation and achieved an MSc in Clinical 
Leadership & Health Education at Kingston University in 2014.  
 
In her many roles Sally has been committed to making sure that all patients are at the centre of 
planning their care and have equal access to high quality services.  
 
Nichola Kane 
Chief Nurse 
Appointed 23 August 2021 
Nic is Chief Nurse across Hounslow & Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust and Kingston 
Hospital. Nic is an experienced senior nurse with extensive clinical, leadership, and operational 
experience. Within her portfolio at Kingston Hospital, she has been responsible for cancer 
performance, safeguarding adults, quality and governance, patient experience, health and 
wellbeing including chaplaincy, practice development, safe staffing, volunteering, dementia and 
end of life care. 
 
Recently she led on the roll out of the Covid-19 vaccination programme, lateral flow and staff 
Covid-19 testing. 
 
She has worked in a variety of nursing leadership roles in NHS trusts, including Barts Health NHS 
Trust and The Royal Marsden Hospital NHS Trust. 
 
Nic is Kingston’s clinical representative for the cancer vanguard, working across SW and NW 
London, and she led a collaborative project with NHSE which led to introduction of the Faster 
Cancer Diagnosis pilot. 
 
Amira Girgis  
Acting Medical Director 
Appointed April 2020 to 30 September 2021 
Amira has worked at the Trust for 16 years as a consultant in anaesthetics and intensive care. 
She has been Deputy Medical Director for over a year, and previous roles included Clinical 
Director for intensive care and Clinical Lead for the South London Adult Critical Care Network.  
 
Amira is also the responsible officer at Kingston Hospital which gives her responsibility for 
managing medical appraisal and revalidation recommendations to the General Medical Council. 
Amira graduated from St George’s Hospital Medical School and completed Specialty Training in 
SE Thames School of Anaesthesia based at Guy’s and St Thomas’ Hospital. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

24 
 

William Oldfield 
Medical Director 
Appointed 1 October 2021 
Bill read Pharmacology and subsequently Human and Applied Physiology at King’s College, 
London, before studying Medicine at St. George’s Hospital Medical School. Following 
qualification, he trained in general and respiratory medicine in North West London and undertook 
a dedicated period of research at the National Heart and Lung Institute, leading to the award of a 
PhD Degree. 
 
He was appointed as a Consultant in Respiratory Medicine to St. Mary’s and Royal Brompton 
Hospitals in 2003, with a special interest in high dependency medicine. He subsequently held 
several clinical managerial positions at Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust, including Chief 
of Service, Deputy Medical Director, and Interim Medical Director before moving to University 
Hospital Bristol as Medical Director in 2018. 
 
He returned to London in 2021 as Medical Director at Kingston Hospital and was appointed as 
Chief Medical Officer to Hounslow & Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust and Kingston 
Hospital Foundation Trust in 2022. 
 
Kelvin Cheatle 
Director of Workforce and Organisational Development   
Appointed September 2016 
Kelvin is an experienced Workforce Director, having operated at director level for over 20 years 
in the public, voluntary and private sectors. His career includes working in local government, at 
Broadmoor Hospital and West London Mental Health Trust.  
 
Kelvin has also worked at Capsticks Solicitors and established and developed their HR Advisory 
Service leading work on complex employee relations, workforce modernisation and Speak Up 
initiatives. He was President of the HR Directors in the NHS Professional Association (HPMA) 
from 2008-2010, and is a Visiting Fellow at University College London where he teaches Strategic 
HR Management. 
 
In November 2021 Kelvin received the HPMA Lifetime Achievement Award, marking 25 years as 
a HRD in the NHS. 
 
Yarlini Roberts 
Chief Finance Officer 
Appointed as Interim Director of Finance in December 2019, appointed as substantive CFO from 
December 2020. 
Yarlini joined the Trust Board on 2nd December 2019 and brings 29 years’ experience in the NHS 
after qualifying as a Chartered Certified Accountant and a number of years in accounting practice.  
 
She has held several senior roles in NHS provider and commissioning organisations in South 
London, including Director of Financial Strategy for SW London Alliance. Yarlini worked as  
Director of Finance for Kingston and Richmond CCGs, and also supported the major Mental 
Health consultation in South West London in 2014 as Finance Lead. 
 
Samuel Armstrong 
Director of Corporate Affairs (Company Secretary - non-voting) 
Appointed March 2021 
Sam has worked in senior governance roles in the NHS for the past 13 years. He was previously 
Trust Secretary of the Royal Brompton and Harefield NHS Foundation Trust where he worked on 
the legal transaction merging the Trust with Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.  
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Sam started his NHS career as Trust Secretary of Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust, and 
subsequently Company Secretary of Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, and 
later Company Secretary of Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospital Trust. He has 
also worked in  similar roles in an interim capacity at hospital trusts across the country. Sam is a 
graduate of the Nye Bevan Programme at the NHS Leadership Academy, and has an MBA as 
well as qualifications in psychology.  
 
Alex Berry 
Director of Strategy & Transformation (non-voting) 
Appointed October 2018 
Alex joined the Trust in October 2018. Prior to that she was Director of Transformation for 
Hampshire Partnership of CCGs, where she focused on integrating health and care in the 
community setting.  
 
Alex also led on the development of the New Care Models Programme for the Hampshire and 
Isle of Wight STP. Alex started her career in the NHS as a management trainee and since then 
has worked in a variety of roles in the NHS and private sector. Over the last 10 years she has 
worked in a number of NHS director roles where she has led large complex change programmes. 
 
Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs  
Chair 
Appointed 1st April 2022 
After a competitive selection process run during 2021-22, and in conjunction with NHSE/I, 
Sukhvinder was appointed as Chair in Common of HRCH and Kingston Hospital. 
 
Sukhvinder was previously Vice Chair at Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust and Chair of the 
Thames Water Customer Challenge. She is also an accomplished CEO having led two high 
profile organisations (Barrow Cadbury and Runnymede Trust), through major change 
programmes and on to success in influencing government policies on inclusion, diversity and 
social justice. 
 

Register of Directors’ Interests 
 
The Register of Directors’ Interests is available for inspection during normal office hours at the 
Chief Executive’s office and is published on the Trust’s website. 

 
Fit and Proper Persons Test 
 
The Trust has put in place processes to ensure appointments to the Board meet the regulatory 
standards for the Fit and Proper Person Requirements of Directors which came into force for all 
NHS providers on 1st April 2015. Compliance with these regulations is integrated into the Care 
Quality Commission’s (CQC) registration requirements, and within the remit of their regulatory 
inspection approach. Appointments are made subject to acceptance of the Code of Conduct for 
NHS Managers. 
 

Performance Evaluation of the Board 
 
The annual appraisal of the Chair is undertaken by the Senior Independent Director and includes 
consideration of the views of Governors, Non-Executive and Executive Directors, and key 
external stakeholders. The performance of Non-Executive Directors is evaluated annually by the 
Chair and includes consideration of the views of Governors, Non-Executive and Executive 
Directors. The Nominations & Remuneration Committee receives assurance annually that the 
performance evaluation process for Non-Executive Directors and the Chair has been completed 
appropriately.  
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Executive Directors have an annual performance appraisal with the Chief Executive, and this 
includes consideration of the views of Non-Executive and Executive Directors, key external 
stakeholders and direct line management reports. The Chief Executive’s annual appraisal is 
conducted by the Chair and includes consideration of the views of Non-Executive and Executive 
Directors and key external stakeholders.  
 
The Remuneration Committee receives annual assurance that the performance evaluation 
process for the Executive Directors has been completed appropriately. 
 
Annual objectives are set for all members of the Board, taking into account the Trust’s values and 
its strategic and annual corporate objectives. Annual performance appraisal takes account of the 
extent to which each of these objectives has been met.  
 
Performance appraisals are used as the basis for determining individual and collective 
professional development programmes for all Directors relevant to their duties as Board 
members. 
 
Details of how the effectiveness of the Board’s governance processes is assessed can be found 
within the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

Single Oversight Framework  
 
NHS Improvement’s Single Oversight Framework provides the framework for overseeing 
providers and identifying potential support needs. 
 
The framework looks at five themes: 
 

• Quality of care  

• Finance and use of resources  

• Operational performance  

• Strategic change  

• Leadership and improvement capability (well-led)  
 
Segmentation  
 
Based on information from the themes of the Single Oversight Framework, providers are 
segmented from 1 to 4, where ‘4’ reflects providers receiving the most support, and ‘1’ reflects 
providers with maximum autonomy. A foundation trust will only be in segments 3 or 4 where it 
has been found to be in breach or suspected breach of its licence.  
 
As at the date of publication of this report, NHS Improvement has placed the Trust in segment 1.  
Current segmentation information for NHS trusts and foundation trusts is published on the NHS 
Improvement website.  
 
As noted above, NHSI segment individual trusts into four categories as follows: (1) Maximum 
autonomy; (2) Targeted support; (3) Mandated support; (4) Special measures; according to the 
level of support each trust needs.  
 

Well-Led Framework 
 
The Trust has had regard to NHS Improvement’s well-led framework in arriving at its overall 
evaluation of the organisation’s performance and in developing its approach to internal control, 
Board Assurance Framework and the governance of quality.  
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Further details are provided below and in the Annual Governance Statement. No material 
inconsistencies have been identified between the Annual Governance Statement, Corporate 
Governance Statement, Annual Report and reports arising from CQC planned and responsive 
reviews of the Trust and any subsequent action plans. 
 

Quality Governance 
 
Service quality is governed through the Board’s Quality Assurance Committee, the Patient Safety 
& Risk Management Committee and the Clinical Effectiveness Committee. Towards the end of 
the year, the Patient Safety & Risk Committee was split into a Patient Safety Committee and a 
Risk Management Committee, providing focused meetings to ensure further scrutiny on both 
areas of governance. The Council of Governors has an established a Quality Scrutiny Committee 
to enable the Council of Governors to fulfil its responsibilities representing the interests of 
stakeholders and for holding the Non-Executive Directors to account for the performance of the 
Board. 
 

Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) 
 
Introduction 
 
The Board is committed to an open and honest culture and recognises the importance of enabling 
staff to speak up about any concerns at work.  This enables a safe and transparent culture to be 
fostered, improving the working environment for staff, and subsequently the patient experience. 
It is vital we recognise the link between Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) and patient experience. 
The Trust policy adopted in 2016 remains in place, and is updated, reviewed and expanded as 
required. We ensured our available policy was accurate and as fit for purpose as possible for our 
staff and is reviewed regularly to ensure it still reflects those needs. This policy was one of a 
number of recommendations of the review by Sir Robert Francis into whistleblowing in the NHS, 
aimed at improving the experience of whistleblowing in the NHS and learning lessons from 
incidents.    
 
As a Trust, we encourage all staff to raise concerns as part of their everyday practice, clinical or 
otherwise, and FTSU forms part of a suite of services for staff to enable this. Concerns are 
endeavoured to be resolved informally through the management structure of the Trust. However, 
there are additional measures in place when this cannot be achieved. FTSU is one aspect of the 
services available for staff to raise concerns safely and effectively. It is essential that all staff have 
a good understanding of FTSU Guidian (FTSUG) role, as this is an additional method of support 
for staff and an alternative method for raising concerns. However, it’s essential staff are clear that 
this is not in place of existing Trust systems. The FTSUG acts as an independent and impartial 
source of advice to staff at any stage of raising a concern.  
 
The National Guardian’s Office asks Freedom to Speak Up Guardians in all trusts and foundation 
trusts for information on Freedom to Speak Up cases raised with them each quarter and the 
information is published on the National Guardian’s website:  
https://www.nationalguardian.org.uk/speaking-up-data/     
 
The data for the Trust shows an increase in the number of concerns being raised with the FTSUG 
throughout the year, and this appears to reflect staff views on the role, and the ongoing work 
around Speaking Up. The consistency and increase in training availability has meant a stark and 
positive increase in the number of staff accessing the role, and therefore raising their concern 
upon point of access, or being signposted and supported to a more relevant channel of support 
within the Trust. We have also seen a change in the staff groups raising concerns; as a Trust we 
have seen Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) staff raising concerns. This has previously 
been a staff group that have expressed fear and reticence about speaking up due to the concern 
that they would be treated unfairly. Supporting staff from all backgrounds continues to be a priority 
for the Guardian, and there is more work to do be to ensure maximum support for BAME staff.   

https://www.nationalguardian.org.uk/speaking-up-data/
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The next stage of progression for the role is to recruit Freedom to Speak Up Champions. 
Following a delay in the recruitment process due to the Covid-19 pandemic, we have now 
recruited our first FTSU Champion, with another two Champions starting in post in June 2022.  
 

Declarations 
 
Better Payment Practice Code: Subject to Audit 
 
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed Non-NHS 
invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is 
later. During 2021-22 the Trust paid 68% of non-NHS invoices within 30 days of receipt.   
 

 
The Trust has complied with the cost allocation and charging guidance issued by HM Treasury, 
has met the income disclosures as required by section 43(2A) of the NHS Act 2006 and did not 
make any political donations during 2021-22. 
 
At the time of writing the report, so far as all Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the company's auditor is unaware, and they have taken all the steps that are 
necessary as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and 
to establish that the Trust’s auditor is aware of that information. 
 
 
 
 
 

Better Payment Practice Code 2020/21 2021/22

Trade / NHS

Total bills paid in the year £000 14,172 15,444

Total bills paid within target £000 13,603 13,450

Percentage of bills paid within target 96.0% 87.1%

Total bills paid in the year number 1,153 1,521

Total bills paid within target number 899 961

Percentage of bills paid within target 78.0% 63.2%

Non-Trade / non-NHS

Total bills paid in the year £000 106,075 126,828

Total bills paid within target £000 68,530 81,715

Percentage of bills paid within target 64.6% 64.4%

Total bills paid in the year number 41,191 55,163

Total bills paid within target number 27,794 39,843

Percentage of bills paid within target 67.5% 72.2%
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STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF KINGSTON HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST  
 
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS foundation 
trust. The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the 
propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of 
proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum 
issued by NHS Improvement.  
 
NHS Improvement, in exercising of the powers conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, has 
given Accounts Directions which require Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for 
each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis required by those 
Directions. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, 
other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the financial year.  
 
In preparing the accounts and overseeing the use of public funds, the Accounting Officer is 
required to comply with the requirements of the Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 
and in particular to:  
 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 
consistent basis.  

• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis.  

• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual (and the Department of Health Group Accounting Manual) have 
been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements.  

• Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated 
authorities and guidance.  

• Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and 
stakeholders to assess the NHS foundation trust’s performance, business model and 
strategy, and  

• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material 
uncertainties over going concern.  

 
The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS foundation trust and to enable 
them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. 
The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS foundation 
trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.  
 
As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Foundation Trust’s 
auditors are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of 
that information. 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in 
the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.  
 

 
Jo Farrar 
Chief Executive Officer 
21 June 2022 
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Remuneration Report  

The narrative elements of the Remuneration Report are not subject to audit; the salary 
and pension information has been audited along with details on the median salary as a 
ratio of the highest paid Director’s remuneration. The Remuneration Report includes 
details of the remuneration paid to the Chair and voting Directors of the Trust Board (the 
‘senior managers’ who influence decisions of the Trust as a whole).   
 
Annual Statement on Remuneration  
 
Senior Managers who served during 2021-22 
 

Name Role  

Sian Bates Chair In post throughout 2021-22 

Dr Nav Chana MBE Non-Executive Director In post throughout 2021-22 

Jonathan Guppy Non-Executive Director In post throughout 2021-22 

Sylvia Hamilton Non-Executive Director In post throughout 2021-22 

Dr Rita Harris 
Non-Executive Director and  
Senior Independent Director 

In post throughout 2021-22 

Damien Régent Non-Executive Director In post throughout 2021-22 

Dame Cathy 
Warwick 

Non-Executive Director In post throughout 2021-22 

Jo Farrar Chief Executive  In post throughout 2021-22 

Sally Brittain Director of Nursing & Quality In post until 1 Sept 2021-22 

Nichola Kane Chief Nurse In post from 23 Aug 2021 

Kelvin Cheatle 
Director of Workforce and  
Organisational Development 

In post throughout 2021-22 

Amira Girgis Acting Medical Director In post 1 Apr 2020–30 Sep 21 

William Oldfield Medical Director In post from 1 Oct 2021 

Mairead McCormick 
Chief Operating Officer &  
Deputy Chief Executive 

In post throughout 2021-22 

Yarlini Roberts Chief Finance Officer In post throughout 2021-22 

 
The notice period for Executive Directors has been set at 6 months. Payments for loss of office 
are made on the basis of contractual requirements under employment law. 
 
Remuneration Committee 
 
The Remuneration Committee of the Board sets the remuneration for the Chief Executive and 
Executive Directors.  
 
Membership  
 
The Committee is: 
 

• Chaired by the Chair of the Board and attended by all Non-Executive Directors. 

• The Chief Executive attends all meetings except those at which their salary and terms and 
conditions are being discussed. 

• The Director of Workforce & Organisational Development attends the committee in an 
advisory capacity. 

• The Company Secretary attends the Committee to take minutes.  

• The Committee’s role is to decide the appropriate remuneration and terms of service for the 
Chief Executive and the other Executive Directors including: 
- All aspects of salary (including any performance related elements and/or bonuses). 
- Provision for other benefits including pensions. 
- Arrangements for termination of employment and other contractual terms, including 

assessment of associated risks. 
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The Committee also decides the remuneration and terms of service of Officer Members of the 
Board (and other senior employees) as are necessary to ensure they are rewarded fairly for their 
individual contribution to the Trust – having proper regard to the Trust’s circumstances and 
performance and to the provisions of any national arrangements for such members and staff 
where appropriate.  
 
Attendance at Remuneration Committee Meetings 
 
During 2021-22 the Remuneration Committee met on 5 occasions. 
 
Name  Position  Attendance 

Sian Bates  Chair  5/5 

Dr Nav Chana MBE Non-Executive Director 3/5 

Jonathan Guppy Non-Executive Director 3/5 

Sylvia Hamilton Non-Executive Director  5/5 

Dr Rita Harris Non-Executive Director 3/5 

Damien Régent Non-Executive Director 5/5 

Dame Cathy Warwick Non-Executive Director 4/5 

 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Nominations & Remuneration Committee considers the remuneration, allowances, appraisal 
process and other terms and conditions of office of the Chair and the Non-Executive Directors, 
taking into account benchmarking against other similar organisations including foundation trusts 
and taking specialist advice. The fees currently paid to the Chair and the NEDs were last agreed 
in June 2019, effective from 1st April 2019.  
 
Agreed membership of the Committee for the majority of 2021-22 was as shown below. In July 
2021 the Council of Governors approved the expansion of the Committee to include a staff 
governor. 
 

• Chair of the Foundation Trust, who chairs the Committee  

• Lead Governor of the Council of Governors  

• Deputy Lead Governor of the Council of Governors 

• One other elected Governor  

• A Staff Governor 

• One appointed Governor  

• Other Governors as appointed by the Council of Governors  

• The Senior Independent Director is in attendance and chairs the Committee when matters 
associated with the Chair are considered 

• The Director of Workforce & Organisational Development is in attendance in an advisory 
capacity  

• The Company Secretary is in attendance in an advisory capacity and to take minutes  
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Attendance at Nominations & Remuneration Committee Meetings  
 
In 2021-22 the Nominations & Remuneration Committee met three times.  
 
Name  Position  Attendance 

Sian Bates  Chair  3/3 

Felicity Merz Elected Governor 2/3 

Richard Allen  Elected Public Governor (retired Nov 2021) 2/2 

Dr Naz Jivani  Appointed Governor  2/3 

Frances Kitson  Lead Governor (retired Nov 2021) 2/2 

Jack Saltman Elected Public Governor 3/3 

Geoffrey Shorter Elected Governor  2/3 

Cathy Maker  Deputy Lead Governor for 2 meetings,  
Lead Governor for 1 meeting  

3/3 

Bonnie Green Elected Governor (Deputy Lead Governor for 1 meeting) 1/1 

Alison Dicks Staff Governor  2/2 

Catherine Okonkwo Elected Governor  0/3 

 
The gross pay for Sian Bates as Chair of the Trust for the period ending 31st March 2022 was 
£50,000. The gross pay for each of the Non-Executive Directors was £15,000.   
 
When considering the appointment or re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Council of 
Governors takes into account the qualifications, skills and experience required for each position. 
There were no new appointments of Non-Executive Directors during the year. However, in March 
2022, the Council of Governors, on recommendation from the Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee, extended the terms of Nav Chana, Sylvia Hamilton and Rita Harris to 30th September 
2022 by written resolution.   
 
The Trust’s Constitution states that the Council of Governors can remove the Chair or a Non-
Executive Director, provided that the resolution to remove the individual has the approval of three-
quarters of the members of the Council. The Council has not invoked this clause during the 
financial year.  
 
Senior Managers’ Remuneration Policy 
 

Element  Purpose and Link to Strategic 
Objectives 

Operation Performance Framework 

Base 
Salary  

Provides fixed remuneration for 
the role, which reflects the size 
and scope of the Executive 
Director’s responsibilities. 
Benchmarked against the NHS 
Boardroom Pay Report and set 
so as to attract and retain the 
high-calibre talent necessary to 
deliver the business strategy. 

Reviewed by the  
Remuneration 
Committee.  

Individual and business 
performance are considerations 
in setting base salaries and in 
deciding on any increase in 
salary. 

Taxable 
Benefits 

N/A N/A N/A 

Retirement 
benefits 

To provide post-retirement 
benefits. 

Pensions are in 
compliance with the 
rules of the NHS 
Pension Scheme. 

 

Long-term 
incentives 

N/A N/A N/A 

 
There are no obligations within the service contracts of senior managers which could give rise to, 
or impact on, remuneration payments or payments for loss of office which are not disclosed in 
the Remuneration Report. 
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Chair and Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy 
 
Elements of Pay Purpose and Link to Strategy Operation 

 
Basic 
Remuneration  

 
To attract and retain high 
performing Non-Executive Directors 
who can provide the Board with a 
breadth of experience and 
knowledge. 

 
Reviewed by the Nominations & 
Remuneration Committee who make 
recommendations to the Council of 
Governors. 

 
There are no provisions for the recovery of sums paid to directors or for withholding the payments 
of sums to senior managers.   
 
Expenses 
 
No senior managers claimed expenses during 2021-22. No Governors claimed expenses during 
2020-21. 
 
Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers: Subject to Audit 
 
 

 
 
 
 

a) Remuneration 2021/22

Name and Title

Salary

Expense 

payments 

(taxable)

Performance 

pay and 

bonuses

Long-term 

performance   

pay and 

bonuses

All pension-

related 

benefits Total

(bands of 

£5,000)

to the nearest 

£100

(bands of 

£5,000)

(bands of 

£5,000)

(bands of 

£2,500)

(bands of 

£5,000)

£000 £ £000 £000 £000 £000

Jo Farrar (Chief Executive Officer) *** 120-125 42.5-45 165-170
Yarlini Roberts (Chief Finance Officer) 140-145 77.5-80 220-225
Mairead McCormick (Chief Operating Officer) 155-160 90-92.5 245-250
Amira Girgis (Acting Medical Director to 30th September 2021) * 100-105 50-52.5 150-155
William Oldfield (Medical Director from 1st October 2021) ** 100-105 47.5-50 150-155

Sally Brittain (Director of Nursing and Quality to 30th September 2021) 70-75 -2.5-0 65-70

Nichola Kane (Chief Nurse from 23rd August 2021) **** 50-55 62.5-65 115-120
Kelvin Cheatle (Director of Workforce) 115-120 115-120
Sian Bates (Chair & Non-Executive Director to 31st March 2022) 45-50 45-50
Sylvia Hamilton (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15
Jonathan Guppy (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15
Dr Rita Harris (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15
Dr Navnit Chana MBE (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15
Dame Cathy Warwick DBE (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15
Damien Régent (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

*          The Acting Medical Director's total remuneration included £49k that was related to her non-managerial role

**        The Medical Director's total remuneration included £23k that was related to his non-managerial role

***      The salary and benefits of the Chief Executive Officer were jointly funded by Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust. The numbers presented above reflect only the amounts paid by Kingston 

Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. The Chief Executive Officer's total salary fell within the band 195-200k, total pension related benefits fell within the band 62.5-65k and grand total remuneration fell within the band 265-270k.

****    The salary and benefits of the Chief Nurse were jointly funded by Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust. The numbers presented above reflect only the amounts paid by Kingston Hospital 

NHS Foundation Trust. The Chief Nurse's total salary fell within the band 85-90k, total pension related benefits fell within the band 75-77.5k and grand total remuneration fell within the band 160-165k.
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a) Remuneration 2020/21

Name and Title

Salary

Expense 

payments 

(taxable)

Performance 

pay and 

bonuses

Long-term 

performance   

pay and 

bonuses

All pension-

related 

benefits Total

(bands of 

£5,000)

to the nearest 

£100

(bands of 

£5,000)

(bands of 

£5,000)

(bands of 

£2,500)

(bands of 

£5,000)

£000 £ £000 £000 £000 £000

Jo Farrar (Chief Executive Officer) 180-185 75-77.5 255-260

Yarlini Roberts (Chief Finance Officer from 1st December 2020, previously Interim Director of Finance) 130-135 97.5-100 225-230

Mairead McCormick (Chief Operating Officer) 140-145 37.5-40 180-185

Amira Girgis (Acting Medical Director from 1st April 2020) * 205-210 42.5-45 245-250

Sally Brittain (Director of Nursing and Quality) 125-130 25-27.5 150-155

Kelvin Cheatle (Director of Workforce) 105-110 105-110

Sian Bates (Chair & Non-Executive Director) 45-50 45-50

Sylvia Hamilton (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

Jonathan Guppy (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

Dr Rita Harris (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

Dr Navnit Chana MBE (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

Dame Cathy Warwick DBE (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15
Damien Régent (Non-Executive Director) 10-15 10-15

*       The Acting Medical Director's total remuneration included £18k that was related to her non-managerial role

b) Pension Benefits 2021/22

Name and title 
Real increase 

in pension at 

pension age

Real increase 

in pension 

lump sum at 

pension age

Total accrued 

pension at 

pension age at 

31 March 2022

Lump sum at 

pension age 

related to 

accrued 

pension at 31 

March 2022

Cash 

equivalent 

transfer value 

at 1 April 2021

Real increase 

in cash 

equivalent 

transfer value

Cash 

equivalent 

transfer value 

at 31 March 

2022

Employer's 

contribution 

to stakeholder 

pension

(bands of 

£2500)

£000

(bands of 

£2500)

£000

(bands of 

£5000)

£000

(bands of 

£5000)

£000

£000 £000 £000 £000

Jo Farrar (Chief Executive Officer) 2.5-5 0-2.5 45-50 65-70 675 77 755 26

Yarlini Roberts (Chief Finance Officer) 2.5-5 5-7.5 45-50 100-105 811 93 908 20

Mairead McCormick (Chief Operating Officer) 5-7.5 5-7.5 60-65 130-135 1,037 109 1,151 22
Amira Girgis (Acting Medical Director to 30th September 2021) 5-7.5 7.5-10 55-60 115-120 911 109 1,025 19
William Oldfield (Medical Director from 1st October 2021) 5-7.5 5-7.5 65-70 90-95 1,064 119 1188 11

Sally Brittain (Director of Nursing and Quality to 30th September 2021) * 0-2.5 0 n/a n/a 1,081 n/a n/a 10

Nichola Kane (Chief Nurse from 23rd August 2021) 5-7.5 12.5-15 30-35 65-70 436 114 552 17

* Retired

b) Pension Benefits 2020/21

Name and title 

Real 

increase 

in pension 

at pension 

age

Real 

increase 

in pension 

lump sum 

at pension 

age

Total accrued 

pension at 

pension age 

at 31 March 

2021

Lump sum at 

pension age 

related to 

accrued 

pension at 31 

March 2021

Cash 

equivalent 

transfer value 

at 1 April 2020

Real increase 

in cash 

equivalent 

transfer value

Cash 

equivalent 

transfer value 

at 31 March 

2021

Employer's 

contribution 

to stakeholder 

pension

(bands of 

£2500)

£000

(bands of 

£2500)

£000

(bands of 

£5000)

£000

(bands of 

£5000)

£000
£000 £000 £000 £000

Jo Farrar (Chief Executive Officer) 2.5-5 2.5-5 40-45 65-70 583 83 675 26

Yarlini Roberts (Chief Finance Officer from 1st December 2020, previously Interim Director of Finance) 5-7.5 7.5-10 40-45 90-95 693 107 811 19

Mairead McCormick (Chief Operating Officer) 2.5-5 0-2.5 55-60 125-130 960 60 1,037 20

Amira Girgis (Acting Medical Director) 2.5-5 0-2.5 50-55 105-110 837 61 911 18

Sally Brittain (Director of Nursing and Quality) 0-2.5 5-7.5 45-50 145-150 999 65 1081 18
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Fair Pay Multiple - Subject to Audit 
 
NHS Foundation Trusts are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest paid director in their organisation and the lower quartile, median and upper quartile 
remuneration of the organisation's workforce. 
 
The banded remuneration of the highest-paid director in the organisation in the financial year 
2021-22 was £195-200k (2020-21, £205k-£210k). This is a change between years of minus 4.8%. 
 
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits in kind 
but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash 
equivalent transfer value of pensions. 
 
For employees of the Trust as a whole, the range of remuneration in 2021-22 was from £18,754 
to £270,828 (2020-21, from £21,789 to £211,405). The percentage change in average employee 
remuneration (based on total for all employees on an annualised basis divided by full time 
equivalent number of employees) between years is 5.5%. Four employees received remuneration 
in excess of the highest paid director in 2021-22. This was chiefly due to substantial overtime 
worked. 
 
The remuneration of the employee at the 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile is set out 
below. The pay ratio shows the relationship between the total pay and benefits of the highest paid 
director (excluding pension benefits) and each point in the remuneration range for the 
organisation’s workforce. 
 

 
 
2021-22 agency usage and costs reflect the resources employed to manage the impact of Covid-
19 and delivery of the Elective Recovery Programme. The prime focus of the Trust was to ensure 
delivery of safe and effective patient care, always ensuring patient needs were at the forefront of 
any decisions. As a result, the cost of groups of agency staff varied significantly throughout the 
year and inclusion of agency cost to calculate the median pay would disproportionately skew the 
median pay number, not allowing for meaningful comparison with previous years. For 2021-22 
(and 2020-21 prior year comparative) we have therefore excluded agency staff costs from the 
median pay calculations. 
 

 
 

 
 
Jo Farrar       Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs   
Chief Executive Officer    Chair      
21 June 2022      21 June 2022  

 



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

36 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Staff Numbers and Gender Profile 
 
The average whole-time equivalent employed by the Trust is 3,280 in the following staff groups, 
as per the NHS Digitals Occupational Code Manual: 
 
Average Substantive Staff (WTE) by Staff Group 

 
 
Permanently Employed and Other 
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The tables below show the gender split for the Directors, Senior Leaders and Employees.  
 
Directors (VSM Payscale) as at 31st March 2022 

 
 
 

Senior Leaders in the Trust as at 31st March 2022 

 
 
Employees in the Trust as at 31st March 2022 

 
 

None of the data above includes Medical and Dental staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employee benefits

Group 31 

March 2021

£000

Permanently 

employed

Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 173,018 -                  173,018 169,098

Social security costs 19,131 -                  19,131 18,728

Apprenticeship levy 850 -                  850 790

18,152 -                  18,152 17,217

7,913 -                  7,913 7,505

Bank and Agency -                  11,977 11,977 7,903

Charitable Funds 186              -                  186              179

219,250 11,977 231,227 221,420

(1,452) (385) (1,837) (1,249) 

217,798 11,592 229,390 220,171

Group 31 March 2022

Pension cost - employer contributions paid by NHSE 

on provider's behalf (6.3%)

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme

Gross employee benefits

Less:  Employee costs capitalised

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

Total 

Number
%

Female 6            50%

Male 6            50%

Total 12          

*not including Non-Executive Directors and Chairman

Total 

Number
%

Female 84          76%

Male 26          24%

Total 110        

*Band 8b and above (excluding VSM Payscale and Board Members)

Total 

Number
%

Female 2,370     80%

Male 581        20%

Total 2,951     
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Gender Pay Gap Report  
 
Under The Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017, the Trust is 
required to report annually information relating to gender pay gap within the organisation. 
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust reported its gender pay gap on 31st March 2022. The 
full report can be found at: 
https://kingstonhospital.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity-reports/ 
 

Staff Policies and Action Applied during the Financial Year 
 
Virtual meetings have continued throughout 2021-22 with limiting restrictions on face to 
face meetings continuing due to the pandemic. During this period all existing staff policies 
have continued to apply and where they have needed revision these revisions have taken 
place in consultation with our trade union partners. The Partnership Agreement sets out 
the Trust’s commitment to communicate, consult and negotiate with staff and their 
representatives on matters that affect their interests. The Trust has formal mechanisms 
in place to facilitate these processes, including the Trust Partnership Forum, the Local 
Negotiating Committee for Doctors and the Junior Doctors Forum. 
 
Staff engagement throughout the pandemic has remained a key priority for the Trust and 
a range of different communication and feedback sessions have continued such as: 
 
• Global emails 
• Chief Executive’s weekly newsletters 
• Staff briefings 
• Intranet 
• Schwartz Rounds 
• Health and Wellbeing newsletters, postcards, leaflets and toolkits 
• Supporting our staff events at lunchtimes on topics such as burnout and 

menopause 
 
Staff networks have also continued to meet virtually. The Trust has the following staff 
networks: 
 
• Kingston Pride for LGBT+ staff 
• Kingston Ability – which focuses on the needs of staff who live with or care for a 

person with disabilities  
• MEGA, the Minority Ethnic Group for All, which is designed to support staff from 

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic backgrounds but is open to all staff 
 
Moving forward, it is hoped that there can soon be a return to more face to face interaction 
which will support the process of engagement and help to facilitate meaningful 
consultation and engagement.  
 
  

https://kingstonhospital.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity-reports/
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NHS Staff Survey Report  
 
Staff engagement is a key priority for the Trust and the staff survey, along with regular additional 
‘Pulse’ surveys, help to inform local strategies for staff wellbeing and improving staff experience. 
The Trust had a response rate of 69% which, although it was less than the year before, was 23% 
better than the median response rate of 46% for acute and community trusts. 
 
Response Rate 
 

  
 
For the 2021 survey onwards, the questions in the NHS Staff Survey are aligned to the People 
Promise. This sets out, in the words of NHS staff, the things that would most improve their working 
experience, and is made up of seven elements as outlined below: 
 
In support of this, the results of the NHS Staff Survey are now measured against the seven People 
Promise elements and against two of the themes reported in previous years (Staff Engagement 
and Morale). The reporting also includes new sub-scores, which feed into the People Promise 
elements and themes. 
  

• completed questionnaires for KHFT2,433

• 2021 response rate for KHFT69%
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People Promise 1 - We are compassionate and inclusive 
 
Within this promise area there are 4 sub sections, the scores of which are detailed below: 
 
 

 
 
Key highlights are: 
 

• There is a strong compassionate culture within the Trust, scoring .2 above the average and 
with 62.1% recommending the Trust as a place to work (better than the average 58.4%). 
74.8% would also be happy with the standard of care for a friend or relative (average 66.9%) 

• Compassionate leadership scored only .3 below the average. However, the sub-questions 
do highlight that more work is required in this area in relation to management as 64.7% of 
staff felt that their manager is interested in listening when they describe challenges compared 
to the average of 67.9% and a best score of 76.3%. 

• Diversity and equality was .2 below the average. However, 69.3% felt that the Trust respects 
individual differences (e.g. cultures, working styles, backgrounds, ideas, etc.) which was 
better than the average 68.8%. Further focus is needed in relation to career progression and 
discrimination experienced by staff.  

• The inclusion score was the same as the average and 69.6% felt that the people they work 
with are understanding and kind to one another (better than the average 68.9%) and 71.8% 
felt that people they worked with are polite and treat each other with respect (average 70.2%) 

 
People Promise 2 - We are recognised and rewarded 
 
There are no sub-themes within this area but some of the sub-questions are detailed below: 
 

• 65.8% felt that the people they worked with showed appreciation to one another (same as 
average of 65.8%) 

• 39.9% felt that the Trust valued their work (average of 40.7%) 

• 46.1% felt that they got recognition for good work (average of 50.5%) 
 
Whilst the overall score was not significantly worse than the average in this area, the sub-
questions do highlight that further actions will need to be taken in relation to recognition and 
reward. 
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People Promise 3 - We each have a voice that counts 
 
There are two sub-themes within this section that contribute towards the overall score. 
 

 
 
Within these two sub-themes the responses highlighted the following: 
 

• In relation to autonomy and control, staff need further clarification around what their 
responsibilities are (84.6% compared to an average of 86.3%) and to feel they are trusted 
and can take the initiative. The results also highlighted that further actions need to be taken 
to involve staff in improvements and changes. 

• Staff are confident that the Trust would address their concerns (58.9% compared to the 
average of 57.6%) yet only 70.5% are secure about raising concerns in relation to unsafe 
clinical practice (compared to an average of 73.9%), so this will be a focus within the 
workplan. 

 
People Promise 4 - We are safe and healthy 
 
The three sub-themes results are detailed below. 
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Within questions which formed these sub themes the key highlights were: 
 

• Staff did not feel able to meet conflicting demands and did not feel there were enough staff 
(25.2% compared to the average of 26%) which has unsurprisingly deteriorated for all trusts 
since the 2020 results. The average in 2020 was 36.9%. 

• Staff did feel that positive action was taken in relation to their wellbeing at work (58.3% 
compared to 56.4%) but the reporting of violence and aggression suffered by staff whilst at 
work will need to be addressed further. 

• 42.7% of staff reported that they found work emotionally exhausting (37.7% average) with 
40.9% feeling burnt out (35.2% average). This is an area that is already being addressed 
with further actions already planned for 2022-23.  

• Work related stress has also seen an increase this year (49.6% compared to 44.6% last year) 
as well musculoskeletal issues. 

 
People Promise 5 - We are always learning 
 
The two sub-themes of development and appraisals are detailed below. 
 

 
 
Within development only 47.7% of staff felt that there were opportunities to develop their career 
within the Trust (average 52.1%) and actions are already underway to address this. In addition, 
opportunities to improve knowledge and skills as well as providing the opportunities to access 
them will need to be addressed. Appraisals were slightly better than the average with 80.5% of 
staff having been appraised in the last year (average 80.1%). Whilst 30.6% of staff felt it helped 
them to agree clear objectives (average 30.2%) and 22% felt it helped them to improve how they 
do the job (average 19.8%) the quality of appraisals will also need to be addressed. 
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People Promise 6 - We work flexibly 
 
The two sub-themes for this people promise are shown below. Support for work life balance is 
just below the average whilst flexible working is .4 above the average. 
 

 
 

Support for work life balance was overall .3% lower than the national average, and flexible 
working .4% lower. Within these some of the following aspects were highlighted: 
 

• 46.2% of staff felt that they achieved a good balance between work and home life (compared 
to an average of 51.1%) 

• 44.6% felt that there were opportunities for flexible working patterns (compared to an average 
of 51.8%) 

• 39.4% felt the Trust was committed to helping them balance their work and home life 
(compared to an average of 42.6%) 

 
Flexible working and agile working will be an ongoing focus as part of the action plan for the staff 
survey to ensure that staff are aware of the opportunities they have to balance their home and 
work commitments. 
 
People Promise 7 - We are a team 
 
Team working was the same as the average and line management scored slightly less than the 
average within the sub-themes. 
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Team working was the same as the average for the group with line management .2% lower. The 
responses to the questions highlighted the following: 
 

• 70.3% of staff felt that they received the respect from their colleagues at work that they 
deserved which was higher than the average of 69.7% and 79% of staff enjoy working with 
their colleagues in their team. 

• 53.2% felt that their team had enough freedom in how to do its work against an average of 
56.6%, so autonomy will be a focus for the Trust within its action plan. 

• 54.3% felt that team disagreements were dealt with constructively (average 54.7%). 

• 57.3% felt that teams work together to achieve their objectives which is over 5% higher than 
the national average of 52.2%. 

• 54% of staff felt that their immediate manager asks for opinions before making decisions that 
affected their work (average of 55.7%) and 64.6% felt their manager encouraged them at 
work (average 69%).  

 
These results highlight that a further focus on ensuring and improving line management 
arrangements and approaches will be necessary, especially following the many changes that 
staff have experienced throughout the pandemic in this area. 
 
Staff Engagement and Morale 
 
Staff engagement and morale are reported in line with previous years surveys. Staff engagement 
has decreased from 7.3 in 2020 to 6.8. However, the group average has also decreased to 6.8. 
Morale has also decreased from 6.1 in 2020 to 5.5 in 2021, with the average being 5.7.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prior to this staff engagement scores had been steady since 2017, averaging 7.3 over the 4 year 
period. Morale, reported since 2018, had been averaging around 6.0.  
 
Within these themes, were six sub-themes and the details of these scores are set out in the table 
below. Advocacy scored .3 higher than the average and within the sub-questions scored above 
average in all areas. Other subsets were lower on average. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

2

4

6

8

Staff Engagement Morale

6.8
5.5

6.8
5.7

Staff Engagement and Morale

KHFT Average



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

45 
 

Theme Sub Set KHFT Average 

Staff Engagement Motivation 6.7 7.0 

Staff Engagement Involvement 6.5 6.7 

Staff Engagement Advocacy 7.1 6.8 

Morale Thinking about leaving 5.5 6.0 

Morale Work Pressure 4.9 5.0 

Morale Stressors 6.1 6.2 

 
Highlighted below are some of the sub questions to these sub themes (all stated as a percentage 
of respondents): 
 
Staff Engagement – Motivation, Involvement and Advocacy 
 

• 47.3% look forward to going to work (worse than the average of 52%). 

• 72.5% feel that times passes quickly when they are at work (worse than the average of 
72.9%). 

• 70.9% feel that there are frequent opportunities to show initiative in their role (worse than 
the average of 72.4%). 

• 65.9% are able to make suggestions to improve the work of the team/ department (worse 
than the average of 69.8%). 

• 80.6% feel that the care of patients / service users is the Trust’s top priority (better than the 
average of 75.5%). 

• 62.1% would recommend the Trust as a place to work (better than the average of 58.4%). 

• 74.8% are happy with the standard of care provided by the Trust (better than the average 
of 66.9%). 

 
Covid-19 Classifications 
 
In this year’s Staff Survey, staff were asked to identify if they had either worked on a ward, been 
redeployed or been asked to work remotely/ from home. The graph below reflects the different 
categories of staff that responded against the people promise categories 
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In summary: 
 

• Staff that worked remotely or from home reported higher scores in all of the Promise area 
scores, except for learning. 

• Those that were redeployed or worked in a Covid-19-specific area reported higher in the 
learning promise. They scored the same in the having a voice category but lower in the 
others. 

• Those that were redeployed or worked on wards reported similar scores in most areas. 
 
Summary 
 
We are aware that staff are exhausted and have been affected personally as well as 
professionally by the pandemic. They have not had as much quality time with managers, nor time 
to access learning and development. Resources to do the job have been greatly impacted and 
many staff are reporting feelings of exhaustion and burnout. 
 
However, despite all these challenges, 62.1% of staff would still recommend Kingston as a place 
to work which is better than the national acute average of 58.4%, and 74.8% are happy with the 
standard of care provided by the Trust (compared to the average of 66.9%). It is clear that there 
is more that we need to do to support staff to improve their wellbeing and experience, and these 
will be addressed through clear priorities for action that build on the fundamental principles of 
autonomy, belonging  and competence. 
 
Priorities for Action 
 
The key priority areas for action in relation to the staff survey have been themed as follows: 
 

• Supporting staff to stay healthy and well 

• New ways of working and having the resources that I need 

• Enabling leaders to lead 

• Connecting the organisation 
 
We will be working through the actions required under the 4 pillars detailed and co-design with 
our staff the solutions that are needed, assessing impact as the plan progresses. Departments 
will also analyse their local priorities and develop local actions accordingly to address any specific 
themes that are highlighted. These will form part of the Trust’s Workforce Strategy, which will be 
monitored via the Executive Management Committee and the Trust Board. The Trust will monitor 
its success in addressing these areas through the feedback from the pulse surveys and the 
subsequent staff survey. 
 

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion 
 
In the last year, the Trust has introduced some key developments relating to our Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion agenda.  
 
Many urgent Equality, Diversity and Inclusion issues emerged from Covid-19. The 
disproportionate negative effect of the virus on people from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 
backgrounds has been a particular concern. We have also learned more about the challenges for 
people with disabilities of working remotely. We have required great flexibility in our workforce in 
order to transform our services to meet the recovery needs of those hospitalised as a result of 
Covid-19 and to provide a safe environment for those receiving care in all services. 
 
In the light of these events the Trust reviewed and strengthened its Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion Strategy to set ambitious goals for the next three years. Our Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion Committee has continued to meet throughout the year.  
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Membership of this group has been strengthened to reflect the need for strong and visible 
leadership to ensure lasting and effective change to our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
indicators and the lived experience of our staff and patients with protected characteristics. 
 
The Trust moved at pace throughout 2021-22 to implement the following actions: 
 

• The Trust is compliant against all its national reporting including Gender Pay Gap, Workforce 
Race Equality Standard, Workforce Disability Equality Standard and implemented actions 
plans to assist with further improvements. All our reports can be found on our Trust website: 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Reports - Kingston Hospital. 

• Growing our existing staff networks and developing new ones. 

• Embarking on a reverse mentoring programme for Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic staff. 

• Piloting Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic representation at interview panels for bands 7 and 
above.  

• Launched a pool of Diversity Champions. 

• Continuing our Rainbow Badge initiative within the Trust in support of our LGBT+ patients 
and staff. 

• Implementation of regular Listening Events to hear the experiences of our staff in relation to 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. 

• Offering compassionate leadership training to managers and offering an independent self-
compassion programme to all staff to help support them at work. 

• Strengthened the Equality, Diversity & Inclusion function to provide direct support to staff on 
a range of issues around race and culture, disability and bullying and harassment. 

• Established learning disability and patient involvement collaboratives that have provided 
opportunities for service users and staff to come together to discuss and explore issues and 
actions.   

• Secured funding to expand the Patient Experience team as well the recruitment of an Acute 
Liaison Learning Disability Practitioner, and a Dementia and Delirium Nurse. These roles 
provide more capacity to move forward the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion agenda from a 
patient and carer perspective.  

• Continued to identify and ‘flag’ people with an accessible information need.  

• Recruitment of an Acute Liaison Learning Disabilities Practitioner to ensure reasonable 
adjustments are made for patients where required. 

• Chaplaincy Services - the Chaplaincy Department continues to offer high quality pastoral and 
spiritual care to all patients, clients, carers and staff within the Trust and is available to all 
and welcomes referrals from colleagues and carers alike.  

 
Ethnicity of our Board Members 
 

Year of Annual Report Male Female White BAME Disability 

2012-13 4 6 10 0 0 

2013-14 8 10 18 0 0 

2014-15 6 8 13 1 0 

2015-16 7 11 17 1 0 

2016-17 7 10 16 1 0 

2017-18 7 13 19 1 0 

2018-19 5 11 14 2 0 

2019-20 6 12 15 3 0 

2020-21 7 9 13 3 0 

2021-22 8 7 12 3 0 
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Staff Turnover 
 
Staff Turnover – as of end of year 2021-22 is 17.03%. This is an increase of 5.29% from  
2020-21. 
 

Sickness Absence  
 
Overall figure for Mar-22 was 5.47%. 
 
Covid-19 sickness remains high in the Trust. 
 

Trade Union Facility Time  
 
The Trust is required to report annually showing the time spent by Trust employees carrying out 
their duties and activities as a trade union representative. Annual submission is required by the 
Trust by 31st July each year. The Trust’s submission for Trade union facility time for the period of 
1st April 2021 to 31 March 2022 is shown below. 
 
Trade Union Representatives and Full-Time Equivalents 
 

 Period of 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 

Number of employees within the Trust 1,501 to 5,000 

Number of trade union representatives  13 

FTE number of trade union representatives 10 

 
Percentage of Working Hours Spent on Facility Time 
 

 Period of 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 

Percentage of working hours spent on facility time by 
the Chair 

100% 

Percentage of working hours spent on facility time by all 
representatives 

1-50% 

 
 
Total Pay Bill and Facility Time Costs 
 

 Period of 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 

Total pay bill 229,390,000 

Total cost of facility time 47,437 

Percentage of pay spent on facility time 0.021% 

 
 
Paid Trade Union Activities 
 

 Period of 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 

Total number of hours representatives spend on paid 
facility time during period 

1,753 

Total number of hours representatives spend on paid 
trade union activities 

1,545 

Percentage of total paid facility time hours spent on 
paid trade union activities 

88.13% 
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Expenditure on Consultancy 
 
The Trust’s expenditure on consultancy during 2021-22 was £1,155,000 (it was £640,000 during 
2020-21). 
 
Off-payroll Engagements 
 
There were no off-payroll engagements of more than £245 per day, for duration of more than 6 
months, as at 31st March 2022. 
 
There were 13 individuals deemed “board members or other officials with significant financial 
responsibility” as at 31st March 2022. 
 
Exit Packages: Audited  
 

 Number of 
Compulsory 
Redundancies 

Cost of 
Compulsory 
Redundancies 
£ 

Number of 
Other 
Departures 
Agreed 

Cost of Other 
Departures 
Agreed 
£ 

Total 
Number of 
Exit 
Packages 

Total Cost 
of Exit 
Packages 
£ 

˂£10,000 - - - - - - 

£10,000 - 25,000 - - 2 34,757 2 34,757 

£25,001 - 50,000 - - - - - - 

£50,001 - 100,000 - - - - - - 

£100,001 - 150,000 - - - - - - 

£150,001 - 200,000 - - - - - - 

˃£200,000 - - - - - - 

Total - - 2 34,757 2 34,757 

 
Number and Cost of Persons Retiring on Ill Health Grounds 
 
Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the 
NHS Pension Scheme. Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are 
met by the Trust and not by the NHS Pension Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the 
NHS Pension Scheme and are not included in the Trust’s financial position. During the financial 
year 2021-22, there were no ill-health retirements (in 2020-21 there were three ill health 
retirements at a cost of £82k). 
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 
The Board of Directors “the Board” is responsible for the leadership of the Trust and for ensuring 
proper standards of corporate governance are maintained. The Board accounts for the 
performance of the Trust and consults on its future strategy with its members through the Council 
of Governors. The Board also acts as the Corporate Trustee for the Kingston Hospital Charity. 
 
The Board attaches great importance to ensuring that the Trust operates to high ethical and 
compliance standards. Kingston NHS Foundation Trust has applied the principles of the NHS 
Foundation Trust Code of Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS Foundation Trust 
Code of Governance, most recently revised in July 2014, is based on the principles of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012. The Board considers that the Annual Report and 
Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information 
necessary for patients, regulators and other stakeholders to assess the NHS Foundation Trust’s 
performance, operations and strategy. 
 

Governance Arrangements 
 
The Trust’s Constitution was ratified in May 2013 on Authorisation as a Foundation Trust. Further 
changes have been made as required by changes in legislation and governance practice. The 
latest version of the Constitution is available on the Trust’s website.   
 
The key responsibilities of the Board of Directors are to: 
 

• Provide leadership to the Trust in setting a framework of processes, procedures and controls 
which enable risk to be assessed and managed. 

• Ensure the Trust complies with its Licence, its Constitution, requirements set by NHS 
Improvement, and relevant statutory and contractual obligations. 

• Set the Trust’s vision, values, strategic aims and standards of conduct. 

• Ensure the quality and safety of the healthcare services provided by the Trust. 

• Put in place the necessary resources to deliver the Trust’s strategic objectives. 

• Ensure the Trust exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and economically. 
 
The Board has approved Standing Financial Instructions and a Scheme of Delegation and 
Reservation of Powers which outline the decisions that must be taken by the Board and the 
decisions that are delegated to the management of the Hospital. These documents include 
instructions on budgetary control, banking arrangements, contracts and tendering procedures, 
capital investment and security of the Trust’s property and data, delegated approval limits, annual 
accounts and reports, payroll, borrowing and investment, fraud and corruption, risk management 
and insurance. 
 
Board Directors, collectively and individually, have a legal duty to promote the success of the 
Trust to maximise the benefits for the population that it serves. They also have a duty to avoid 
conflict of interests, not to accept any benefits from third parties and declare interests in any 
transactions that involve the Trust. 
 
The duties and working practices of the Council of Governors are set out in the Trust’s 
Constitution, supplemented by guidance published by NHS Improvement on the roles and 
responsibilities of the Council of Governors.   
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The Council of Governors is not responsible for the day to day management of the organisation, 
which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors. The role of the Council of Governors includes: 
 

• Appointment or removal of the Chair and other Non-Executive Directors. 

• Approval of the appointment (by Non-Executive Directors) of the Chief Executive. 

• Deciding the remuneration, allowances and other terms and conditions of office of Non-
Executive Directors. 

• Appointment or removal of the Foundation Trust’s financial auditors. 

• Review and development of the Trust’s membership strategy. 
 
A formal procedure is in place (see Annex 7B to the Trust’s Constitution) should there be a dispute 
between the Board and Council of Governors. The Council of Governors also has access to the 
Senior Independent Director and to NHS Improvement, should there be any concerns which 
cannot be resolved with the Board in the course of normal business. Within the Constitution (see 
Annex 5) the Council of Governors has agreed clear and fair processes for the removal of any 
Governor who fails to carry out their duties appropriately. 
 
Further information about the Board of Directors and Council of Governors is outlined below. 
 
Directors 
 
The biographies of the Directors who held office during the year appear on in the Directors’ 
Report. 
 
Chair 
 
The Chair of the Trust until 31st March 2022 was Sian Bates, a Non-Executive Director who 
chaired the Council of Governors and the Board. The Chair was appointed for an exceptional 
third term of office following the Council of Governors’ decision that her reappointment for a 
further 2 years was essential to enable her to embed the arrival of a new CEO, escalate the 
integration agenda and steer the development of the Trust beyond the CQC awarding an 
Outstanding rating. The Council of Governors agreed to the extension of this third term of office 
to 31st March 2022. NHS Improvement was consulted and endorsed the Council of Governors’ 
decision prior to both the reappointment and the extension being confirmed. With the support of 
the Council of Governors and the Trust Board, the Chair was appointed Chair in Common with 
Hounslow & Richmond Community Health Trust with effect from 1st February 2020, and this term 
of office ran concurrently to 31st March 2022. The Council of Governors agreed that the role in 
future would continue as a Chair in Common, and continued this when recruiting Sukhvinder 
Kaur-Stubbs, who became Chair from 1st April 2022. 
 
Deputy Chair 
 
The Board has not appointed a Deputy Chair. When the Chair is absent, one of the Non-Executive 
Directors is nominated to act as Deputy during that period.   
 
Senior Independent Director 
 
The Senior Independent Director (SID) provides an alternative route for communication with 
Governors if they feel unable to raise a particular concern through the Chair. The Senior 
Independent Director also undertakes the Chair’s appraisal, after seeking feedback from the rest 
of the Board, and from Governors and partners. Dr Rita Harris carried out this role during 2021-
22. 
  



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

52 
 

The Board 

The Board continued to hold to the scheduled timetable of Board meetings throughout 2021-22.  
These meetings continued to be conducted via MS Teams, as it had done in the previous year 
due to the pandemic. Members of the public were able to observe these meetings and Board 
meetings continued to be recorded and the recordings made available on the Trust’s website until 
the following meeting. Questions from the public were invited before the meetings took place and, 
once observation of the meetings was possible, questions were also taken at the end of Board 
meetings.  
 
Trust Board meetings follow a formal agenda, and during 2021-22 continued to include a review 
of quality and patient care, and operational performance against quality indicators set by the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC), and NHS Improvement. Agendas were shortened to focus on 
essential items only in accordance with NHSE/I direction to reduce burden and release capacity 
to manage the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
The Directors have timely access to all relevant quality management, financial and regulatory 
information. Formal minutes of Board meetings are taken. On being appointed to the Board, 
Directors are fully briefed on their responsibilities. Ongoing development and training 
requirements for individual Directors are assessed annually through the appraisal process, with 
the Chair leading on collective Board development. During 2021-22 there were no occasions on 
which Directors could not resolve concerns about the running of the Trust or a proposed action 
which would have required recording in the Board minutes. 
 
Directors’ Remuneration 
 
Details of the Directors’ remuneration, fees and expenses for the year and their service contracts 
and Letters of Appointment are set out in the Remuneration Report. The accounting policies for 
pensions and other retirement benefits are set out in Note 9 to the accounts. 
 
Appointment, Re-selection and the Nominations Committee 
 
The Non-Executive Directors are responsible for assessing the size, structure and skill 
requirements of the Board, and for considering any changes necessary or new appointments. If 
a need is identified in the case of an Executive Appointment, the Remuneration Committee, which 
comprises the Chair and the Non-Executive Directors assisted by the Director of Workforce, will 
produce a job description, decide if external recruitment consultants are required to assist in the 
process and if so instruct the selected agency, shortlist and interview candidates. If the vacancy 
is for a Non-Executive Director, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee comprising 
members of the Council of Governors and the Chair, with the Senior Independent Director, the 
Director of Workforce and the Company Secretary in attendance, considers the matter.   
 
Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a three-year term in office. A Non-Executive Director 
can be re-appointed for a second three-year term in office on an uncontested basis, subject to 
the recommendation of the Nominations & Remuneration Committee and the approval of the 
Council of Governors. In accordance with the NHS Code of Governance, Non-Executive Directors 
who have served 6 years can be appointed for a further year at a time by the Council of 
Governors.   
 
A Non-Executive Director’s term in office may, in exceptional cases, be extended beyond a 
second term on a case-by-case basis by the Council of Governors, subject to a formal 
recommendation from the Chair, satisfactory performance, and the needs of the Board, without 
the Trust having to go through open process. Removal of the Chair or another Non-Executive 
Director shall require the approval of three-quarters of the members of the Council of Governors. 
 
 



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

53 
 

The Chair, other Non-Executive Directors, and the Chief Executive (except in the case of the 
appointment of a new Chief Executive) are responsible for deciding the appointment of Executive 
Directors. The Chair and the other Non-Executive Directors are responsible for the appointment 
and removal of the Chief Executive, whose appointment requires the approval of the Council of 
Governors.  
 
Directors and their Independence 
 
At the end of the financial year, the Board comprised the Chair, Chief Executive, five voting 
Executive Directors, six voting Non-Executive Directors and two non-voting Directors. The Board 
has assessed the independence of the Non-Executive Directors and considers that there are no 
relationships or circumstances that are likely to affect their independent judgement. The Board, 
having endorsed the appointment of the Chair as Chair in Common for the Trust and Hounslow 
and Richmond Community Health NHS Trust, discussed the potential that a conflict of interest 
may arise and considered how this should be addressed. The Board noted that the Trust’s 
Constitution, and the provisions of the NHS Act 2006 on which it was based, permitted directors 
to have conflicts of interest where these were authorised by the Board.  
 
The Board recognised that the Chair’s role as Chair in Common across the two Trusts did 
represent a potential conflict of interest, but agreed that this could exist on the basis that: 
 

• The appointment would assist with facilitating closer collaboration between the hospital and 
the Community Trust, with potentially significant benefit to the patients of both organisations;  

• The appointment was made and supported by NHS England and NHS Improvement; and 

• The Trust’s Council of Governors, while acknowledging the challenges involved, were 
supportive of the Chair fulfilling the role of Chair in Common.  
 

In addition, the Board acknowledged that the Chair would formally declare any explicit conflicts 
of interest in matters to be discussed and agreed by the Board or its Committees, and the SID 
would also oversee any potential conflicts of interest in conjunction with the Trust Secretary. 
 
Register of Directors’ Interests 
 
All Directors have made declarations in accordance with the Trust’s Register of Interests Policy. 
At each meeting Directors are reminded to declare interests in matters to be discussed and any 
declarations made are recorded in the minutes. The Register of Directors’ interests is available 
for inspection during normal office hours at the Chief Executive’s office and is published on the 
Trust’s website (Register of Conflicts of Interest Archives - Kingston Hospital). 
 
Trust Auditors 
 
The Council of Governors agree with the Audit Committee the criteria for appointing, re-appointing 
and removing external auditors. Following a competitive tender process for both external and 
internal audit contracts with effect from 1st April 2021, KPMG have been reappointed as the 
Trust’s internal auditors and the Council of Governors has approved the reappointment of Grant 
Thornton as the Trust’s external auditors.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://kingstonhospital.nhs.uk/tag/coi/
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Board Committees 
 
The following committees report to the Trust Board: 
 

• Quality Assurance Committee 

• Finance & Investment Committee 

• Audit Committee 

• Workforce Committee 

• Remuneration Committee 

• Charitable Funds Committee 

• Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Committee 
 
Details of the roles of these Committees are included in the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings 2021-22 
  
The table below sets out the number of Trust Board meetings and the number of Board committee 
meetings held during the year, together with the number of meetings attended by each Board and 
committee member.  
 

 
  

Trust 
Board 

Audit 
Committee 

Equality, 
Diversity & 
Inclusion 

Committee 

Finance &  
Investment 
Committee 

Quality 
Assurance 
Committee 

Workforce 
Committee 

Total number of meetings 
held in 2021-22 

6 5 6 11 5 3 

Sian Bates  6/6  5   3 

Sally Brittain  2/2    2/2 2/2 

Nic Kane  3/4    3/3 1/1 

Dr Nav Chana  6/6    5  

Kelvin Cheatle  6/6  6   3 

Jo Farrar  6/6  4 9   

Amira Girgis  3/3   6/6 2/2 2/2 

Jonathan Guppy  5/6   11   

Sylvia Hamilton  6/6  5 11  3 

Dr Rita Harris  6/6 5 6  5  

Mairead McCormick   5/6   9  2 

Damien Régent  6/6 5     

Yarlini Roberts  6/6   11   

Dame Cathy Warwick  6/6 4 6 11 5  

William Oldfield  3/3    3/3 1/1 

 
* Quorum for QAC is shared between Director of Nursing & Quality and Medical Director.   
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Attendance at Council of Governors Meetings  
  
The following table sets out the members of the Council of Governors during 2021-22 and the 
number of Council of Governors meetings attended by each member. Elections were held in 
November 2021. Therefore, this register shows attendance of both outgoing and incoming 
members who were in post during the year. 
 

Name  
 

Appointing Organisation / 
Constituency 

Term of Office 
No. of CoG 
Meetings 
Attended 

Richard Allen Elected Governor, Kingston 
Elected Nov 2012.  
Re-elected Nov 2015 and Nov 2018-21 

3/3 

Ash Neil-Gallacher Elected Governor, Kingston Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Anne Blanche Elected Governor, Kingston Elected Nov 2020-23 2/4 

Michelle Deans Elected Governor, Kingston 
Elected Nov 2017.   
Re-elected Nov 2020-23 

3/4 

Frances Kitson Elected Governor, Kingston 
Elected Nov 2012 (Richmond).  
Elected (Kingston) Nov 2015-18 and  
Nov 2018-21.   

3/3 

James Giles Elected Governor, Kingston  
Elected Nov 2018-21 
 

0/3 

Raju Pandya Elected Governor, Kingston  
Elected Nov 2018-21.  
Re-elected 2021-2024 

3/4 

Bonnie Green Elected Governor, Richmond 
Elected Nov 2015.  Re-elected Nov 
2018-21. Re-elected 2021-24 

4/4 

Cathy Maker Elected Governor, Richmond 
Elected Nov 2017-20.  
Re-elected Nov 2020-23 

3/4 

Isabella Donnelly Elected Governor, Richmond Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Susan Smith Elected Governor, Richmond Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Catherine Okonkwo 
Elected Governor, Rest of 
Surrey and Greater London 

Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Geoffrey Shorter Elected Governor, Merton Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

CJ Kim Elected Governor, Elmbridge  
Elected Nov 2014-17. Re-elected Nov 
2017-20 and Nov 2020-23. 

4/4 

Jack Saltman Elected Governor, Elmbridge  
Elected Nov 2015.  Re-elected Nov 
2018-21. Re-elected Nov 2021-24 

4/4 

Felicity Merz Elected Governor, Wandsworth 
Elected Nov 2017.  
Re-elected Nov 2020-23 

3/4 

Vacancy  Elected Governor, Sutton Not filled in November 2021 - 

Dr Naz Jivani 
Appointed Governor   
SW London CCG 

Appointed April 2020-23 3/4 

Councillor  
Rowena Bass 

Appointed Governor   
Royal Borough of Kingston 
upon Thames  

Appointed Oct 2018-21.  
Re-appointed Nov 2021-24 

2/4 

Councillor  
Margaret Thompson  

Appointed Governor   
Royal Borough of Kingston 
upon Thames 

Appointed May 2013, May 2016,  
May 2019-22 

4/4 

Councillor  
Piers Allen 

Appointed Governor  
London Borough of Richmond  

Appointed Nov 2018-22.  
Re-appointed 2022-25 

4/4 

Councillor  
Drew Heffernan 
 

Appointed Governor 
London Borough of Sutton for 
Sutton and Merton Borough 
Councils (joint nomination)  

Appointed Jul 2018-21.  
Re-appointed Jul 2021-24 

2/4 
 

Dr Julia Gale 
Appointed Governor  
Kingston University 

Appointed Nov 2013, Nov 2016,  
Nov 2019-22 

3/4 
 

Councillor  
George Crivelli 

Appointed Governor  
Wandsworth Borough Council 

Appointed Nov 2020-23 4/4 



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

56 
 

Name  
 

Appointing Organisation / 
Constituency 

Term of Office 
No. of CoG 
Meetings 
Attended 

Vacancy 
Appointed Governor  Surrey 
CCG  

 - 

Pravin Menezes 
Staff Governor   
Medical & Dental Practitioners  

Elected Nov 2018-21. Re-elected Nov 
21-24 

2/4 

Jennifer Bunn 
Staff Governor 
Management & Admin Staff  

Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Alison Dicks 
Staff Governor 
AHP & Clinical Support 

Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Diane Taboada 
Staff Governor 
Nursing & Midwifery 

Elected Nov 2020-23 4/4 

Catherine Gabela Elected Governor, Kingston Elected Nov 2021-24 1/1 

Rebecca Wilkinson Elected Governor, Kingston Elected Nov 2021-24 1/1 

Anne Lewis-Lloyd Elected Governor, Kingston  Elected Nov 2021-24 1/1 

Councillor  
Bruce McDonald 

Appointed Governor 
Elmbridge Borough Council 

Appointed Jul 2021-24 3/3 

 
Company Secretary 
  
The Board and Council of Governors have direct access to the advice and services of the Director 
of Corporate Affairs acting as Trust Company Secretary (Secretary), who is responsible for 
ensuring that the Board, Council and Committee procedures are followed and that sufficient 
information and resources are made available for them to undertake their duties. The Secretary 
is also responsible for advising the Board and the Council, through the Chair, on all corporate 
governance matters. Through the Company Secretary, the Board has access to independent 
professional advice where they judge it necessary to discharge their responsibilities as Directors. 
 
Statement of Compliance with the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance 
 
The Board of Directors considers that it was compliant with the provisions of the NHS Foundation 
Trust Code of Governance.  
 
Council of Governors and Membership 
 
Role of the Governors 
 
The Council of Governors is responsible for the appointment of the Chair and the Non-Executive 
Directors, and agreeing their terms and conditions, as well as the appointment of the external 
auditor. Each financial year, the Council of Governors is consulted by the Board on the Trust’s 
forward plans and receives the Annual Accounts, Auditors’ Report, Annual Report and Quality 
Report. Governors respond as appropriate when consulted by the directors on specific issues. 
Governors are unpaid. However, they are entitled to receive reimbursement of expenses. No 
expense claims were made by Governors in 2021-22. 
 
Lead Governor 
 
The Council of Governors selects one of the Public Governors to be the Lead Governor. Frances 
Kitson (Elected Governor, Kingston) was the Lead Governor until November 2021 when she 
retired from the Council of Governors. The Council of Governors selected Cathy Maker (Elected 
Governor, Richmond) as the new Lead Governor from that time on for a two-year term.   
 
The Council of Governors is chaired by the Trust’s Chair and supported by the Director of 
Corporate Affairs as Secretary.  
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The constitution of the Council of Governors was therefore: 
 

• 17 Elected Public Governors 

• 4 Elected Staff Governors 

• 10 Partner Appointed Governors  
 
Meetings of the Council of Governors 
 
The Council held full meetings on four occasions during 2021-22. In addition to the full meetings, 
the Council also participated in joint meetings of the Non-Executive Directors and the Council of 
Governors, and the AGM/Annual Members Meeting.   
 
A training and development plan for the Council of Governors in 2020-21 was put on hold due to 
the Covid-19 pandemic.  However, induction training for the governors elected in November 2021 
went ahead via MS Teams and was well received. 
 
Register of Governors’ Interests 
 
A register of Governors’ interests is maintained. A copy of the latest version submitted to the 
Council of Governors is available on the Trust’s website or it may be inspected during normal 
office hours at the Chief Executive’s office (Register of Conflicts of Interest Archives - Kingston 
Hospital). 
 
Understanding the Views of Governors and Members 
 
The Board of Directors has put in place processes to ensure members of the Board, and in 
particular the Non-Executive Directors, develop an understanding of the views of Governors and 
Members about the Trust. However, many of these continued to be suspended due to infection 
control and social distancing measures in place throughout the year. Despite this, Non-Executive 
Directors and the Chief Executive have attended each meeting of the Council of Governors and 
the Chief Executive has provided the Council of Governors with monthly briefings on the current 
situation in the hospital.  
 
A Membership Recruitment & Engagement Committee, which is a Committee of the Council of 
Governors, was established in May 2013. Its role is to support the Trust in growing and developing 
the membership, improving diversity of membership and facilitating communication between 
Governors, members and the local community.  
 
Whilst the majority of means of contact for Governor engagement with patients, members and 
the wider public remained suspended in 2021-22, members newsletters continued and a sub-
group of the Membership Recruitment & Engagement Committee has supported the 
Communications team on content. The Patient Experience Committee and the Equality, Diversity 
& Inclusion Committee invites a Governor to be in attendance at meetings.  
 
Membership  
 
The Trust first began recruiting members in support of its Foundation Trust application in 2006, 
and now 15 years into the recruitment programme. Membership is open to all members of the 
public aged over 14. The Council of Governors is continuing to recruit and promote membership 
and this is done through Governor engagement in the Trust and membership drives externally. 
The Council of Governors created an Associate Member for Young People and appointed Olivia 
Arney as the first holder of the post for an initial term of office of 2 years with effect from 20th 
January 2021. The role will assist and advise on the recruitment of young people as members of 
the Foundation Trust.  
 
 
 

https://kingstonhospital.nhs.uk/tag/coi/
https://kingstonhospital.nhs.uk/tag/coi/
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Eligibility requirements for joining different membership constituencies, including the boundaries 
for public membership, are shown in the Trust’s Constitution, which is available on the Trust’s 
website. The Trust has an extremely high percentage of staff members, with almost all staff 
choosing to remain as members, rather than opt out of membership.  
 
Foundation Trust Membership  
 
  2020-21 2021-22 

Public 
At year start  7,037 7,294 

At year end  7,293 7,308 

Staff 
At year start  3,467 4,010 

At year end  4,010 3,608 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

59 
 

Kingston Hospital Membership at 31st March 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public constituency  7,308  

Staff constituency  3,608  

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP  10,916  

 
Analysis of current membership by age, ethnic origin, socio-economic group and by 
gender 
  
Public constituency Number of 

members 
Eligible membership 

Age (years):     

0-16 8 2,203,715 

17-21 57 570,813 

22+ 5,116 7,503,308 

Not stated 8 N/A 

Ethnicity:     

White 2,523 5,911,117 

Mixed 61 428,833 

Asian or Asian British 544 1,575,044 

Black or Black British 165 1,101,070 

Other 7 290,267 

Not stated 4,005 N/A 

Socio-economic 
groupings*: 

    

AB 2,656 1,298,073 

C1 2,243 1,340,526 

C2 1,073 569,389 

DE 1,287 838,394 

Gender analysis     

Male 2,279 5,135,222 

Female 4,351 5,142,612 

Not stated 678 N/A 

Analysis by Constituency Members 
Number of Eligible 
Population 

Number of  
Public Governors 

Elmbridge 827 137,954 2 

Kingston 3,122 179,742 7 

Merton 470 110,097 1 

Rest of Surrey and Greater 
London 

858 9,458,736 1 

Richmond 1,385 200,115 4 

Sutton 143 46,632 0 

Wandsworth 304 148,406 1 

Out of area/ Not Categorised 199 N/A N/A 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 
supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst 
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in 
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the 
NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied 
efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 
 
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based 
on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the 
policies, aims and objectives of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in 
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31st March 2022 and up to the date 
of approval of the annual report and accounts. 
 
Capacity to Handle Risk 
 
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is committed to a Risk Management Strategy which 
minimises risk to all of its stakeholders through a comprehensive system of internal controls.  The 
understanding of risk involves the interplay of risk processes affecting staff, patients and the 
environment. The Risk Management Strategy provides a framework for managing and mitigating 
risks through internal controls and procedures which encompass quality, health and safety, 
strategic and financial risks. Its aim is to ensure the safety of patients, staff and the public and to 
assist in delivering quality, patient-centred services that achieve excellent results and promote 
the best possible use of public resources. The strategy also seeks to support consistency and 
standardisation through the gathering and dissemination of intelligence on risks and mitigation 
control measures amongst all staff. 
 
The Board committee structure discharging overall responsibilities for risk management is 
summarised below: 
 

• Trust Board has overall responsibility for having in place effective systems of risk 
management and internal control covering both clinical and non-clinical risk. 

• Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, reviews the establishment and maintenance of an 
effective system of internal control and risk management across the Trust’s activities, which 
supports the achievement of the Trust’s objectives. It also ensures an effective internal and 
external audit function is at work in the Trust. 

• Quality Assurance Committee (QAC) provides assurance to the Trust Board and Audit 
Committee that there are robust controls in place to ensure high quality care is provided to 
the patients using the services provided by the Trust. 

• Finance & Investment Committee (FIC) is responsible for scrutinising aspects of financial 
performance as delegated by the Board, as well as conducting scrutiny of major business 
cases, proposed investment decisions and regular review of contracts with key partners. 

• Workforce Committee is responsible for providing leadership and oversight for the Trust on 
workforce issues that support the delivery of the Board’s approved workforce objectives. It 
also monitors the operational performance of the Trust in people management, recruitment 
and retention, and employee health and wellbeing, and 
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• Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Committee (ED&IC) enables the Trust Board to carry out its 
responsibilities for the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion agenda and provide strategic 
direction, leadership and support for promoting and maintaining equality, diversity and 
inclusion issues across the Trust, in line with Trust’s strategic objectives.  

 
The Executive Management Committee (EMC) is made up of the core leadership team for the 
Trust, and it is responsible for ensuring: 
 

• The Risk Management Strategy is implemented, and in doing so fosters greater awareness 
of risk management throughout the Trust, and  

• Systems are in place to support delivery of compliance with legislation, mandatory NHS 
Standards, NHS England/Improvement, CQC, NHS Resolution, and other relevant bodies. 

 
The Patient Safety & Risk Management Committee (PS&RMC) reviews all risks on the Trust Risk 
Register rated at 12 or above at dedicated risk management meetings. The aim of the PS&RMC 
is to provide assurance that the Trust has adequate risk management arrangements in place and 
operating effectively. During the year, it decided to meet monthly, alternating between a focus on 
patient safety and risk management. It ensures that risk is kept under control in accordance with 
the Board’s risk appetite and minimising exposure to harm. 
 
Staff are trained and equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties 
through targeted training of individuals and access to the Trust’s Patient Safety, Governance & 
Risk Team. Guidance is provided in writing through the Risk Identification, Assessment and Risk 
Register Policy.This includes the process to identify and manage local risks, the systematic 
means by which these local risks are escalated to Board level attention and how risks are 
controlled and monitored. Further, operational procedures for risk and incident management are 
referenced in the Risk Management Strategy which is available to all staff via the Trust’s Policy 
& Guidelines page on the intranet. The Board has used benchmarking data and input from the 
Internal Auditors to learn from good risk management practice in other organisations. The 
framework ensures responsibilities are clear and that quality, performance and risk are 
understood and managed. 
 
The Risk and Control Framework 
 
The Trust understands that healthcare provision and the activities associated with caring for 
patients, employing staff, providing premises and managing finances will always involve an 
inherent degree of risk. Good risk management practice requires that identified risk is analysed, 
evaluated, treated and actions followed up for the purposes of monitoring and review to further 
improve. 
 
The key elements of the risk management strategy and the Trust’s approach to risk management 
and risk appetite are summarised as follows: 
 
Acceptable risk within Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is defined as the risk remaining 
after controls have been applied to associated hazards that have been identified, quantified to 
the maximum practicable, analysed, communicated to the appropriate level of management and 
after evaluation, accepted. 
 
Possible risks are identified through a variety of mechanisms, both reactive and proactive.  
Proactive identification may arise from local risk assessments, impact assessments and gap 
analyses of published reports on healthcare subjects or inspections of other care providers. 
Reactive identification can be flagged as a result of a serious incident, a trend in incidents or 
complaints, observations from a Trust Board walkabout or as a result of an audit, either internal 
or external. 
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Risks are analysed, scored, and current controls evaluated according to the Trust’s Risk 
Identification, Assessment and Risk Register Procedure. The aim of this process is to decide 
what further action to control the risk is required (treat the risk), or if the risk must be tolerated at 
its existing level (accept the risk).   
 
The evaluation of the risk assessment will involve the analysis of the individual risk to identify the 
consequences/severity and likelihood of the risk being realised. Within the Trust, the severity and 
likelihood of risk is given a numeric score based on the following matrix: 
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5x5 Risk 
Matrix  

Likelihood 

 1  2  3  4  5  

Consequence Rare  Unlikely  Possible  Likely  Almost certain  

5 Catastrophic  5  10  15  20  25  

4 Major  4  8  12  16  20  

3 Moderate  3  6  9  12  15  

2 Minor  2  4  6  8  10  

1 Negligible  1  2  3  4  5  

 
The process of evaluation includes a set of risk metrics for risk impact and likelihood which aims 
to improve consistency of risk assessments taking place within the Trust, for example: 
 

 Consequence score (severity levels) and examples of descriptors 

 1 2 3 4 5 

Domains Negligible Minor Moderate Major Catastrophic 

Impact on the 
safety of 
patients, staff 
or public 
(physical / 
psychological 
harm) 

Minimal injury 
requiring 
no/minimal 
intervention or 
treatment. 

 
No time off 
work 

Minor injury or 
illness, requiring 
minor intervention 

 
Requiring time off 
work for >3 days 

 
Increase in length of 
hospital stay by 1-3 
days 

 Moderate injury 
requiring 
professional 
intervention 
 
Requiring time off 
work for 4-14 days 
 
Increase in length 
of hospital stay by 
4-15 days 
 
RIDDOR/agency 
reportable incident 
 
An event which 
impacts on a 
small number of 
patients 

 Major injury leading 
to long- term 
incapacity/disability 

 
Requiring time off 
work for >14 days 

 
Increase in length of 
hospital stay by 
>15 days 

 
Mismanagement of 
patient care with 
long-term effects 

Incident 
leading to 
death 

 
Multiple 
permanent 
injuries or 
irreversible 
health effects 

 
An event 
which 
impacts on a 
large number 
of patients 

 
The Trust’s definition of a corporate risk is one that meets the following criteria: 
 

• It is a high level risk that has been scored at ≥ 12. 

• It is a risk that is deemed to deserve corporate visibility. 
 
The risk assessment template is structured in a way that requires the recording of an initial risk 
rating, a target risk rating and a current risk rating, the latter being post-mitigation and reviewed 
on a regular basis.  
 

Likelihood 
score 

1 2 3 4 5 

Descriptor Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost certain 

Frequency   This will 
probably never 
happen/recur 

Do not expect it to 
happen/recur but it 
is possible it may do 
so 

Might happen or 
recur occasionally 

Will probably 
happen/recur but it 
is not a persisting 
issue 

Will 
undoubtedly 
happen/recur, 
possibly 
frequently 
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The Trust’s risk ‘appetite’ is determined by the target risk rating, i.e. once the mitigating actions 
have been implemented successfully and the risk has reduced to the target, the Trust accepts 
the residual level of risk.  
 
Quality Governance and Performance 
 
The Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC). The Trust was inspected by the CQC in May/June 2018, with all of the Trust’s services 
receiving a rating of ‘Good’ and well-led and caring as ‘Outstanding’.  
 
The overall rating for the Trust is Outstanding. Regular meetings have taken place during the 
year between the CQC’s Lead Inspector and Executive members of the Trust Board. The CQC 
has not taken enforcement action against Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust during 2021-
22. 
 
The Trust’s arrangements for quality governance, including how the quality of performance 
information is assessed and how assurance is obtained routinely on compliance with CQC 
registration requirements, are based on a robust  and systematic approach which permeates right 
through the organisation and creates and maintains reliable processes and continuous learning.  
 
The Board reviews the Trust’s integrated quality and operational compliance report at each 
meeting, scrutinising key trends in performance (covering clinical, operational and workforce 
performance KPIs). This ensures that all Board Directors are kept adequately appraised of 
performance and provides an opportunity for full Board scrutiny of performance across the Trust. 
Meetings of the Quality Assurance Committee are used to look in more detail at quality issues 
highlighted by the data. Key elements of the Committee’s terms of reference are to:  
 

• Review escalation from the Patient Safety & Risk Management Committee concerning any 
quality risks  identified in the Board Assurance Framework and ensure there is sufficient 
assurance that these risks are managed by the Trust including actions to eliminate gaps in 
controls, for example, ensuring that audit programmes address the key issues.  

• Review the performance of the Trust in meeting its relevant statutory and regulatory 
obligations including compliance with the NHS Act 2006, the Health and Social Care Act 
2008 (and its successor documents) and the CQC (Registration) Regulations 2009 (and its 
successor documents) through the review of the Integrated Quality and Operational 
Compliance report. 

• Review the evidence to support the Trust’s Quality Governance arrangements through 
review of the Integrated Quality and Operational Compliance report. 

• Monitor and review the Trust’s Quality Performance Indicators in relation to quality and 
safety. The Quality Asssurance Committee will work with the Quality Improvement team to 
identify the most valuable quality indicators for the Board and maintain oversight of the 
clinical quality aspects of QI work to ensure it has appropriate quality monitoring mechanisms 
in place for all levels of the organisation. 

• Seek assurances through review of the annual report  from management that lessons are 
being learnt and relevant changes made following incidents, including serious incidents, 
complaints and claims.  

• Monitor the Trust’s compliance with the CQC’s Essential Standards of Quality and Safety 
through presentation, review and questioning of the Integrated Quality and Operational 
Compliance Report and by scanning the horizon to ensure that relevant publications are 
reviewed and recommendations for shared learning are acted upon.  

• Monitor and make recommendations on the adequacy and effectiveness of any aspects of 
the Trust’s performance as the Board may request, focusing mainly but not exclusively on 
outcome measures and liaising with the Finance and Investment and Audit Committees to 
minimise duplication. 

• To maintain oversight of quality related strategies through integration of QI within the 
committee workplan and ensuring that all strategies have completed an Equality Impact 
Assessment. 
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• The Committee shall review and approve the annual Clinical Audit Programme. The 
Committee will commission audits from clinical audit or internal audit (as appropriate) as and 
when it requires in year if a risk is identified which requires more focus and increased 
assurance.   

• Review the draft Trust Quality Priorities and Quality Report prior to adoption by the Trust 
Board. 

• Ensure a proportionate and systematic quality improvement approach is taken to address 
any gaps in quality that are identified. Improvement initiatives commissioned by the 
committee will follow the Trust's quality improvement approach and will be registered with 
the improvement team to access the appropriate level of support.  

 
The implementation of the Risk Management Strategy and effective operation of the Trust’s 
corporate governance structure are the principal means by which the Trust is able to assure itself 
of the validity of its Corporate Governance Statement, required under NHS Foundation Trust 
Condition 4(8) (b), and is achieved through: 
 

• Development and quality assurance of internal risk management frameworks to support the 
Trust’s Risk Management Strategy. 

• Providing training and support to staff to enable them to manage risk as part of normal line 
management responsibilities. 

• Effective use of the governance system and structures in place. 

• Risk assessments undertaken systematically in all areas to identify risk, assess effectiveness 
of controls and implement treatment plans, where necessary. 

• Delivery of action plans at corporate level and at local level, e.g. individual risk treatment 
plans. 

• Use of, and compliance with, policies to strengthen the systems of control. 

• Using information from risk assessment, incidents, complaints, audit, claims and other 
relevant external sources to improve safety and support organisational learning. 

• Internal and external audits and assessment to provide assurance of the effectiveness of 
controls to minimise risk. 

• Annual review of each Board committee’s effectiveness against its terms of reference.   
 
The Trust has published on its website an up to date Register of Interests, including gifts and 
hospitality, for decision-making staff (as defined by the Trust’s policy with reference to the 
guidance) within the past twelve months as required by the Managing Conflicts of Interest in the 
NHS guidance. 
 
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures 
are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are 
complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and 
payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension 
Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the 
Regulations. 
 
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, 
diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. 
 
The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has plans on place which take account of the 
‘Developing a Net Zero Health Service’, report under the Greener NHS programme. The Trust 
ensures that its obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting 
requirements are complied with. 
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Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the use of Resources 
 
The Board keeps under review the Trust’s use of resources, financial performance and cost 
effectiveness through the monthly finance report, reviewed in detail by the Finance & Investment 
Committee and also received bi-monthly by the Board. Where key risks and issues in relation to 
the Trust’s use of resources are identified, ‘deep dive’ reviews are conducted to ensure that a 
sufficient degree of assurance is obtained.   
 
The oversight role of the Board and the Finance & Investment Committee is supplemented by the 
annual Internal Audit Programme, which includes a comprehensive review of the Trust’s financial 
systems and controls. The detail of the key actions of the internal audit programme can be found 
at the ‘Systems of Internal Control’ section below. 
 
External auditors carry out the audit of financial systems and comment specifically on the use of 
resources and Going Concern in their reports to the Audit Committee and the Board. 
 
The governance structure at Executive Management level and below provides opportunities for 
specific divisions, clusters and service lines to be challenged on their use of resources within the 
respective services which they provide.  
 
Information Governance  
 
In 2021-22 the Trust received 634 Freedom of Information (FOI) requests: 378 of these (59.6%) 
were answered within the 20-working-day limit. Although the Trust is fully committed to meeting 
its obligation under the Information Access legislation, during Covid-19 this was not always 
possible.  
 
There were two incidents relating to Information Governance logged through the Data Security 
and Protection Toolkit. Neither were required to be escalated to the Information Commissioner’s 
Office (ICO). One was an internal email incident. The second involved limited patient information 
being found outside the Trust: all patients were informed. 
 
The Trust has been fully engaged across South West London (SWL), through the SWL Covid-19 
Information Governance Group, to ensure that patient information flowed appropriately under the 
Control of Patient Information (COPI) Notice to meet the needs of the pandemic. The Covid-19 
COPI Notice comes to an end on 30th June 2022. Information flows introduced under the Covid-
19 COPI Notice that proved beneficial to patient care have received full Data Protection Impact 
Assessments (DPIAs) to enable them to continue after 30th June 2022. 
 
Through the 2021-22 period, 1306 Subject Access Requests were received. Due to challenges 
associated with Covid-19, 40.7% were answered within the 28-calendar-day limit. 
 
Data Security and Protection Toolkit Attainment Levels 
 
In the 2020-21 Data Security and Protection Toolkit V3 the Trust was ranked as “Approaching 
Standards Met”. The plan was around finalising eight of the IM&T assertions and attaining the 
annual training target of 95% of staff completing Data Security and Protection Training.   
 
The Trust has been audited by KPMG on the Data Security and Protection Toolkit and is reviewing 
and progressing the recommendations received.  
 
The Toolkit V4 for 2021-22 is due to be submitted by 30 June 2022 and is likely to be 
“Approaching Standards Met”. 
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Data Quality and Governance  
 
The Trust’s five-year Information Strategy and Data Quality Strategy was refreshed in 2019 to 
incorporate recommendations from national reports in respect of data quality and the use of 
information across services and the wider health economy. The following actions are being taken 
to improve data quality:  
  

• Setting of data quality priorities and assurance processes through the Data Quality Board, 
chaired by the Executive Director of Performance and Planning. 

• Increase data quality benefit awareness. 

• Initiatives to improve the data at source (ensuring it is right first time) and to act upon arising 
data quality themes. 

• Monitor and correct data errors through exception reporting.  

• Development of data quality dashboards. 

• Exploratory data analytics to assess data quality issues, business impact, and root cause 
analysis. 

• Improvements planned to the existing data warehouse to allow for near real time reporting. 

• Reduction of manual processing of data, and standardisation of reporting.  

• Rationalisation of data flows. 

• Investigation and proposals for changes to system software to reduce the risk of users 
creating errors (system hardening).  

 
The Trust’s Data Quality Board ensures performance meets and/or exceeds national 
performance. 
 
Workforce Safeguards  
 
In October 2018 NHS Improvement published ‘Developing Workforce Safeguards’ to support 
providers to deliver high quality care through safe and effective staffing. In 2019-20, the Trust 
undertook a gap analysis and developed an action plan to ensure the workforce safeguards were 
implemented. A detailed progress report is received by the Trust Board twice per year, providing 
assurance on safe staffing within nursing, midwifery, medicine and allied health professionals 
staff groups, and that future plans are in place to sustain the position. 
 
Review of Effectiveness 
 
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control.  
 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the 
internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS 
Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal 
control framework. I have drawn on the content of the performance information available to me. 
My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management 
letter and other reports.  
 
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control by the Board, the Audit Committee and the Quality Assurance 
Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the 
system is in place. 
 
The role of the Board and its committees in maintaining and reviewing the Trust’s systems of 
internal control is described above. The Internal Audit Programme provides a further mechanism 
for doing this.  
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In 2021-22, KPMG, the Trust’s internal auditors, identified recommendations within their audit 
reports which are monitored in an internal audit recommendations tracker which is frequently 
reviewed by the Audit Committee. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall arrangements for gaining 
assurance through the Board Assurance Framework and on the controls reviewed as part of 
internal audit’s work. The Head of Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2021-22 gave an overall 
opinion that “significant assurance with minor improvements required” can be given on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management 
and control. The contract and associated Quality Plan specify that the delivery of the internal audit 
function will continue to be in compliance with NHS Internal Audit Standards and those of the 
Institute of Internal Auditors (UK). 
 
The table below shows the outcomes for the reviews which had been completed.  
 

Review Assurance Level 

Strategic Risk Management: Board 

Assurance Framework (BAF)  

Significant Assurance with Minor Improvement 

Opportunities  

Data Quality: Theatres  Partial Assurance with Improvements Required 

Core Financial Controls  
Significant Assurance with Minor Improvement 

Opportunities 

Enhanced Pay Rates  N/A – Advisory  

Estates – Fire Safety and Governance Partial Assurance with Improvements Required 

Data Security Protection (DSP) Toolkit 
Significant Assurance with Minor Improvement 

Opportunities 

 
The Audit Committee is responsible for oversight and assurance that processes undertaken by 
the Trust Board and other committees are operating effectively. In fulfilling its role the Committee: 
 

• Reviews the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated 
governance, risk management and internal control, across the whole of the Trust’s activities 
(both clinical and non-clinical), that supports the achievement of the Trust’s objectives. 

• Reviews arrangements that allow staff and other individuals, where relevant, to raise, in 
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting and 
control, clinical quality, patient safety or other matters. 

• Monitors and reviews the effectiveness of Clinical Audit activities through a quarterly report 
on aspects of policy, process assurance and data quality, and highlighting ‘red’ rated clinical 
audit outcomes.    

• Advises the Board on internal and external audit services.  

• Monitors compliance with standing orders and standing financial instructions.  

• Reviews schedules of losses and special payments.  

• Reviews the Annual Report and Financial Statements prior to submission to the Board. 

• Reviews findings of significant assurance functions, both internal and external. 
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Audit Committee membership comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors. The 
Committee has provided reports to the Board after each of its meetings, and through that process 
identified areas it wished to draw to the Board’s attention. 
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion, to the best of my knowledge, no significant internal control issues were identified 
during 2021-22. 
 
Signed:  

 
Jo Farrar 
Chief Executive Officer 
21 June 2022 
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Foreword to the Accounts: Kingston Hospital NHS FoundationTrust 

 

 

These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared by Kingston Hospital 

NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the NHS 

Act 2006, and are presented to Parliament pursuant to Schedule 7, paragraph 25 (4) (a) of 

the National Health Service Act 2006. 

 
Signed: 

 
 
 
 

Jo Farrar 
Chief Executive Officer 
21 June 2022 
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STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF KINGSTON HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION 
TRUST 
 
 
The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS 
foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their 
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are 
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS Improvement. 

 
NHS Improvement, in exercising of the powers conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, 
has given Accounts Directions which require Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to 
prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis required 
by those Directions. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and of its 
income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the 
financial year. 

 
In preparing the accounts and overseeing the use of public funds, the Accounting Officer is 
required to comply with the requirements of the Department of Health Group Accounting 
Manual and in particular to: 

 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 
consistent basis. 

• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis. 

• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual (and the Department of Health Group Accounting Manual) 
have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial 
statements. 

• Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated 
authorities and guidance. 

• Confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and 
stakeholders to assess the NHS foundation trust’s performance, business model and 
strategy, and 

• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material 
uncertainties over going concern. 

 
The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS foundation trust and 
to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above 
mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the NHS foundation trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Foundation Trust’s 
auditors are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make 
myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are 
aware of that information.  
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To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set 
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 

 
 
 

Jo Farrar 
Chief Executive Officer 
21 June 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 



 

Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

75 
 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2022

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2022

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2021

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2021

Group 31 

March 2021

                  Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue

Income from Patient Care Activities 4.2 -                 356,243 356,243 - 299,698 299,698

Other Operating Income 5 2,404 32,595 34,999 1,767 60,335 62,102

Total Operating Revenue 2,404 388,838 391,242 1,767 360,033 361,800

Employee Benefits 7 (186) (228,167) (228,353) (179) (219,141) (219,320)

Other Costs 7 (177) (160,344) (160,521) (523) (141,316) (141,839)

Total Operating Costs (363) (388,511) (388,874) (702) (360,457) (361,159)

Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) 2,041 327 2,368 1,065 (424) 641

Finance Costs

Finance Revenue 10 59 0                    59              61 4 65

Finance Expenditure 11 - (3,732) (3,732) - (3,666) (3,666)

Net Finance Costs 59 (3,732) (3,673) 61 (3,662) (3,601)

Other Gains/ (Losses) 12 -                 -                     -                 - (199) (199)

Surplus / (Deficit) for the Financial Period 2,100 (3,405) (1,305) 1,126 (4,285) (3,159)

Public Dividend Capital Dividends Payable -                 (3,296) (3,296) - (2,928) (2,928)

Retained Surplus / (Deficit) for the Year 2,100 (6,701) (4,601) 1,126 (7,213) (6,087)

Other Comprehensive Income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Impairments and reversals 13 -                 (1,311) (1,311) - (4,591) (4,591)

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 13 -                 5,606 5,606 - 3,601 3,601

Other reserve movements -                 6                    6 - - -

Other recognised (losses) / gains 32.2 283 -                     283 538 - 538

Total Other Comprehensive Income 283 4,301 4,584 538 (990) (452)

Total Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the Period 2,383 (2,400) (17) 1,664 (8,203) (6,539)

The notes on pages 7 to 40 form part of these accounts.

Reported Trust financial performance note

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2022

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2022

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2021

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2021

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reported Trust financial performance position (adjusted  

for impairments)

Retained Surplus / (Deficit) for the Year 2,383 (6,701) (4,601) 1,664 (7,213) (6,087)

Add back: Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments 

included above) 15 -                 4,279 4,279          -                  5,980 5,980          

Retain impact of DEL I&E impairments -                 (216) (216) -                  (110) (110)

Remove capital donations/ grants I&E -                 (144) (144) -                  (1,357) (1,357)

Remove net impact of DHSC centrally procured inventories -                 -                     -                 -                  (431) (431)

Reported NHS financial performance position: adjusted 

retained surplus / (deficit) 2,383 (2,782) (682) 1,664 (3,131) (2,005)

Add back: Inter-company Income / Expenditure eliminated on 

consolidation (Donation from Charity to Trust capital expenditure) (509) 509 -                 (539) 539 -                 

Total Reported Surplus/ (Deficit) 1,874 (2,273) (682) 1,125 (2,592) (2,005)

NOTE: The Trust's reported NHS financial performance position is derived from its retained surplus, adjusted for impairments to non-current assets.  An impairment 

charge arising from valuation is not considered part of the Trust's operating position.  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board by: 
 

 
Jo Farrar 
Chief Executive Officer  
21 June 2022 
 
 
 
Note: Group accounts are net of inter-company transactions. 
 
 
 

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2022

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2022

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2021

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2021

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 13 -                  184,527 184,527 -                  161,735 161,735

Intangible Assets 14 -                  21,428 21,428 -                  19,119 19,119

Trade and Other Receivables 18 -                  2,364 2,364 -                  1,750 1,750

Other assets 32.2 3,191 -                 3,191 2,585 -                 2,585

Total Non-current Assets 3,191           208,319 211,510 2,585           182,604      185,189      

Current Assets

Inventories 17 -                  3,232 3,232 -                  2,855 2,855

Trade and Other Receivables 18 123 16,883 17,006 58 22,531 22,589

Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 3,976 71,461 75,437 2,689 46,989 49,678

Total Current Assets 4,099 91,576 95,675 2,747 72,375 75,122

Total Assets 7,290 299,895 307,185 5,332 254,979 260,311

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables: Current 20 (179) (99,627) (99,806) (95) (69,708) (69,803)

Borrowings 21 -                  (2,695) (2,695) -                  (2,804) (2,804)

Other Liabilities 24 -                  (2,121) (2,121) -                  (1,077) (1,077)

Provisions 25 -                  (590) (590) -                  (1,549) (1,549)

Total Current Liabilities (179) (105,033) (105,212) (95) (75,138) (75,233)

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 7,111 194,862 201,973 5,237 179,841 185,078

Non-Current Liabilities

Borrowings 21 -                  (36,385) (36,385) -                  (38,034) (38,034)

Provisions 25 -                  (1,165) (1,165) -                  (1,231) (1,231)

Total Non-Current Liabilities -                  (37,550) (37,550) -                  (39,265) (39,265)

Total Assets Employed 7,111 157,312 164,423 5,237 140,576 145,813

Financed by Taxpayers' Equity

Public Dividend Capital 33 -                  138,061 138,061 -                  119,434 119,434

Income and Expenditure Reserve -                  (5,240) (5,240) -                  946 946

Revaluation Reserve -                  24,491 24,491 -                  20,196 20,196

Charitable Funds Reserve 32 7,111 -                 7,111 5,237 -                 5,237

Total Taxpayers' Equity 7,111 157,312 164,423 5,237 140,576 145,813
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public 

Dividend 

Capital

Income and 

Expenditure 

Reserve

Revaluation 

Reserve

Charitable 

funds reserve

Total

   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total balance at 1 April 2021 119,434 946 20,196 5,237 145,813

Public Dividend Capital received 18,627        -                     -                   -                   18,627

Retained (deficit) for the year -                (6,701) -                   -                   (6,701)

Charity surplus for the year -                -                     -                   2,100            2,100

Impairments and reversals -                -                     (1,311) -                   (1,311)

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment -                -                     5,606 -                   5,606

Other recognised gains and losses -                -                     -                   283               283

Other reserve movements -                6                     -                   -                   6

Other reserve movements: charitable funds consolidation 

adjustment

-                509                 -                   (509) -                  

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year
18,627 (6,186) 4,295 1,874 18,610

Balance at 31 March 2022 138,061 (5,240)   24,491 7,111 164,423

Public 

Dividend 

Capital

Income and 

Expenditure 

Reserve

Revaluation 

Reserve

Charitable 

Funds Reserve

Total

   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total balance at 1 April 2020 65,395 7,620 21,186 4,112 98,313

Public Dividend Capital received 54,039        -                     -                   -                   54,039

Retained surplus for the year -                (7,213) -                   -                   (7,213)

Charity surplus for the year -                -                     -                   1,126            1,126

Impairments and reversals -                -                     (4,591) -                   (4,591)

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment -                -                     3,601 -                   3,601

Other recognised gains and losses -                -                     -                   538 538

Other reserve movements: charitable funds consolidation 

adjustment

-                539 -                   (539) -                  

Net recognised (expense) for the year 54,039 (6,674) (990) 1,125 47,500

Balance at 31 March 2021 119,434 946 20,196 5,237 145,813
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charitable 

Funds 31 

March 2022

Foundation 

Trust 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2022

Charitable Funds 

31 March 2021

Foundation 

Trust 31 March 

2021

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus / (deficit) 1,532 836 2,368 526 115 641

Depreciation and amortisation -                     12,110 12,110 - 9,889 9,889

Impairments and reversals -                     4,279 4,279 - 5,980 5,980

Interest paid -                     (176) (176) - (275) (275)

(Increase) in inventories -                     (377) (377) - (886) (886)

(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables (65) 5,060 4,995 (10) 8,082 8,072

(Increase)/decrease in other assets -                     (14) (14) - - -

(Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables 84 20,566 20,650 9 26,750 26,759

Income received from capital donations -                     (128) (128) - (1,124) (1,124)

Other : investments received (323) -                     (323) 440 - 440

(Decrease) in other current liabilities -                     999 999 - (1,679) (1,679)

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions -                     (1,026) (1,026) - 61 61

Net cash inflow / from operating activities 1,228 42,129 43,357 965 46,913 47,878

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 59                  -                     59 61 4 65

Payments for property, plant and equipment -                     (21,417) (21,417) - (15,988) (15,988)

Receipt of cash donations to purchase non-current assets -                     24                  24 - - -

Payments for intangible assets -                     (5,445) (5,445) - (6,650) (6,650)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 59                  (26,838) (26,779) 61 (22,634) (22,573)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) before financing 1,287 15,291 16,578 1,026 24,279 25,305

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received -                     18,627 18,627 - 54,039 54,039

Interim revenue support loans received -                     -                     -                    - (7,466) (7,466)

Loans repaid to the Independent Trust Financing Facility (540) (540) (30,441) (30,441)

PDC dividend paid -                     (2,790) (2,790) - (3,125) (3,125)

Interest on finance leases -                     (382) (382) - (338) (338)

Interest element of PFI -                     (3,218) (3,218) - (3,176) (3,176)

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on 

Statement of Financial Position PFI
-                     (2,516) (2,516)

-
(1,473) (1,473)

Net cash outflow from financing 0 9,181 9,181 - 8,020 8,020

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,287 24,472 25,759 1,026 32,299 33,325

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial 

year

2,689 46,989 49,678 1,663 14,690 16,353

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 19 3,976 71,461 75,437 2,689 46,989 49,678
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 

 
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

  
NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has 
directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting 
requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 
(GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2021/22 issued by the 
Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM 
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are 
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is 
advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a choice 
of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the 
particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has 
been selected. The particular policies adopted are described below. These have been 
applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the 
accounts. 

 
1.1 Accounting convention 
 

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to 
account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, 
inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities. 
 

1.2 Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted 
 

The DH GAM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be 
applied in 2021/22. These standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM adoption. 
 
IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an 
arrangement contains a lease and other interpretations and is applicable in the public 
sector for periods beginning 1 April 2022. The standard provides a single accounting 
model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of 
financial position for most leases: some leases are exempt through application of 
practical expedients explained below. For those recognised in the statement of 
financial position the standard also requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in 
specific circumstances after the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the 
distinction between operating and finance leases will remain and the accounting will 
be largely unchanged. 
 
IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The trust 
will apply this definition to new leases only and will grandfather its assessments made 
under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a lease. 
 
On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the trust will apply the standard retrospectively 
without restatement and with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard 
recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating 
leases with a remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an underlying asset 
value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will be recognised equal to the value of 
remaining lease payments discounted on transition at the trust’s incremental borrowing 
rate. The trust’s incremental borrowing rate will be a rate defined by HM Treasury. For 
2022, this rate is 0.95%.  
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The related right of use asset will be measured equal to the lease liability adjusted for 
any prepaid or accrued lease payments. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2022 
for existing finance leases. 
 
For leases commencing in 2022/23, the Trust will not recognise a right of use asset or 
lease liability for short term leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of 
low value assets (less than £5,000). Right of use assets will be subsequently measured 
on a basis consistent with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease 
term. 
 
The trust has estimated the impact of applying IFRS 16 in 2022/23 on the opening 
statement of financial position and the in-year impact on the statement of 
comprehensive income and capital additions as follows: 
 

 
 

From 1 April 2022, the principles of IFRS 16 will also be applied to the Trust’s PFI 

liabilities where future payments are linked to a price index representing the rate of 

inflation. The PFI liability will be remeasured when a change in the index causes a 

change in future repayments and that change has taken effect in the cash flow. Under 

existing accounting practices, amounts relating to changes in the price index are 

expensed as incurred. This is expected to increase the PFI liability on the statement of 

financial position. The effect of this has not yet been quantified. Under current 

accounting guidance this would cause a corresponding charge to expenditure. HM 

Treasury and DHSC are considering whether this should instead be recognised on 

transition to IFRS 16 and guidance on this is awaited. 

 
1.3 Acquisitions and discontinued operations 

 
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the 
public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. 
They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector 
body to another. The Trust did not have any acquistions or discontinued any services 
in the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Estimated impact on 1 April 2022 statement of financial position £000s

Additional right of use assets recognised for existing operating leases 9,931

Additional lease obligations recognised for existing operating leases (9,931)

Changes to other statement of financial position line items 0

Net impact on net assets on 1 April 2022 0

Estimated in-year impact in 2022/23 £000s

Additional depreciation on right of use assets (1,933)

Additional finance costs on lease liabilities (97)

Lease rentals no longer charged to operating expenditure 2,047

Other impact on income / expenditure 0

Estimated impact on surplus / (deficit) in 2022/23 15

Estimated increase in capital additions for new leases commencing in 2022/23 0
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1.4 Going Concern 
 

 These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial reporting 
framework applicable to NHS bodies, derived from the HM Treasury Financial 
Reporting Manual, defines that the anticipated continued provision of the entity's 
services in the public sector is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The 
directors have a reasonable expectation that this will continue to be the case. 
 

1.5 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 
In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  
 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate 
is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and 
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
 
1.5.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations 
(see below), that management has made in the process of applying the Trust’s 
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements: 

 
a. The Trust has undertaken a review of all its leases and agreements. Any 

which have been identified by this review as being finance leases are 
accounted for on-balance sheet as required under International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

 
b. The Trust has defined its buildings as specialised properties. This is due to 

the lack of a market for the Trust’s buildings for use in a form outside the 
scope of a hospital. The buildings are therefore valued on a depreciated 
replacement cost basis, which is normally on the basis of a modern 
equivalent asset. 

 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year: 

 
1.5.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 

Land and Buildings Valuations: All land and buildings are restated at fair value 
by way of annual professional valuations carried out by an independent 
external valuer. The valuation exercise was carried out in March 2022 with a 
valuation date of 31 March 2022. 
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1.6 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 
15. The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations 
which enables the Trust to receive cash or another financial asset that is not classified 
as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS). 
 
Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) 
performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised goods/services to the 
customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to those 
performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to 
performance obligations satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to 
consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a contract receivable will be 
recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other 
than the passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration 
received or receivable relates to a performance obligation that is to be satisfied in a 
future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract liability. 
 
Revenue from NHS Contracts 
 
The accounting policies for revenue recognition and the application of IFRS 15 are 
consistently applied. The contracting arrangements in the NHS changed from 2020/21 
affecting the application of the accounting policy under IFRS 15. The application is 
explained below. 
 
The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health 
care services. In 2021/22 and 2020/21, the majority of the trust’s income from NHS 
commissioners was in the form of block contract arrangements. The Trust receives 
block funding from its commissioners, where funding envelopes are set at a Integrated 
Care System level. For the first half of the 2020/21 comparative year these blocks were 
set for individual NHS providers directly, but the revenue recognition principles are the 
same. The related performance obligation is the delivery of healthcare and related 
services during the period, with the trust’s entitlement to consideration not varying 
based on the levels of activity performed. 
 
The Trust also receives additional income outside of the block payments to reimburse 
specific costs incurred and, in 2020/21, other income top-ups to support the delivery 
of services. Reimbursement and top-up income is accounted for as variable 
consideration. 
 
In 2021/22, the Elective Recovery Fund enabled systems to earn income linked to the 
achievement of elective activity targets including funding any increased use of 
independent sector capacity. Income earned by the system is distributed between 
individual entities by local agreement. Income earned from the fund is accounted for 
as variable consideration. 
 
NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme 
 
The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to 
reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation 
has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust recognises the 
income when performance obligations are satisfied. In practical terms, this means that 
treatment has been given, it receives notification from the Department of Work and 
Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has completed the NHS2 form and confirmed 
there are no discrepancies with the treatment.  
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The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured 
individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts 
in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime 
of the asset. 
 
Grants and Donations 
 
Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from 
commissioners or trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund 
revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match 
that expenditure. Where the grant is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income once conditions attached to the 
grant have been met. Donations are treated in the same way as government grants. 
 
Apprenticeship Service Income 
 
The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's 
apprenticeship service is recognised as income at the point of receipt of the training 
service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider from the 
Trust’s Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for 
Education, the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of 
recognition for the benefit. 
 

1.7 Operating Segments 
  
Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are 
reported in line with management information used within Trust. 
 
The nature of the Trust's services is the provision of healthcare. Similar methods are 
used to provide services Trust-wide, and policies, procedures and governance 
arrangements apply trust-wide. As an NHS Foundation Trust, all services are subject 
to the  same regulatory environment and standards. Accordingly, the Trust operates a 
single segment: healthcare. 
 

1.8 Employee Benefits 
  
1.8.1  Short-Term Employee Benefits 
 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the 
period in which the service is received from employees. 
 
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period 
is not recognised in the financial statements on the basis that the Trust's policy 
allows the carry-forward of annual leave only in exceptional circumstances. For 
2021-22 and 2020-21 financial statements, the Covid-19 situation warrants 
such exceptional circumstances and an accrual for the leave carried forward 
as a consequence is included in the financial statements. 

 
1.8.2  Pension Costs 
 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS 
Pensions Schemes. Both schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that 
cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the 
direction of the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and 
Wales.  
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The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, 
the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the 
cost to the trust is taken as equal to the employer’s pension contributions 
payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged 
to operating expenses as and when they become due. 
 
Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by 
the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of 
the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the 
time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of 
payment. 

 
1.9 Expenditure on Other Goods and Services 

 
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they 
have been received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. 
Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation 
of a non- current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 
 

1.10 Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
1.10.1 Recognition 
 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 
 

• It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 

• It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential 
will be supplied to, the Trust; 

• It is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 

• The cost of the item can be measured reliably; 

• The item has cost of at least £5,000; 

• Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and 
individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 
functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase 
dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under 
single managerial control; and/ or 

• Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, 
ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or where a large asset, for 
example a building, includes a number of components with significantly 
different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets and 
depreciated over their own useful lives. 

 
Subsequent Expenditure 

 
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset 
when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service 
potential deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component of such 
item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined 
reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the 
replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition above. The 
carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised.  
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Other expenditure that does not generate additional future economic 
benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance is charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is 
incurred. 
 

1.10.2 Valuation 
 

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, 
representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the 
asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Assets that 
are held for their service potential and are in use are measured 
subsequently at their current value in existing use. Assets that were most 
recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring 
them back into use are measured at fair value where there are no 
restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the 
definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale. 
 
Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services or for administrative 
purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued 
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
 
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying 
amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined 
at the end of the reporting period. Current values are determined as 
follows: 
 

• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; 
and 

• Specialised buildings - depreciated replacement cost, modern 
equivalent asset basis. 

 
Land and buildings are restated to current value in accordance with IAS 16 
and Monitor guidance, using professional valuations every five years and 
an interim valuation on an annual basis to ensure that fair values are not 
materially different from the carrying amounts. Valuations are carried out 
by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual based on 
MEA. An MEA basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern 
asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location requirements of the 
services being provided. An index-based valuation of land, buildings and 
dwellings was carried out by Gerald Eve (Independent Chartered 
Surveyors). Buildings are valued on a MEA basis utilising Alternative Site 
basis. As a PFI asset, VAT was excluded from the valuation of the Kingston 
Surgical Centre. 

 
Properties in the course of construction for service or administration 
purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes 
professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as 
expenses immediately, as allowed by International Accounting Standard 
23 (IAS 23) for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and 
depreciation commences when they are brought into use. 
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IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and 
machinery that are held for operational use are valued at depreciated 
historic cost where these assets have short useful economic lives or low 
values or both, as this is not considered to be materially different from 
current value in existing use. 
 

1.11 Intangible Assets 
 

1.11.1 Recognition 
 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, 
which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the Trust’s business 
or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service 
potential be provided to, the Trust; where the cost of the asset can be 
measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000. 

 
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly 
attributable costs needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the 
point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Software that 
is integral to the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, 
is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. 
Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for example 
application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on 
research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the 
period in which it is incurred. 

 
Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following 
have been demonstrated: 

 

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will 
be available for use; 

• The intention to complete the intangible asset and use it; 

• The ability to sell or use the intangible asset; 

• How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic 
benefits or service potential; 

• The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to 
complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and 

• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the 
intangible asset during its development. 

 
1.11.2 Measurement 
 

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets 
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above 
are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be 
recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is 
incurred. 

 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by 
reference to an active market, or, where no active market exists, at 
amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for 
relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.  
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Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing 
effects of increases in development costs and technological advances. 

 
Revaluations and impairments are treated in the same manner as for 
property, plant and equipment. 
 

1.12 Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments 
 

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not 
depreciated. 
 
Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation 
of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual 
value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of 
economic benefits or service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an 
asset is the period over which the Trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service 
potential from the asset. This is specific to the Trust and may be shorter than the 
physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed 
each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. 
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
 
At each reporting period end, the Trust checks whether there is any indication that any 
of its tangible or intangible noncurrent assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there 
is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated 
to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets 
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. 
 
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service 
potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the 
extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 
expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic 
benefit should be taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the 
recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had 
there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to 
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to 
the revaluation reserve. 
 
Impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service 
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is 
made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve of an 
amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and 
(ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the 
impairment. 
 
An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service 
potential is reversed when, and to the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to 
the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating expenditure to the extent 
that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment 
had never been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation 
reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made from the 
revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred 
back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised. 
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Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ 
are treated as revaluation gains. 

 
1.13 Donated Assets 

 
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will 
be held for their service potential, or otherwise at fair value on receipt, with a matching 
credit to income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as described above for 
purchased assets. In 2020/21 and 2021/22 this includes assets donated to the Trust 
by the Department of Health and Social Care as part of the response to the coronavirus 
pandemic. As defined in the GAM, the Trust applies the principle of donated asset 
accounting to assets that the Trust controls, and from which it is deriving economic 
benefits, at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are 
as described above for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised only where 
conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain. 

  
1.14 Government Grants 

 
Government grant funded assets are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they 
will be held for their service potential, or otherwise at fair value on receipt, with a 
matching credit to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions 
attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain. 

 
1.15 Leases 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

 
1.15.1 The Trust as Lessee 

 
Finance Leases 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially 
recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for 
the lease obligation to the lessor.  
 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in 
calculating the Trust’s surplus/deficit. The implicit interest rate is that which 
produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability. 
 
Operating Leases 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 
liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 
 
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred. 
 
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components 
are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating 
or finance leases. 
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1.15.2 The Trust as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as 
receivables at the amount of the Trust’s net investment in the leases. 
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a 
constant periodic rate of return on the Trust’s net investment outstanding 
in respect of the leases. 
 
Operating Leases 
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 
 

1.16 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Transactions 
 

PFI transactions that meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as 
interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM, are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial 
Position’ by the Trust. In accordance with IAS 17, the underlying assets are recognised 
as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent finance lease liability. 
The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of property, plant and 
equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract 
are recorded as operating expenses. 
 
The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using 
appropriate estimation techniques where necessary: 

 
a. Payment for the fair value of services received; 
b. Repayment of the finance lease liability including finance costs; and 
c. Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract 

'lifecycle replacement' 
 

1.16.1 Services Received 
 
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the 
relevant expenditure headings within ‘Operating Expenses’. 
 

1.16.2 PFI Assets, Liabilities and Finance Costs 
 
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when 
they come into use. The assets are measured initially at fair value or, if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, in accordance 
with the principles of International Accounting Standards 17. Subsequently, 
the assets are measured at current value in existing use. 
 
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are 
recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the fair value of 
the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in 
accordance with International Accounting Standard 17. 
 
An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in 
the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and is charged to 
‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance 
lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to repay the 
lease liability over the contract term. 
 
An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative 
indexation is treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. 
 

1.16.3 Lifecycle Replacement 
 
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract 
(‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet  the Trust’s criteria 
for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided 
by the operator and are measured initially at cost. 
 
The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle 
replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from the 
operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the 
lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term 
finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively. 
 
Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount 
determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as an expense 
when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the 
amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset 
and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is 
released to the  operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract 
period or the useful economic life of the replacement component. 
 

1.16.4 Assets Contributed by the Trust to the Operator for use in the Scheme 
 
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as 
items of property, plant and equipment in the Trust’s Statement of Financial 
Position. 
 

1.16.5 Other Assets Contributed by the Trust to the Operator 
 
Other assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the 
Trust to the operator before the asset is brought into use, which are 
intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as 
prepayments during the construction phase of the contract. Subsequently, 
when the asset is made available to the Trust, the prepayment is treated 
as an initial payment towards the finance lease liability and is set against 
the carrying value of the liability. 
 

1.17 Inventories 
 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in 
first-out cost formula. This is considered to be  a reasonable approximation to fair value 
due to the high turnover of stocks. In 2020/21 and 2021/22, the Trust received 
inventories including personal protective equipment from the Department of Health and 
Social Care at nil cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principles of the IFRS 
Conceptual Framework, the Trust has accounted for the receipt of these inventories at 
a deemed cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an imputed market value 
for the transaction based on the cost of acquisition by the Department. 
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1.18 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that 
mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s 
cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current values. 
 

1.19 Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The 
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM 
Treasury’s discount rate. 
 
Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury’s pension discount rate 
of [negative 1.30]% (2020-21: negative 0.95%) in real terms. All other provisions are 
subject to four separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows 
from the Statement of Financial Position date: 
 

• A short term rate of [positive 0.47]% (2020-21: negative 0.02%) for expected cash 
flows up to and including 5 years. 

• A medium term rate of [positive 0.70]% (2020-21: positive 0.18%) for expected 
cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years. 

• A long term rate of [positive 0.95]% (2020-21: positive 1.99%) for expected cash 
flows over 10 years up to and including 40 years. 

• A very long term rate of [positive 0.66]% (2020-21: positive 1.99%) for expected 
cash flows over 40 years. 

 
All percentages are in real terms. 
 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected 
to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable 
can be measured reliably. 
 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as 
a provision. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract 
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. 
 

1.20 Clinical Negligence Costs 
 
The NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an 
annual contribution to the NHS Resolution which in return settles all clinical negligence 
claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure.  
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Although the NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence 
cases the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence 
provisions carried by the NHS Resolution on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at Note 
25 but not recognised in the Trust's Accounts. 
 

1.21 Non-Clinical Risk Pooling 
 
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third 
Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual 
contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with the costs 
of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in 
respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they 
become due. 
 

1.22 Contingencies 
 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Trust, or a present obligation 
that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to 
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently 
reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote. 
 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Trust. A contingent asset is 
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
 
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present 
value. 
 

1.23 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
Note 1.23.1 Recognition 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual 
provisions of a financial instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a 
legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument. The GAM expands the 
definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to 
arrangements that in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give 
rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS. 
 
This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), 
which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage 
requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, 
i.e., when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made. 
 
Note 1.23.2 Classification and Measurement 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus 
directly attributable transaction costs except where the asset or liability is not measured 
at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is taken as the transaction 
price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation 
techniques. 
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Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of 
through finance leases are recognised and measured in accordance with the 
accounting policy for leases. 
 
Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
 
Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the 
objective of collecting contractual cash flows and where cash flows are solely 
payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract and other 
receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease 
arrangements and loans receivable and payable. 
 
After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment (for financial 
assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial 
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a 
financial liability. 
 
Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a financing income or 
expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the 
effective interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
 
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, 
contract receivables and contract assets, the Trust recognises an allowance for 
expected credit losses. 
 
The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other 
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, measuring expected losses as at 
an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets, the loss 
allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses 
(stage 1) and subsequently at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the 
credit risk assessed for the financial asset significantly increases. 
 
For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 
3), expected credit losses at the reporting date are measured as the difference 
between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and reduce the net carrying value of the financial asset in the 
Statement of Financial Position. 
 
Note 1.23.3 De-recognition 
 
Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows 
from the assets have expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership. 
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Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 
 

1.24 Value Added Tax (VAT) 
  
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output 
tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT 
is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase 
cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the 
amounts are stated net of VAT. 
 

1.25 Foreign Currencies 
  
The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling, and figures are 
presented in thousands of pounds unless expressly stated otherwise. Transactions 
denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate 
ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 
31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in 
the Trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise. 
 

1.26 Third Party Assets 
  
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not 
recognised in the accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. Details 
of third party assets are disclosed at Note 30. 
 

1.27 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC Dividend 
  
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance which represents 
the Department of Health’s investment in the Trust.  HM Treasury has determined that, 
being issued under statutory authority rather than under contract, PDC is not a financial 
instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 
 
The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, 
the Trust. PDC is recorded at the value received. 
 
An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the 
Department of Health as a public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated 
at the rate set by the Secretary of State with the consent of HM Treasury (currently 
3.5%) on the average net relevant net assets of the Trust during the financial year.  
Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all 
liabilities, with certain additions and deductions as defined in the PDC dividend policy 
issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. This policy is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-
nhstrust-and-foundation-trusts 
 
The average relevant net assets are calculated as a simple average of opening and 
closing relevant net assets. 
 
In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social 
Care (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual 
average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. 
The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur 
as a result the audit of the annual accounts. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhstrust-and-foundation-trusts
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhstrust-and-foundation-trusts
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1.28 Losses and Special Payments 
 
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated 
when it agreed funds for the Health Service or passed legislation. By their nature they 
are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control 
procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different 
categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. 
 
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in 
expenditure on an accruals basis. 
 

1.29 Research and Development 
 
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which 
it is incurred, except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined 
project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so 
deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the 
Operating Cost Statement on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit 
from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is 
calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis. 
 

1.30 Gifts 
 
Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the 
expectation of any return. Gifts include all transactions economically equivalent to free 
and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful life, 
and the sale or lease of assets at below market value. 
 

1.31 Consolidation 
 
The Trust is the corporate trustee to Kingston Hospital Charitable Fund. The Trust has 
assessed its relationship to the Charitable Fund and determined it to be a subsidiary 
because the Trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns and other benefits 
for itself, patients and staff from its involvement with the charitable fund and has the 
ability to affect those returns and other benefits through its power over the fund. 
 
The charitable fund's statutory accounts are prepared to 31st March in accordance 
with the UK Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102. 
 
On consolidation, necessary adjustments are made to the charity's assets, liabilities 
and transactions to: 
 
Recognise and measure them in accordance with the Trust's accounting policies; and 
Eliminate intra-group transactions, balances, gains and losses. 
 
The charitable fund's key accounting policies in relation to its funds are as follows: 
 
Funds Structure 
 
Incoming resources and resources expended are allocated to particular funds 
according to their purpose. Transfers between funds may arise where there is an 
authorised release of restricted or endowment funds, or when charges are made from 
unrestricted to other funds. 
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Permanent Endowment Funds 
 
Funds where the capital is held to generate income for charitable purposes and cannot 
itself be spent, are accounted for as permanent endowment funds. 
 
Restricted Funds 
 
Restricted funds include those receipts which are subject to specific restrictions 
imposed by the donor or Trust charitable funds procedures, usually in writing. 
 
Unrestricted funds 
 
Unrestricted funds include income received without restriction. Unrestricted funds are 
available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance of the general objectives 
of the charity. The trustee may earmark unrestricted funds for a particular purpose 
without restricting or committing the funds legally. Such amounts are known as 
designated funds. 
 

1.32 Joint Operations 
 
Joint operations are arrangements in which the Trust has joint control with one or more 
other parties and has the rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating 
to the arrangement. The Trust includes within its financial statements its share of the 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
 
The Trust has a contractual joint arrangement between Kingston Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, St George’s Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, and Croydon Health 
Services NHS Trust to provide pathology services to primary and secondary acute and 
non-acute and private sector healthcare providers in London and the South East. 
 

1.33 Revaluation Reserve 
 
The Trust reviews its assets on a regular basis to ensure that the carrying amount of 
an asset does not differ materiality from that which would be determined with a fair 
value at the end of the period. This comprises the revaluation reserve. 
 

1.34 Retained Earnings 
 
Retained earnings denote the balance of the surplus (deficit) of the Trust since its 
inception. Retained Earnings is stated prior to taking into account any gains or losses 
on impairments and reversals / revaluations. 
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2. OPERATING SEGMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

The nature of the Trust's services is the provision of healthcare. Similar methods are 
used to provide services trust-wide, and policies, procedures and governance 
arrangements apply trust-wide. As an NHS Foundation Trust, all services are subject 
to the same regulatory environment and standards. Accordingly, the Trust operates a 
single segment: healthcare. 

 
3. INCOME GENERATION ACTIVITIES 
 

The Trust does not undertake any non healthcare income generating activities that 
have full costs in excess of £1m. 
 

4. INCOME FROM PATIENT CARE 
 
4.1 Income from Patient Care (by nature) 
 

 
 
4.2 Income from Patient Care Activities 
 

 
 

 
All disclosed income is related to continuing operations. 
 
Block contract/system envelope income and CCG and NHS England income includes 
equivalent funding to Reimbursement and top-up funding disclosed in Other Operating 
Income in 2020/21 (£26,991k). 
 
Injury cost recovery income is subject to a provision for impairment of receivables of 
23.76% to reflect expected rates of collection. 

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Block contract / system envelope 307,792 266,569

17,784 15,133

Other NHS clinical income 3,223 3,731

Private patient income 2,168 1,440

7,913 7,505

Elective recovery fund 15,749 -                    

Other clinical income 1,614 5,320

Total 356,243 299,698

Additional pension contribution central funding

High cost drugs income from commissioners

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

CCGs and NHS England 349,239 293,483

Local Authorities 3,223 3,639

Non-NHS: 

 - Private patients 2,168 1,440

 - Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 342 57

 - Injury costs recovery 329 353

 - Other 942 726

Total 356,243 299,698
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Total income from Commissioner Requested Services of £331.0m is included above 
(2020/21 £286.9m) 
 
The above figures for 2021/22 include the total of £7,913k (2020/21: £7,505k) in 
relation to notional central funding for additional employers pension contributions. An 
equal amount appears as expenditure in Operating Expenses. 

 
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

 
 
All disclosed income is related to continuing operations. 
 
Following the change in funding arrangements during 2020/21, made in response to 
the Covid pandemic new funding in the form of Reimbursement and top-up funding 
was received (£26,991k). In 2021/22 the equivalent funding was channelled via CCGs 
and is included within Income from Patient Care Activities. 

 
5.1 Additional Information on Contract Revenue (IFRS 15) recognised in the period 

 
 

5.2 Transaction Price Allocated to Remaining Performance Obligations 

 

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Education & Training 11,396 10,926           

Reimbursement and top-up funding 50 26,991           

Donated equipment from NHSE for Covid response 104 1,124             

Donated PPE consumables from DHSC for Covid response 990 4,681             

Research and Development 453 460                

Non-patient care services to other bodies 5,816 6,414             

Other non-contract operating income

Car parking income 385 147                

Creche 734 652                

Other income generation 6,255 4,754             

Rental revenue 390 514                

Staff recharge income 6,022 3,672             

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 2,404 1,767             

Total 34,999 62,102

Year ended 

March 31 2022

Year ended 

March 31 2021

£000 £000

1,077 2,730

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included within contract 

liabilities at the previous period end

Year ended 

March 31 2022

Year ended 

March 31 2021

Revenue from existing contracts £000 £000

within one year 2,121             1,077

after one year, not later than five years

after five years

Total revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations 2,121 1,077
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The Trust has exercised the practical expedients permitted by IFRS 15 paragraph 121 
in preparing this disclosure. 
 
Revenue from (i) contracts with an expected duration of one year or less and (ii) 
contracts where the Trust recognises revenue directly corresponding to work done to 
date is not disclosed. 
 

6. OVERSEAS VISITORS (relating to patients charged directly by the Foundation Trust) 
 

 
 

7. OPERATING EXPENSES 

 
 
Grant Thornton are the external auditors of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. 
Their liability is limited to a maximum aggregated  amount of £2,000,000. Grant Thornton 
are the external auditors of Kingston Hospital Charity, of which the Trust is the corporate 
trustee. The fees in respect of this engagement are £10,600 (2020/21 £7,750). 
 
 
 

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

Total Total 

£000 £000 

Income recognised this year 342 57

Cash payments received in-year (relating to invoices raised in current and previous years) 33 61

0 30

Amounts written off in-year (relating to invoices raised in current and previous years) 375                181                

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (relating to invoices raised 

in current and prior years)

Group 31 March 

2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Employee benefits excluding Non Executive Board members (included within Note 9.1) 228,167 219,141          

Charitable Funds Pay costs (included within Note 9.1) 186 179                 

Non Executive Board members 151 151                 

Supplies and services - clinical 34,498 21,308            

SWL Pathology Supplies and Services - Clinical 11,373 11,627            

Utilisation of PPE consumables from central issue DHSC 990 4,250              

Drug inventories consumed 25,837 23,080            

Supplies and services - general 10,483 6,223              

Consultancy services 1,155 640                 

Internal audit costs 67 60                  

Establishment 5,348 5,337              

Transport 1,675 1,780              

Premises 34,398 28,625            

Impairments and reversals of receivables 2,263 2,268

Change in provisions discount rate(s) 4 (12)

Depreciation 7,394 6,389              

Amortisation 4,716 3,500              

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 4,279 5,980              

Audit services - statutory audit 113 60                  

Audit Related Service -                        18                  

Other auditor's remuneration 84 94                  

Clinical negligence (excess payments associated with NHSLA) 12,134 15,211            

Research and development (included within Note 9.1) 453 398                 

Education and Training (included within Note 9.1) 584 453                 

Training, courses and conferences 1,044 958                 

Rentals under operating leases - minimum lease payments 1,222 931                 

Charitable Funds non pay costs 164 515                 

Other 92 1,995              

Total 388,874 361,159
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7.1 Net Impairments charged to Operating Surplus / Deficit resulting from: 
 

 
 

The £216k impairment shown above relates to equipment which was life-expired in 
advance of the expiry of the life over which it was originally capitalised. 
 

8. OPERATING LEASES 
 

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements 
where the Trust is the lessee. 
 

8.1 As Lessee 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group 31 March 

2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 216 110

Changes in market price of land and buildings, following 

valuation

4,063 5,870

4,279 5,980

8.1.1  Payments recognised as an expense

Group 31 March 

2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Total Minimum lease payments 1,222 931

Group 31 

March 2021

Buildings Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Payable:

  Not later than one year 423 1,701 2,124 628

  Between one and five years 1,442 3,817 5,259 1,912

  After five years 3,800 900 4,700 4,073

Total 5,665 6,418 12,083 6,613

8.1.2  Total future minimum lease 

payments

Group 31 March 2022
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
9.1 Employee Benefits 

 
 

9.2 Staff Sickness Absence 
 

 
 

Staff sickness was not reported in 2020-21 so no prior year figure is available. 
 

9.3 Number and Cost of Persons Retiring on Ill Health Grounds 
 

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the 
provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Where the Trust has agreed early retirements 
the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the NHS Pension Scheme. Ill-
health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme and are not included in 
the Trust's financial position. During the financial year 2021-22, there were no ill-health 
retirements (in 2020-21 there were three ill health retirements at a cost of £82k). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group 31 

March 2021

£000

Permanently 

 employed

Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 173,018 -                  173,018 169,098

Social security costs 19,131 -                  19,131 18,728

Apprenticeship levy 850 -                  850 790

18,152 -                  18,152 17,217

7,913 -                  7,913 7,505

Bank and Agency -                  11,977 11,977 7,903

Charitable Funds 186              -                  186              179

219,250 11,977 231,227 221,420

(1,452) (385) (1,837) (1,249) 

217,798 11,592 229,390 220,171

Pension cost - employer contributions paid by NHSE 

on provider's behalf (6.3%)

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme

Gross employee benefits

Less:  Employee costs capitalised

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

Group 31 March 2022

Group 31 

March 2022

Number

Total days lost 26,811          

3,278            

Average working days lost 8                  

Average number of staff during year
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9.4 Exit Packages Agreed 

 
 

The table above includes the number and total value of exit packages taken by staff 
leaving in the period. The expense associated with these departures may have been 
recognised in part or in full in a previous year. 

 
9.5 Pension Costs 
 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension 
Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on 
the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded 
defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, 
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in 
England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS 
bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, 
each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to 
the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions 
payable to that scheme for the accounting period. 
 
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do 
not differ materially from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a 
formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal 
valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An 
outline of these follows: 

 
9.5.1 Accounting Valuation 

 
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary 
(currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the reporting 
period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period 
in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current 
reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for 
financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 
March 2022, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2021, updated to 31 March 
2022 with summary global member and accounting data.  

Compulsory 

redundancies

Other agreed 

departures

Total Group 31 

March 2021

Number Number Number Number

Less than £10,000 -                   -                    -               2                   

£10,001 to £25,000 -                   2                   2              1                   

£25,001 to £50,000 -                   -                    -               1                   

£50,001 to £100,000 -                   -                    -               1                   

£100,001 to £150,000 -                   -                    -               -                    

£150,001 to £200,000 -                   -                    -               -                    

> £200,001 -                   -                    -               -                    

Total -                   2                   2              5                   

£000 £000 £000 £000

Total resource cost -                   35                 35             120               

Group 31 March 2022
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In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 
19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM 
Treasury have also been used. 

 
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report 
of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme 
Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and 
are published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery 
Office. 

 
9.5.2 Full Actuarial (Funding) Valuation 
 

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the 
benefits due under the schemes (taking into account recent demographic 
experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and 
employers. 
 
The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was 
completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this valuation set the employer 
contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay. 
 
The 2016 funding valuation also tested the cost of the Scheme relative to the 
employer cost cap that was set following the 2012 valuation. There was initially 
a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 valuations, due to the 
uncertainty around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling 
relating to the McCloud case. 
 
HMT published valuation directions dated 7 October 2021 (see Amending 
Directions 2021) that set out the technical detail of how the costs of remedy are 
included in the 2016 valuation process. Following these directions, the scheme 
actuary has completed the cost control element of the 2016 valuation for the 
NHS. 

 
9.5.3 Scheme Provisions 
 

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised 
below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the 
benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met 
before these benefits can be obtained: 
 
The scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 
1/80th for the 1995 section and of  the best of the last three years pensionable 
pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay 
per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the  
Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable 
earnings over the relevant pensionable service. 

 
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their 
annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount 
permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension 
commutation”. 
 
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the 
Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the 
twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year.  
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From 2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) has been used to replace the 
Retail Price Index (RPI). 
 
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the 
scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively 
through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable 
pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after 
retirement is payable. 
 
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension 
liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the 
additional costs is charged to the employer. 
 
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute 
to money purchase Additional  Voluntary Contributions (AVSs) run by the 
Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary 
Contributions (FSAVC) providers. 
 

10. FINANCE REVENUE 

 
 
Finance revenue represents interest received in the period. 
 

11.  FINANCE EXPENDITURE 

 
 
Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of 
money or asset financing. 
 
 
 
 
 

Group      

31 March 

2022

Group 31 

March 

2021

£000 £000

Interest income:

 - Bank interest - Trust 0 4

 - Bank interest - Charity 59 61

Total 59 65

Group      

31 March 

2022

Group 31 

March 

2021

£000 £000

Interest on obligations under finance leases 382 338

Provisions - unwinding of discount (2) (15)

Interest on:

Capital loan from Department of Health 181 167

Obligations under PFI contracts:

 - main finance cost 3,171 3,176

Total Finance Expenditure 3,732 3,666
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12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 

 
 

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
13.1 At 31 March 2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group      

31 March 

2022

Group 31 

March 

2021

£000 £000

Loss on disposal of equipment 0 (199)

Land Buildings 

excluding 

 dwellings

Assets 

under 

construction

Plant and 

machinery 

Information 

 technology 

Furniture 

and fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2021 20,450 106,066 10,916 43,554 12,752 2,008 195,747

Additions purchased -          -              24,484 4,746        520            -                  29,750

Additions - leased -          432          -                  931           -                -                  1,363

Additions donated -          353          -                  180           -                -                  533

Additions: equipment donated from NHSE for Covid response -          -              -                  104           -                -                  104

Reclassifications 13,676     (15,495) 1,135        (793) (103) (1,580)

Impairments charged to operating expenses -          (4,064) -                  (216) -                -                  (4,280)

Upward revaluation gains 1,490   4,117       -                  -               -                -                  5,607

Impairments charged to reserves -          (1,311) -                  -               -                -                  (1,311)

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2022 21,940 119,269 19,905 50,434 12,479 1,905 225,933

Depreciation at 1 April 2021 -          -              -                  23,232      9,011         1,769           34,012

Charged during the year -          3,209       -                  3,394        768            23                7,394

Depreciation at 31 March 2022 -          3,209       -                  26,626 9,779 1,792 41,406

Net book value at 31 March 2022 21,940 116,060 19,905 23,808 2,701 113 184,527

Asset financing

Owned 21,940 91,270 19,905 14,422 2,701 113 150,351

Donated -          4,971 -                  1,207 -                -                  6,178

Held on finance lease -          1,135 -                  8,179 -                -                  9,314

Private finance initiative -          18,684 -                  0 -                -                  18,684

Net book value at 31 March 2022 21,940 116,060 19,905 23,808 2,701 113 184,527



 

Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

106 
 

13.2 At 31 March 2021 
 

 
 
 

13.3 Donated Assets 
 

Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust General Charitable Fund contributed a total 
£533k during the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of thirteen capital projects. 
DHSC donated £104k of medical equipment in response to the Covid pandemic. 

 
13.4 Property Revaluation 

 
An index-based valuation was undertaken for the Trust’s freehold properties as at 31 
March 2022 by an external valuer, Gerald Eve LLP, a regulated firm of Chartered 
Surveyors. The valuation was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
RICS Valuation – Global Standards (July 2017 edition), the International Valuation 
Standards and IFRS. The valuation of these properties was on the basis of Fair Value 
primarily derived using the Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) method and the 
valuation is subject to the prospect and viability of the continued occupation and use. 
 

13.5 Economic Lives 

 
 

Land Buildings 

excluding 

 dwellings

Assets 

under 

construction

Plant and 

machinery 

Information 

 technology 

Furniture 

and fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2020 19,100 101,269 9,637 35,730 11,254 2,008 178,999

Additions purchased -        463 14,823 4,886 1,498 -                 21,670

Additions - leased -        1,789 -                  1,998 -                -                 3,787

Additions donated -        -              199              340 -                -                 539

Additions: equipment donated from NHSE for Covid response -        -              -                  1,124 -                -                 1,124

Reclassifications 13,743     (13,743) -               -                -                 -                

Impairments charged to operating expenses -        (5,870) -                  (110) -                -                 (5,980)

Upward revaluation gains 1,350 2,251 -                  -               -                -                 3,601

Impairments charged to reserves -        (4,591) -                  -               -                -                 (4,591)

Disposals/derecognition -        -              -                  (414) -                -                 (414)

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2021 20,450 109,054 10,916 43,554 12,752 2,008 198,735

Depreciation at 1 April 2020 -        -              -                  20,746 8,343 1,737 30,826

Charged during the year -        2,988 -                  2,701 668 32 6,389

Disposals/derecognition -        -              -                  (215) -                -                 (215)

Depreciation at 31 March 2021 -        2,988       -                  23,232 9,011 1,769 37,000

Net book value at 31 March 2021 20,450 106,066 10,916 20,322 3,743 239 161,735

Asset financing

Owned 20,450 81,183 10,916 13,554 3,742 239 130,084

Donated -        4,573 -                  -               -                -                 4,573

Held on finance lease -        2,246 -                  6,768 -                -                 9,014

Private finance initiative -        18,064 -                  -               -                -                 18,064

Net book value at 31 March 2021 20,450 106,066 10,916 20,322 3,742 239 161,735

Minimum Life Maximum Life

Years Years

Buildings excluding dwellings 3 89

Plant and machinery 1 7

Information technology 5 10

Furniture and fittings 1 10
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 
 
14.1 Economic Lives 

 

 
 

15. ANALYSIS OF IMPAIRMENTS AND REVERSALS 

 

Total

£000 

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2021 36,551

Additions purchased 5,445

Reclassifications 1,580

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2022 43,576

Amortisation at 1 April 2021 17,432

Charged during the year 4,716

Amortisation at 31 March 2022 22,148

Net book value at 31 March 2022 21,428

Net book value at 1 April 2021 19,119

Net book value at 31 March 2022 21,428

£000 

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2020 29,901

Additions purchased 6,650

Cost or valuation at 31 March 2021 36,551

Amortisation at 1 April 2020 13,932

Charged during the year 3,500

Amortisation at 31 March 2021 17,432

Net Book Value at 1 April 2020 15,969

Net book value at 31 March 2021 19,119

Minimum 

Life Maximum Life

Years Years

Computer software - purchased 5 15

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Total impairments and reversals charged to the statement of 

comprehensive income 4,279 5,980

Total impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve 1,311 4,591

Total Impairments 5,590 10,571
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16. COMMITMENTS 
 

16.1 Capital Commitments 
 

Capital commitments as at 31 March 2022 totalled £2.5m (20/21 £5.8m). Significant 
commitments included: Clinical Modular Build £1,753k and software licences and 
laptops £315k. 
 

16.2 Other Financial Commitments 
 
The Trust had no non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases or PFI contracts or 
other service concession arrangements) as at 31 March 2022. 
 

17. INVENTORIES 
 

 
 
During the 2021-22 financial year, the Department of Health and Social Care provided 
PPE of £990k to the Trust (2020-21 £4,681k) , in response to the Covid pandemic. 
£431k of this remained as inventory at 31st March 2022 (£431k as at 31st March 2021). 
 

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 
 
 
 

Group 31 

March 

2021

Drugs Consumables

Consumables 

donated from 

DHSC group 

bodies

Energy Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1st April 1,078 1,142 431 204 2,855 1,969

Additions 25,837 4,247 990 0 31,074 31,604

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (25,473) (4,234) (990) 0 (30,697) (30,718)

Balance at 31 March 1,442 1,155 431 204 3,232 2,855

Group 31 March 2022

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 March 

2021

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS Contract receivables: invoiced 5,834 9,997 0 0

NHS Contract receivables: not yet invoiced 2,181 1,644 0 0

Non-NHS Contract receivables: invoiced 11,281 8,526               0 0

Non-NHS Contract receivables: not yet invoiced 3,227 4,587 1,342 875

Provision for the impairment of receivables (6,024) (4,146) 0 (40)

Clinician pension tax provision reimbursement funding from NHSE 43 0 798 736

VAT 232 420 0 0

Other receivables 232 1,561 224 179

Total 17,006 22,589 2,364 1,750

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 March 

2021

£000 £000

Total Current and Non-current Receivables 19,370 24,339



 

Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

109 
 

18.1 Allowances for Credit Losses 2021/22 

 
 

18.2 Allowances for Credit Losses 2020/21 

 
 

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group 

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

Group All 

other 

receivables

£000 £000

Allowances as at 1 April 2021 brought

forward 4,186 0

New allowances arising 2,273 0

Changes in the calculation of existing allowances (10) 0

Reversals of allowances 0 0

Utilisation of allowances (425) 0

Allowances as at 31st March 2022 6,024 0

Group 

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

Group All 

other 

receivables

£000 £000

Allowances as at 1 April 2020 brought

forward 2,051 0

New allowances arising 2,275 0

Changes in the calculation of existing allowances (7) 0

Reversals of allowances 0 0

Utilisation of allowances (133) 0

Allowances as at 31st March 2021 4,186 0

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2021 49,678 16,353

Balance at 31 March 2022 75,437 49,678

Made up of

Cash with Government Banking Services 70,398 46,450

Commercial banks 1,063 539

Charity cash held in commercial banks 3,976 2,689

Cash and cash equivalents as in the Statement of Financial Position and 75,437 49,678

   in the Statement of Cash Flows
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES: CURRENT 

 
 

21. BORROWINGS 

 
 
One working capital loan is held with the Department of Health and Social Care, with 
outstanding value at 31st March 2022 of £6,765k (31st March 2021 outstanding value 
£7,300k). 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group Group 

31st March 

2022

31st March 

2021

£000 £000

NHS payables - revenue 18                  537              

NHS accruals 6,439             6,394           

Non-NHS trade payables - revenue 37                  4,663           

Non-NHS trade payables - capital 22,009            12,676         

Non-NHS accruals 54,766            31,150         

Annual leave 7,964             7,700           

Social security costs 3,297             2,993           

Tax 2,725             2,398           

PDC dividend payable -                    -                  

NHS charitable funds: Trade and other payables 45                  25                

Other 2,506             1,267           

99,806 69,803Total Current Trade and Other Payables

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 March 

2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

PFI liabilities

 - Main liability 842 1,058            19,127 20,132

Capital loan from the Department of Health 545 540               6,220 6,760

Finance lease liabilities 1,308 1,206            11,038 11,142

Total 2,695 2,804 36,385 38,034

Current Non-current

Total current and non-current 39,080 40,838

Capital loan 

DoH Other Total

£000 £000 £000

Repayment of principal falling due:

Within one year 545 2,150              2,695               

Between one and two years 545 2,150              2,695               

Between two and five years 1,635 6,450              8,085               

After five years 4,040 21,565            25,605             

Total 6,765 32,315 39,080
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22. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
During the year the Trust had two arrangements that are accounted for as finance 
leases under International Financial Reporting Standards: 
 

• A Managed Equipment Service (MES) with Siemens Healthcare Limited for 
imaging equipment. The agreement commenced in September 2017 for a ten year 
period. Minimum lease payments are £19,130k over 10 years. 

• A Managed Imaging Service with In Health. The contract commenced during 
August 2017 for a 15-year period. The minimum lease payments are £2,105k over 
15 years. 

 
Future minimum lease payments are calculated by adding the present value of 
minimum lease payments to the remaining finance lease interest. 
 

22.1 Amounts Payable under Finance Leases - Other: 
 

 
 

23. PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACTS 
 

23.1 Private Finance Initiative schemes off-Statement of Financial Position 
 

The Trust did not have any Private Finance Initiative schemes that were excluded from 
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2022. 

 
23.2 Private Finance Initiative schemes on-Statement of Financial Position 

 
The Trust has entered into two Private Finance Initiative (PFI) agreements: 
 

• A 29 year agreement for the Development of Phase 5 at Kingston Hospital and 
Provision of Services with Prime Care Solutions 

• (Kingston) Ltd ("Prime"), expiring in 2036; and, 

• A 15 year agreement for the re-provision of Energy and Energy Management 
Services at Kingston Hospital with Veolia (formerly Dalkia) Energy & Utility Services 
UK PLC ("Dalkia"), expiring in 2023. 

 
Under IFRIC 12 the assets of both schemes are treated as assets of the Trust. The 
substance of both agreements is that the Trust has a finance lease and payments 
comprise of two elements, imputed finance lease charges and service charges. 
 

Amounts payable under finance leases - Other:   

Minimum 

lease 

payments

Minimum lease 

payments

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 March 

2021

£000 £000

Within one year 1,307 1,206

Between one and five years 5,228 4,823

After five years 5,811 6,319

Less future finance charges        -                     -                      

Present value of minimum lease payments 12,346 12,348
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23.2.1 Development of Phase 5 at Kingston Hospital and Provision of Services 
 

Under the PFI agreement Prime's obligation was to build the Kingston Surgical 
Centre building and car parking facilities at the Trust. Under IFRIC 12 the 
Kingston Surgical Centre building is treated as an asset of the Trust.  The Trust 
has the right to use the building for the  purposes specified in the project 
agreement and to receive the building at the end of the contract period. 
 
The provision of services at the Trust by Prime include a catering service and 
all other soft facilities management services across the Trust. Prime also 
provide a hard facilities management service to the Kingston Surgical Centre 
building. 
 
Significant terms of the agreement include: 

 

• Under clause 44.6 (replacement of non-performing sub-contractor) Prime 
will put forward proposals for the interim management of the service. 

• If Prime fails to provide relevant services to the Trust the Trust may perform 
such services itself or instruct a third party to do so. If Prime then fail to 
terminate the relevant service the Trust shall be entitled to its option to 
exercise its rights in accordance with the provisions of Clause 44.5 (remedy 
provisions). 

• If in the circumstances referred to in Clause 43 (Force Majeure) the parties 
have failed to reach agreement on any modification to the project 
agreement within 6 months of the date on which the party affected serves 
notice on the other party, either party may at any time afterwards terminate 
the agreement by written notice. 

• The Trust shall be entitled to terminate the agreement at any time on 6 
months written notice to Prime. 

 
There is a 2.5% RPI increase built into the providers  financing model with a 
base date of 1 April 2002.  Actual RPI is calculated on an   annual basis. 

 
23.2.2 Energy and Energy Management Services 
 

Veolia provide and maintain a combined heat and power plant to deliver heat  
and power to the Trust.  Under IFRIC 12 the plant  is treated  as an asset of the 
Trust. The Trust has the right to use the combined heat and power plant for the 
purposes specified in the project agreement. 

 
Veolia are obligated to provide the plant and machinery for the boiler house. 
On the expiry date of this contract the funded new equipment shall vest in the 
Trust provided the Trust has paid Veolia any payment due to it under the project 
agreement. 

 
Significant terms of the agreement include: 

 

• The party claiming relief under Force Majeure shall be relived of its liability 
under the project agreement to the extent that by reason of the force 
majeure it is not able to perform its obligations under this Agreement 
provided that the Trust shall continue to pay the Operating Element to 
Veolia notwithstanding the occurrence of an event of Force Majeure. 
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• On the occurrence of a Veolia Event of Default referred to in clauses 
35.1.2, 35.1.3 (a), 35.1.4, 35.1.5, 35.1.6, 35.1.8 the Trust may terminate 
the agreement in its entirety by notice in writing having immediate effect. 

• On the occurrence of a Veolia Event of Default referred to in clauses 
35.1.3(b), 35.1.3 (c), 35.1.3 (d) and 35.1.7, the Trust may serve notice 
giving Veolia the option to remedy the default within 20 business days, or 
put forward a reasonable plan within 20 business days to remedy the 
default. 

• In the case of any Event of Default referred to in clause 35.1.7, if Veolia is 
awarded one or more warning notices in the following contract month, the 
Trust can issue notice in writing which terminates the agreement with 
immediate effect. 

• The Trust is entitled to terminate the project agreement any time on 6 
months written notice to Veolia. 

 
There is a 2.5% RPI built into the scheme with a base date of 1 September 
2005. Actual RPI is calculated on an annual basis. 

 
23.3 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other Service Concession Arrangement Obligations 

(finance lease element) 

 
 

23.4 Charges to Expenditure 
 

The total charged in the year to expenditure in respect of off-statement of financial 
position PFI contracts was £NIL. 
 
The total charged in the year to expenditure in respect of the service element of on-
statement of financial position PFI contracts was £12.8m. Services include: catering, 
all other soft facilities management services across the Trust and, provision of heat 
and power to the Trust. 
 

23.5 Total Future Payments Committed in respect of charges for PFI Services: 
 

 
 
 

 

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Within one year 4,153 4,354

18,238 15,522

After five years 49,262 54,316

Sub total 71,653 74,192

Less: interest element (51,684) (53,002)

Total 19,969 21,190

Between one and five years

£000 £000

Within one year 13,078 12,617

Between one and five years 33,786 52,471

After five years 181,158 178,431

Total 228,022 243,519
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24. DEFERRED INCOME 

 
 

25. PROVISIONS 
 

 
 

The Other provision comprises £306k relating to business processes change. Clinician 
Pension Tax Reimbursement is a provision made in accordance with national guidance 
from DHSC relating to clinicians pension liabilities for which an accompanying 
provision is to be held in the accounts of NHS England, and for which reimbursement 
of payments will be made by NHS England. Pension Payments are made quarterly and 
amounts are known. The pension provision is based on life expectancy. Legal claims 
are calculated from the number of claims currently lodged with the NHS Resolution 
and the probabilities provided by the NHS Resolution. 
 
£415m is included in the provision of NHS Resolution under legal claims in respect of 
clinical negligence liabilities of the Trust (£276m at 31st March 2021). 
 
 
 

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Balance at 31 March  all: current 2,121 1,077             

Pensions- 

Early 

departure 

costs

Pensions-

Injury 

Benefits

Legal claims

Clinician 

Pension Tax 

Reimbursement

Other Total

Group 31st March 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2021 560 81                  76 736 1,327 2,780

Arising during the year                   -                   -                  79                      98             116 293

Used during the year (115) (18) (45)                        -                 - (178)

Reversed unused                   -                   -                     -                        - (1,149) (1,149)

Unwinding of discount (8)                   -                     - 3 6 1

Change in discount rate (2)                   -                     - 4 6 8

At 31 March 2022 435 63 110 841 306 1,755

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 120 11 110 43             306 590

Between one and five years 315                 52                     - 50                 - 417

After five years                   -                   -                    0                    748 (0)              748 

              435                 63                 110                    841             306            1,755 

Group 31st March 2021

At 1 April 2020 691 109                 181                    746          1,007 2,734

Arising during the year                   -                   -                  79                        - 326 405

Used during the year (121) (27) (135)                        -                 - (283)

Reversed unused                   -                   - (49)                        -                 - (49)

Unwinding of discount (7) (1)                     - (7)                 - (15)

Change in discount rate (3)                   -                     - (3) (6) (12)

At 31 March 2021 560 81 76 736 1,327 2,780

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 124 22                  76                        -          1,327 1,549

Between one and five years 436                 59                     -                    736                 - 1,231

After five years                   -                   -                    0                        - (0) 0

560 81 76 736 1,327 2,780
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

26.1 Carrying Value and Fair Value of Financial Assets 
 

 
 

26.2 Carrying Value and Fair Value of Financial Liabilities 
 

 
 

26.3 Maturity of Financial Liabilities 
 

 

At amortised 

cost

Other Total

£000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables 13,680            -                    13,680

Kingston Hospital Charity financial 

assets 7,290             -                    7,290

Cash and cash equivalents 71,461            -                    71,461

Total at 31 March 2022 92,431 0 92,431

At amortised 

cost

Other Total

£000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables 19,021            -                    19,021

Kingston Hospital Charity financial 

assets 5,332             -                    5,332

Cash and cash equivalents 46,989            -                    46,989

Total at 31 March 2021 71,342 0 71,342

At amortised 

cost

Other Total

£000 £000 £000

Department of Health and Social Care 

Loans

             6,765 0               6,765 

Trade and other payables 6,457             -                                  6,457 

Non-NHS payables 87,282            -                                87,282 

PFI and finance lease obligations 32,315            -                                32,315 

Total at 31 March 2022 132,819          -                    132,819          

At amortised 

cost

Other Total

£000 £000 £000

Department of Health and Social Care 

Loans

             7,300                     -               7,300 

Trade and other payables 6,931             -                                  6,931 

Non-NHS payables 49,755            -                                49,755 

PFI and finance lease obligations 33,538            -                                33,538 

Total at 31 March 2021 97,524            -                    97,524            

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

In one year of less 99,761 66,301

In more than one but not more than two years 25,626 22,505

In more than five years 59,673 65,235

Total financial liabilities 185,060 154,041          
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Carrying value is a reasonable approximation of fair value for financial assets and 
liabilities. 
 
For trade and other receivables the carrying value is a reasonable approximation to 
fair value as, in general, such receivables are expected to settled within 30 days. 
 
For trade and other payables the carrying value is a reasonable approximation to fair 
value as, in general, the payment is expected to be released within 30 days of 
recognition of the payable. 
 
For borrowings the chargeable interest rate has been compared to the interest rates 
available as at the end of the financial year for loans with similar characteristics.  As 
the difference in interest rates are minimal the carrying value for borrowings is a 
reasonable approximation to fair value. 
 
For PFI and finance lease obligations carrying value is a reasonable approximation to 
fair value, at the end of the financial year. 
 

26.4 Financial Risk Management 
 
International Financial Reporting Standard 7 requires disclosure of the role that 
financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a 
body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider 
relationship that the Trust has with clinical commissioning groups and the way those 
clinical commissioning groups are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of 
financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more 
limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to 
which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to 
borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-
to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust 
in undertaking its activities. 
 
The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance 
department, within parameters defined formally within the Trust’s Standing Financial 
Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of directors. Trust treasury activity is 
subject to review by the Trust’s internal auditors. 
 
26.4.1 Currency Risk 
 

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of 
transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The Trust 
has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency 
rate fluctuations. 

 
26.4.2 Interest Rate Risk 
 

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to 
affordability as confirmed by NHS Improvement. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 
years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at 
the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore 
has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations. 
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26.4.3 Credit Risk 
 

Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other 
public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum 
exposures as at 31 March 2022 are in receivables from customers, as 
disclosed in the trade and other receivables note. 

 
26.4.4 Liquidity Risk 
 

The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with clinical 
commissioning groups, which are financed from resources voted annually by 
Parliament. 

 
27. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

 
There are no events after the reporting period to report. 
 

28. LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS 
 
There were 207 cases (2020-21 168 cases) of losses and special payments totalling 
£587,000 (2020-21 £229,000) incurred during 2021-22 but excluding provisions for 
future losses. 
 

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
During the year none of the Department of Health Ministers, Trust Board members or 
members of the key management staff, or parties related to any of them, has 
undertaken any material transactions with the Trust. 
 
All interests are properly registered in the Trust's Register of Interests. 
 
The Department of Health and Social Care, as the parent of Kingston Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, is regarded as a related party. During the year the Foundation Trust 
has had a significant number of material transactions with the other entities listed below 
for which the Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as the parent. 
 
Group 31 March 2022 
 
Guy's & St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust 
St George's University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
The Royal Marsden NHS Foundation Trust 
Croydon Health Services NHS Trust 
Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust 
Health Education England 
Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust 
NHS England 
NHS North West London CCG 
NHS South East London CCG 
NHS South West London CCG 
NHS Surrey Heartlands CCG 
NHS Resolution 
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In addition, the Trust has a number of balances at year end with other government 
departments and other central and local government bodies. Most of these 
transactions have been with HM Revenue & Customs in respect of PAYE, NI 
contributions and VAT refunds. 
 
The Trust has significant transactions and balances with the following local 
authorities: 
 
Kingston upon Thames Council (Royal Borough of) 
Richmond upon Thames Borough Council 
Surrey County Council 
 
The Trust received capital contributions from Kingston Hospital NHS Trust General 
Charitable Fund (Registered Charity Number: 1056510), the corporate trustee for 
which is the Trust Board. The audited accounts of the Fund are available on the Charity 
Commission website. 
 

30. THIRD PARTY ASSETS 
 
The Trust held no cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2022 which relates to monies 
held by the Trust on behalf of patients. 
 

31. IFRIC 12 ADJUSTMENT 
 

31.1  Revenue consequences of IFRS  
 

Arrangements reported on the statement of financial position under IFRIC 12  
(e.g. private finance initiative) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group 31 

March 2022

Group 31 

March 2021

£000 £000

Depreciation charges 424 387

Interest expense 3,171 3,176

Other expenditure 12,841 12,596

Impact on Public Dividend Capital dividend payable 648 538

Total IFRS expenditure 17,084 16,697

(16,701) (16,636)

Net IFRS change 383 61

Revenue consequences of IFRS:  Arrangements reported on the 

statement of financial position under IFRIC 12 (e.g. private finance 

initiative)

Revenue consequences of PFI schemes under UK GAAP (net of any sub-

leasing income)
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32. CHARITABLE FUNDS 
 

 
 
The Charity prepares its Accounts on the basis of FRS102, under which commitments 
are reflected in expenditure. The adjustment shown above is necessary to adjust to 
reflect the accruals basis utilised under IFRS, prior to consolidation with the Trust's 
Accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FRS102 Basis: Endowment 

 Reserve

Unrestricted 

 Funds

Restricted 

 Funds

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Opening balance 1 April 2021 57 1,925 1,897 3,879

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 0 25 394 419

Closing balance 31 March 2022 57 1,950 2,291 4,298

Adjustment: FRS102 to IFRS Basis:

Endowment 

 Reserve

Unrestricted 

 Funds

Restricted 

 Funds

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Opening balance 1 April 2021 -                 613 745 1,358

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year -                 -                 -              0

Closing balance 31 March 2022 0 613 745 1,358

IFRS Basis: Endowment 

 Reserve

Unrestricted 

 Funds

Restricted 

 Funds

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Opening balance 1 April 2021 57 2,538 2,642 5,237

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year -                 257             1,617       1,874        

Closing balance 31 March 2022 57 2,795 4,259 7,111



 

Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report & Accounts 2021-22 

120 
 

32.1 Funds  
 

Name of Fund Description of the nature and purpose of each fund 

Permanent Endowment 
Funds 

 

V A W Holton – Research Capital to be held in perpetuity. Income to be used for any research 
activity undertaken by the Hospital 

Restricted Funds  

Born Too Soon To be used for any charitable purpose or purposes to provide facilities 
for treatment of premature babies 

Dementia Appeal To be used to deliver consistently excellent dementia care 

Kingston Can To relieve sickness and advance the health of patients of Kingston 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust who are (a) suffering from chronic 
or critical illness (with a particular emphasis on those suffering from 
cancer or (b) suffering from a disability or illness attributable to old 
age including, but not limited to, by provision of facilities equipment 
and services and the provision of support and information to their 
family and carers 

Cancer Research To be used for research into cancer 

Cancer Unit Appeal Legacies To be used for the relief of sickness by the provision of a new cancer 
unit at Kingston Hospital NHS Trust and the upkeep and 
maintenance of this unit 

I C Lewis – Nursing Research To provide bursaries for awards to encourage research and training by 
nurses 

Ophthalmology Services To be used to support ophthalmology services provided by the Royal 
Eye Unit 

Orthopaedic Equipment To be used to purchase orthopaedic equipment 

Urology Equipment To be used to purchase urology equipment 

V A W Holton – Research Income derived from the permanent endowment to be used for any 
research activity undertaken by the Hospital 

Laurie Todd Foundation To support a PhD studentship investigating the association of high-risk 
human papillomavirus (HPV) types and gastrointestinal cancer. 

Equipment Appeals Income derived from supporter mailings which seek funding for a 
rolling schedule of specific equipment needs of the Trust 

COVID-19 / Staff Support To be used towards the provision of enhanced welfare and 
additional facilities for the Hospital's staff as they provide care to 
patients through the COVID pandemic 

REU, Paediatric Oncology 
Unit Appeal 

To be used towards the cost building an extension on the Hospital's 
estate to house an expansion of Eye Unit facilities and a new 
Paediatric Oncology Unit 

Kingson CCG Funds, 
comprising: 

 

- Kingston Primary Care 
Trust Charitable Fund 

For any charitable purposes relating to the general or any specific 
purposes of the Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust or the 
purposes of the Health Services (as described in S1 National Health 
Services Act 2006 or any statutory modification thereof) 

- Surbiton Hospital Fund For any charitable purposes relating to the general or any specific 
purposes of the Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust or the 
purposes of the Health Services (as described in S1 National Health 
Services Act 2006 or any statutory modification thereof) 

  - Tolworth Hospital Fund For any charitable purposes relating to the national health service 
wholly or mainly for the services provided by Tolworth Hospital 
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Unrestricted Funds 
 
The unrestricted funds are available to be spent for any of the purposes of the Charity. 
 
On 14th March 2021, the Board of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust agreed to 
accept trusteeship of the three charities held by Kingston CCG: Tolworth Hospital 
Fund, Surbiton Hospital Fund and Kingston Primary Care Trust Charitable Fund. In 
2021-22 total funds of £864k were transferred from Kingston CCG to Kingston Hospital 
with respect of these monies. There remains a further small balance which will be 
transferred in 2022-23. 
 

32.2 Other Assets 
 
£3,191k relates to the funds that the Charity has invested with its appointed fund 
managers CCLA. The values shown are as valued by the fund managers at 31st March 
2022. 
 

33. MOVEMENT IN PUBLIC DIVIDEND CAPITAL (PDC) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Group      

31 March 

2022 

 Group 31 

March 

2021 

£000 £000

Opening balance 119,434       65,395     

Drawn down for Covid-related capital projects -                 3,686       

Drawn down for other strategic capital projects 18,627        12,986     

DHSC loans converted to PDC -                 37,367     

Closing balance 138,061       119,434   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS  
OF KINGSTON HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 
 

AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Opinion on financial statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
(the ‘Trust’) and its subsidiary (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022, which 
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, 
the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash Flow and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 
and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the 
Accounts Directions issued under Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006, as 
interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting 
Manual 2021 to 2022. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 
 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Trust as 
at 31 March 2022 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Trust’s 
expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards 
as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2021 to 2022; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service 
Act 2006. 

 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of 
Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the group and the 
Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
 
We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Accounting Officer’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the group or the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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In our evaluation of the Accounting Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 
expectation set out within the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting 
Manual 2021 to 2022 that the group and Trust’s financial statements shall be prepared on 
a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of 
services provided by the group and Trust.  
 
In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial 
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on 
the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the 
reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the group and Trust and the group and 
Trust’s disclosures over the going concern period. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 
significant doubt on the group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue. 
 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Accounting Officer’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is appropriate. 
 
The responsibilities of the Accounting Officer with respect to going concern are described 
in the ‘Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and Those Charged with Governance for 
the financial statements’ section of this report. 
 
Other information 
 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a 
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit 
Practice 
 
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on 
behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required 
to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the disclosure 
requirements set out in the NHS FoundationTrust Annual Reporting Manual 2021/22 or is 
misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We 
are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks 
and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 
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We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 
 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 

• the parts of the Remuneration Report and the Staff Report to be audited have been 
properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity 
with the requirements of the Accounts Directions issued under Schedule 7 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006; and 

• based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements 
and our knowledge of the Trust, the other information published together with the 
financial statements in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if: 
 

• we issue a report in the public interest under Schedule 10 (3) of the National Health 
Service Act 2006 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we refer a matter to the regulator under Schedule 10 (6) of the National Health Service 
Act 2006 because we have reason to believe that the Trust, or an officer of the Trust, 
is about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the 
incurring of unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of 
action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss 
or deficiency. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters. 
 
Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and Those Charged with Governance for 
the financial statements 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities set out on 
page 29, the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, is responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Directions 
included in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2021- 22, for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accounting 
Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Accounting Officer is responsible for assessing 
the group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Accounting Officer has been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to 
dissolve the Trust and the group without the transfer of the services to another public 
sector entity. 
 
The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with 
Governance are responsible for overseeing the group and Trust’s financial reporting 
process. 
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists.  
 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:  
w ww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 
irregularities, including fraud 
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations 
of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial 
statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed 
in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 
 
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is 
detailed below: 
 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 
applicable to the group and Trust and determined that the most significant which are 
directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those related to 
the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards and the National 
Health Service Act 2006, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health 
and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2021 to 2022). 

• We enquired of management and the Audit Committee, concerning the group and 
Trust’s policies and procedures relating to: 

− the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations; 
− the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and 
− the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or 

non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

• We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether they 
were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether 
they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 

• We assessed the susceptibility of the group and Trust’s financial statements to 
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management's 
incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This 
included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls, fraudulent 
expenditure recognition and significant accounting estimates. We determined that 
the principal risks were in relation to: 
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− Journals - we considered all journal entries for fraud and set specific criteria to 
identify the entries we considered to be high risk. Such criteria included journals 
with unusual values; journals posted after the year end and journals created by 
senior managers; 

− revaluation of land and buildings. 

• Our audit procedures involved: 
− evaluation of the design effectiveness of management controls over journals; 
− journal entry testing, with a focus on the journals deemed to be high risk; 
− challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant 

accounting estimates in respect of property, plant and equipment valuations; and 
− assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part 

of our procedures on the related financial statement item. 

• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from 
error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than 
detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate 
concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the 
financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. 

• The team communications in respect of potential non-compliance with relevant laws 
and regulations, including the potential for fraud in revenue and expenditure 
recognition, and the significant accounting estimates related to property, plant and 
equipment valuations and the annual leave accrual. 

• Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and 
capabilities of the group and Trust’s engagement team included consideration of 
the engagement team's; 

− understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a 
similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation; 

− knowledge of the health sector and economy in which the group and Trust 
operates; and 

− understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the group and 
Trust including: 

− the provisions of the applicable legislation; 
− NHS Improvement’s rules and related guidance; and 
− the applicable statutory provisions. 

• In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding 
of: 

− The group and Trust’s operations, including the nature of its income and 
expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand 
the classes of transactions, account balances, financial statement consolidation 
processes, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that 
may result in risks of material misstatement. 

− the group and Trust's control environment, including the policies and 
procedures implemented by the group and Trust to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the financial reporting framework. 
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS – THE TRUST’S 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS IN 
ITS USE OF RESOURCES 
 
Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Trust’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
 
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 
have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 
31 March 2022. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter. 
 
Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer 
 
The Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the 
Trust's resources. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Trust’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
 
We are required under paragraph 1 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 
2006 to be satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use ofresources. We are not required to consider, nor 
have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having 
regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. 
This guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper 
arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice 
requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified 
reporting criteria: 
 

• Financial sustainability: how the Trust plans and manages its resources to ensure 
it can continue to deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Trust ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 
manages its risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Trust uses information 
about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its 
services. 

 
We have documented our understanding of the arrangements the Trust has in place for 
each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support 
our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our 
work, we have considered whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 
weaknesses in arrangements. 
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS – CERTIFICATE 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Kingston 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 
of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 
Use of our report 
 
This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in 
accordance with Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has 
been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's Council of Governors those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Trust and the Trust's Council of Governors as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 

Darren Wells 
 

Darren Wells, Key Audit Partner 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor 
 

 
London 
22 June 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 
 


